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Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Revised Notice and 45" Annual Report of Rain Industries Limited ('Company') - Reg.
Ref: i) Compliance with Regulation 34 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
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Circulars).

In this connection, please find attached herewith 45th Annual Report of the Company for the
Financial Year ended December 31, 2019 along with the Revised Notice of AGM.

In terms of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the said Annual Report and Revised Notice
of Annual General Meeting and other relevant documents are also uploaded on the website of the
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Further, in terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), and Regulation 44 of SEBI LODR,
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on the businesses specified in the Notice convening the 45" AGM of the Company.
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Telangana, India : Website: www.rain-industries.com
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ACTING RESPONSIBLY.
ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.




COVER EXPLANATION

Since our journey began at RAIN Industries
Limited (RAIN), we have been steadily expanding
the scale and scope of our business worldwide.

We have constantly innovated and expanded
capacities to build a better future for all our
stakeholders — employees, customers, investors,
vendors, communities and the environment. We are
making materials for today and tomorrow, and the
cover’s iconography reflects our contributions for a

sustainable world.

CARBON

Calcined Petroleum Coke (CPC)
Coal Tar Pitch (CTP)

Other Carbon Products (OCP)
Energy

ADVANCED MATERIALS
Naphthalene Derivates
Petrochemical Intermediates
Engineered Products

Resins

CEMENT
Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC)
Portland Pozzolana Cement (PPC)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN 2019

X 122,873 million

Revenue

4 17,427 million

Operating Profit*

4 5,211 million

Profit After Tax*

31549

Earnings Per Share*

*Adjusted with exceptional items

SUSTAINABILITY AND SAFETY
PERFORMANCE IN 2019

513 Kkilo tonnes

Saved CO2 Emissions (Management estimate)

0.29°/0.26°

Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR)/
Total Lost-Time Incident Rate (TLIR)

X197 million

CSR and related expenditure

* For the Carbon and Advanced Materials business segments
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ACTING RESPONSIBLY.
ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

At RAIN Industries Limited (RAIN), safety, responsibility and sustainability
are deeply embedded in everything we do. Our products, processes and

the entire canvas of global operations are designed to create value for
stakeholders with a long-term perspective.

We are continuously embedding occupational health and safety, process
safety, environmental stewardship, and social and governance parameters

in every aspect of our business.
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Our focus is to constantly improve business performance every
year through a prudent decision-making process, which is
guided by years of research and specialised competencies in
the markets where we operate. Despite business uncertainties
and challenges, we are continuously growing our market share
and remain an industry leader.

WE EXTRACT VALUE FROM INDUSTRIAL BY-PRODUCTS

We transform by-products from other industries into value-added
materials, which contributes to resource efficiency and carbon
productivity. By extracting more value from these industrial by-products,
we are upcycling.

WE CARE FOR OUR PEOPLE, COMMUNITIES AND ASSETS

The safety and welfare of our employees and the communities where

we operate is of crucial importance to us. We have two CSR arms—the
RUTGERS Foundation and the Pragnya Priya Foundation—to bring a
positive change in the society. Through the RUTGERS Foundation in
Europe, we support scientific endeavours such as research, working
groups and project days for students of all age groups. The Pragnya Priya
Foundation in India focuses its efforts on improving the lives of people
living in underprivileged and rural communities by providing them
with health and education facilities, undertaking rural development and
protecting the environment. We continue to pursue excellence in safety
to better protect our employees and promote an environment where safe
behaviour is supported and valued.

WE ACT RESPONSIBLY FOR THE PLANET

Our state-of-the-art waste-heat recovery (WHR) power plants supply

the surrounding communities with electricity, indirectly reducing

some of the greenhouse gas emissions from the generation of

electricity by thermal power plants (coal and natural gas). Our flue-gas
desulphurisation (FGD) plants reduce sulphur dioxide (SO2) emissions by
up to 98%. We will continue to craft innovative, cost-effective solutions

to reduce our environmental impact, helping us fulfil our responsibility
towards the planet and society.

As a company committed to value creation, we will continue to work hard
to live up to the expectations of our stakeholders. It is our endeavour to act
responsibly for their wellbeing and advance sustainably while balancing
profitability with environmental and societal commitments.




CORPORATE IDENTITY

Our expanding universe

RAIN is a worldwide producer OfCl Headquartered in Hyderabad, India, we have 18 strategically positioned
manufacturing facilities in eight countries across Asia, North America and
Europe. Our 2,700-plus employees are go-getters helping to drive growth
are critical raw materials for staples of and sustainability.

diversified portfolio of products that

everyday llfe We are Vertically integrated We have long-standing relationships with most of our major customers,
including several bellwethers in the global aluminium, graphite and specialty
chemicals industries, as well as with most of our major raw material suppliers,
Carbon, Advanced Materials and Cement. including several of the world’s largest oil refiners and steel producers.

and operate in three business segments:

Our scale and process sophistication provide us the flexibility to capitalise
on market opportunities by selecting from a wide range of raw materials,
adjusting the composition of our product mix and manufacturing products
that meet customers’ stringent specifications.

Our production facility locations and integrated global logistics network also
strategically position us to capitalise on market opportunities by addressing raw
material supply and product demand across developed and emerging markets.

Materials for today and tomorrow

CARBON

Our Carbon business segment converts the by-products of oil refining and a liquid by-product derived
from the conversion of coal into metallurgical coke used for pig iron and steel production into high-value
carbon-based products that are critical raw materials for the aluminium, graphite, carbon black, wood
preservation, titanium dioxide, refractory and other global industries. We are the world’s largest producer
of coal tar pitch (CTP) and second-largest producer of calcined petroleum coke (CPC).

ADVANCED MATERIALS

Our Advanced Materials business segment extends the value chain of our carbon processing through
downstream refining of a portion of this output into high-value advanced material products that
are critical raw materials for the specialty chemicals, coatings, construction, petroleum and other
global industries.

CEMENT

Our Cement segment consists of two integrated cement plants that operate in the South Indian market
and is self-sufficient in limestone, the critical raw material required for cement production.

4 RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



OVERVIEW &
PROGRESS

5

Building scale

2.1m1PA 1.3mpAa 0. 7mM1PA 4.0 MTPA

CALCINATION COAL TAR DISTILLATION ADVANCED MATERIALS CEMENT
Nurturing excellence
CARBON PLANTS CARBON & ADVANCED ADVANCED MATERIALS CEMENT PLANTS
MATERIALS PLANTS PLANTS
Growing sustainably
~116 Mmw 4 ~59 4
5 MW MW
WHR POWER WHR POWER WHR STEAM WHR STEAM FLUE-GAS
PLANTS GENERATION CAPACITY PLANTS GENERATION CAPACITY DESULPHURISATION
PLANTS

KEY PRODUCTS

Refer

Page 32

for additional
information

KEY PRODUCTS

Refer

Page 35

for additional
information

KEY PRODUCTS

ORDINARY PORTLAND CEMENT (OPC) Refer
PORTLAND POZZOLANA CEMENT (PPC) Page 38
for additional

information

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



CORPORATE IDENTITY: SEE OUR EXPANDING UNIVERSE

Looking back with pride

Our remarkable journey, since our evolution from a regional cement
producer into one of the world's largest suppliers of carbon-based
materials, began at a very modest scale in 1998 in Visakhapatnam,
India. Today, we operate across three continents, supported by our
industry-leading production capacities and integrated teams.

RAIN Calcining Limited merges with

RAIN C ities Limit
RAIN Calcining Limited begins ommodities Limited

operations in Visakhapatnam, RAIN Calcining Limited acquires
India, with a production capacity CII Carbon LLC, the world’s
of 0.3 million tonnes per annum second-largest CPC producer, giving RAIN CII Carbon LLC installs fifth
(MTPA) of CPC rise to RAIN CII Carbon LLC energy-producing WHR facility

in the USA and adds FGD system

RAIN Calcining Limited doubles RAIN Cements Limited executes a RAIN acquires RUTGERS,
its production capacity to brownfield expansion to produce the world’s second-largest
become the fifth-largest 1.5 MTPA of cement at its plant in coal tar distiller at
global CPC producer Kurnool, India that time

1998 2005 2007 2008 2012 2013

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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RAIN completes greenfield coal tar
distillation facility with a 0.3 MTPA
capacity in Cherepovets, Russia, through
ajoint venture with PAO Severstal

RAIN breaks ground on a vertical-
shaft calciner in Andhra Pradesh
Special Economic Zone in India and
on a hydrogenated hydrocarbon
RAIN installs a 6.4 MW WHR plant at resins (HHCR) production facility at

cement plant in Kurnool, India its Castrop-Rauxel site in Germany

RAIN sets up a CPC blending facility with
a capacity to blend up to 1t MTPA of CPC in
Visakhapatnam, India

RAIN commissions a third CARBORES®
reactor with 17,000 TPA capacity in
RAIN completes brownfield Castrop-Rauxel, Germany
expansion of its phthalic
anhydride projectin Zelzate,
Belgium

RAIN commissions 4.1 MW
WHR plant at the cement plant
in Suryapet, India

RAIN launches anhydrous
carbon pellets (ACP), a new
proprietary material that
will address the shortage
of anode-grade green
petroleum coke

RAIN completes de-bottlenecking
of distillation plant in Hamilton,
Canada, increasing production
capacity from 240,000 TPA to

263,000 TPA
. . RAINE , double-
RAIN commissions FGD system RAIN refinances debt, resulting in mpress a'new ouble
. . . . . hulled vessel in Europe,
in Chalmette, Louisiana, USA reduction of interest cost, optimised

completes its first commercial
delivery of NOVARES®
hydrocarbon resins

mix of floating versus fixed-debt and
currency mix between US Dollar
and Euro

| ‘. l

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



OUR PRESENCE

Transcontinental
spectrum of
operations

Our extensive network of 18 production

facilities is the foundation of our global
operations. They are strategically located
close to raw material supplies and close to
markets to meet the on-time demands of
customers and to capitalise on emerging
opportunities across the globe.
*Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh

Suryapet, Telangana
Kurnool, Andhra Pradesh

Ballari, Karnataka

Map not to scale

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHY (%) *

1
2

AFRICA

ASIA (EXCLUDING THE MIDDLE EAST)
EUROPE

MIDDLE EAST

NORTH AMERICA (EXCLUDING USA)
USA

OTHER

20

2019 2018

* By location of customers
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NORTH AMERICA EUROPE
{ }
..
o, Candiac
# Cherepovets
# Hamilton # Kedzierzyn-Kozle
* Purvis, Mississippi #Castrop-Rauxel
* Gramercy, Louisiana Duisburg
*Norco, Louisiana Uithoorn
* Chalmette, Louisiana #Zelzate
*Lake Charles, Louisiana
*Robinson, Illinois
Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh # Kedzierzyn-Kozle *Lake Charles, Louisiana * Gramercy, Louisiana

GERMANY RUSSIA * Robinson, Illinois *.Norco, Louisiana

# Castrop-Rauxel # Cherepovets * Chalmette, Louisiana * Purvis, Mississippi
[

# Zelzate # Hamilton * CPC- Calcined Petroleum Coke Plant

® #CTP-Coal Tar Pitch Plant

ADVANCED MATERIALS CEMENT

GERMANY CANADA INDIA

Duisburg Candiac Suryapet, Telangana Kurnool, Andhra Pradesh
([ ]
Castrop-Rauxel Ballari, Karnataka
[ ] [ ]
THE NETHERLANDS BELGIUM Waste-heat Recovery @ Waste-heat Recovery
Power Plant Steam Plant
Uithoorn** Zelzate
Y ® Fly-ash Handling Facility, along

with Cement Packing Plant
**To close in March 2020

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



FROM THE VICE CHAIRMAN'S DESK

Carbon Calcination Plant in Vizag, India

Momentum. Profitability.
High performance.

Dear Shareholders,

During the first six months of 2019, many of the challenges that
impacted our businesses in late 2018 persisted, in particular: continued
softness in the Chinese economy; reduced automotive sales in China,
Europe, the UK and Japan, which impacted demand for raw materials
that we produce for aluminium, automobile tyres and adhesives;

and disruption to our calcination business due to India’s restrictions
on petroleum coke imports, resulting in high-cost inventories in a
declining market that reduced profit margins.

The good news is that during the second half of 2019, earnings for our
Carbon business segment began a slow but steady return to historically
normal levels as we worked through our high-cost inventory of green
petroleum coke (GPC). In addition, we saw an uptick in coal tar pitch
sales volumes due in part to the resolution of US sanctions against Russia,

10 RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Looking ahead, we expect 2020 to be a
milestone year from a projects perspective
as we complete several important
expansions that will enable us to produce
essential ‘materials for today and
tomorrow’. And in doing so, these projects
and the materials produced should generate
new revenue streams that should positively
impact our performance beginning in 2021,
once we stabilise operations at the new
facilities and gain customer acceptance of
our new products.

thus fully restoring a market in which we have
had a strong presence. On the Advanced Materials
side of the business, we saw improved demand for
our environment-friendly sealer-base products
and PETRORES® specialty coatings, which are
used in lithium-ion batteries, energy storage

and other specialty applications. Performance

by our Cement segment also improved during
2019, with an increase in volumes coupled

with higher realisations. Also contributing to

our Cement business’ performance was a cost-
optimisation initiative and the generation of
electricity from waste-heat recovery as we do in our
calcination business.

As aresult, our operating profit for the year was

% 17,427 million. Clearly, that is disappointing
coming on the heels of exceptional earnings in
2017 and a relatively strong ¥ 21,411 million of
operating profit in 2018. However, a comparison of
earnings during the first and second half of 2019
leads us to believe that the business is returning to
near-normal performance levels.

Looking ahead, we expect 2020 to be a milestone
year from the projects perspective as we complete
several important expansions that will enable

us to produce essential ‘materials for today and
tomorrow’. And in doing so, these projects and
the materials produced should generate new
revenue streams that should positively impact our
performance beginning in 2021, once we stabilise

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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PROGRESS
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operations at the new facilities and gain customer acceptance of our new
products. Completion of these projects will further solidify our presence
in existing markets and enable us to create new markets in the coming
years. We believe these projects will also support our efforts to advance in
a sustainable way.

In our Carbon segment, we will be commissioning our new vertical-
shaft calciner in the Special Economic Zone (SEZ) near Visakhapatnam
in the state of Andhra Pradesh, India. Once commissioned, the new
plant will have a production capacity of 0.37 million tonnes per annum
(MTPA)—adding to our current global capacity of 2.10 MTPA—and it
will leverage technology that will enable us to produce high-density
calcined petroleum coke (CPC), while cogenerating electricity from
our waste gases. The new shaft calciner will also position the Company
to meet the growing demand by anode producers in Asia and the
Middle East, which are expected to be the largest-growing markets for
aluminium outside of China over the next few years.

The plant’s anticipated first quarter 2020 start-up was delayed due to
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, while we also continue to seek
resolution regarding our request to bring GPC feedstock into the SEZ.

In parallel, we have developed a new material called anhydrous
carbon pellets (ACP) that will serve as a feedstock for calcination. ACP
is a specially engineered, value-added material that we have been
developing since 2011. After years of testing and refinement, we are
confident of our ability to produce ACP on a commercial scale and are
installing equipment to manufacture this proprietary carbon material
at our Chalmette calcining plant in the US and near the new shaft
calciner in India.

Just as important, the shaft calciner incorporates a state-of-the-art
liquid ammonia FGD system that will remove ~99% of the plant’s SO2
emissions - thus addressing the Government of India’s ambitious
clean-air goals, which were the basis of the Honourable Supreme
Court’s decision in July 2018 to restrict petroleum coke imports. In fact,
the Company is the only calciner in India with installed SO2 scrubbing
equipment since the commencement of operations, both at the new
shaft calciner and our existing rotary calciner in Visakhapatnam. In
addition to making the shaft calciner the most environment-friendly
plant of its kind in the world, the liquid-ammonia scrubbing system
will convert the gases into ammonium sulphate, which will be supplied
to Indian farmers as fertiliser.

In our Advanced Materials segment, we will begin commercial
operation of our new hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins (HHCR) plant
at our Castrop-Rauxel facility in Germany in the first half of 2020. Once
operational, the state-of-the-art plant—permitted for up to 50,000
TPA—will have an initial annual production capacity of 30,000 TPA
and will serve as the cornerstone of our Advanced Materials segment.

This facility, with its patented process technology and product
innovations, will enable us to produce ‘materials for tomorrow’'—
including our new NOVARES® pure resins—that will help customers
meet changing regulatory requirements and satisfy growing
societal demand for cleaner, faster and lighter products. These



FROM THE VICE CHAIRMAN'S DESK

While we are in the business of creating
essential raw materials that make possible
so many of the everyday products that
people around the world rely on, we have
more than 2,700 employees in three
continents who are equally committed to
ensuring that we do what is right for the
environment as a whole.

‘water-white’ resins will match the purity of
any competing products available, and they
will provide customers with a better alternative
for such applications as food packaging and
hygiene products.

The increasing popularity of electric vehicles
(EVs) presents additional opportunities for our
Advanced Materials business. Specifically, we are
excited about the continued growth potential for
PETRORES®, based on forecasts indicating that
total consumption of carbon-based materials
for EVs—including aluminium and lithium-ion
batteries—is expected to grow 20% annually
over the next few years. The Company is well
positioned to serve those markets and help
satisfy the world’s growing appetite for more
environment-friendly manufacturing processes
and end products.

In India—the birthplace of the Company—the
‘materials for today’ produced by our subsidiary
company RAIN Cements Limited under the
brand “Priya Cement”, are providing a solid

foundation for many of the new housing and other

infrastructure projects underway in the southern
states of Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Tamil Nadu,
Karnataka, Kerala, Maharashtra and Pondicherry.
This led to an 11% increase in volume compared to
the previous year.

Looking ahead, continued infrastructure and
housing development should translate to strong
demand for cement in the coming years. Coupled
with a limited expansion of production capacity
throughout the industry, we anticipate improved
plant utilisation rates and increased earnings
across the cement sector.
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While we are in the business of creating essential materials that make
possible so many of the everyday products that people around the
world rely on, we have more than 2,700 employees on three continents
who are equally committed to ensuring that we do what is right for the
environment as a whole.

Corporate social responsibility is part of our DNA, and it is visible year-
round in the communities where we operate.

Similarly, our commitment to sustainability and the environment is
evident at our production facilities. In terms of our products, it begins with
‘upcycling’ industrial by-products—preventing them from being disposed
of as waste or burned as a polluting fuel source—to make materials
essential to the production of aluminium, EVs and many other every-day
products. But that is just the tip of the iceberg. We also use fly ash from
coal-fired power plants in the production of portland pozzolana cement,
which reduces our limestone consumption and lowers the risk that toxic
compounds in fly-ash slurry could leach into the ground from containment
ponds. Elsewhere, our coal tar-based NOVARES® resins enhance the
performance of automobile tyres, improving safety by providing better
traction and increasing fuel efficiency by reducing rolling resistance.

Operationally, our use of waste heat to generate more than 175 MW
of clean electricity and steam and the SO2 scrubbing equipment
installed at our existing calciners that eliminate up to 98% of the
SO2 from plant emissions are well documented. Less well known are
similar waste-heat recovery efforts in Germany and the reduction
of benzene emissions at our coal tar distillation facilities in Europe
and Canada as a result of our leak-detection-and-repair initiative.
And most recently, the development of anhydrous carbon pellets
(ACP) gives us a raw material that we believe will reduce SO2 and
CO2 emissions at our facilities during calcination - and help the
aluminium industry attain its sustainability goals.

One other area where our employees are focused on acting responsibly
is workplace safety. Last year, our Rain Carbon subsidiary launched
Quest for Zero, an initiative to become an incident-free organisation. In
fact, they completed 2019 with a total recordable incident rate of 0.29,
making it the safest year in the Company’s history, placing us among
companies considered ‘best-in-class’ in safety performance and moving
us closer to our long-term goal of zero incidents on an ongoing basis.

I am pleased to report that despite the disruption caused by the
coronavirus (COVID-19) and oil price volatility, the first quarter was
relatively good for our businesses. Looking at the second quarter,
however, we anticipate that reduced global demand for aluminium due
to the temporary closure of many automobile and airline-production
facilities could have a cascading effect on our Carbon and Advanced
Materials segments. Similarly, the recent crash in petroleum prices has
impacted our business. It will take us a quarter to reset pricing and
work through inventories.

We do believe, however, that once the HHCR facility and shaft calciner
begin commercial operation and complete a period of customer
product testing, they will provide new revenue streams and market
opportunities. At the same time, we know that continued fiscal

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Across our organisation, we have been doing
everything possible to keep our people safe
and plants operating so that we remain

a strong link in the global supply chain.

..We are cognisant that the continued
operation of our plants is not only crucial
for RAIN Group, but also for the industries
we serve; if our production is impacted, it
could have a negative effect on the broader
global economy.

discipline is imperative — especially given the
economic upheaval caused by coronavirus, which
we anticipate will be a factor through the year.

Fewer vehicles on the roads, in the air and

on the seas have impacted the production of

all petroleum products, including those that
directly touch our businesses. In response, we are
actively managing the fluctuating global supply
and demand for our raw materials and finished
products. We are also leveraging our strategic
logistical infrastructure advantages to maintain
a firm competitive footing during this period of
unprecedented global economic change.

Overall, we have been fortunate during the
global pandemic. In every country in Europe
and North America where stay-at-home orders
have been implemented, our plants have been
designated as ‘essential businesses’, because they
support critical industries such as aluminium,
steel, carbon black and petroleum refining. In
India, we shut down operations at our cement
plants in response to the lock-down orders
issued by the central and state governments.
Due to the nationwide lock-down, construction
activities came to a halt, and our customers

had to close their shops, resulting in lack of
demand for cement. Later, upon receiving the
requisite approvals from the state governments,
we restarted our operations in our Cement
Business in the last week of April, 2020. Further,
our Vizag carbon plant was permitted to

restart operations partially in the second week
of April, in compliance with the operating
permissions granted. This required minimising

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

OVERVIEW &
PROGRESS

13

contamination risks by reducing the number of employees and
contractors moving into and out of the plant to half.

Across our organisation, we have been doing everything possible

to keep our people safe and plants operating so that we remain a
strong link in the global supply chain. For example, employees who
are not directly involved in the production processes are working
from home to reduce the risk of contaminating those working in

our facilities. In addition, as a leading producer of active ingredients
found in disinfectants, we are using our chemical knowhow to
produce our own cleaning agents with disinfecting properties to
wipe down frequently touched surfaces on a regular basis. We are
cognisant that the continued operation of our plants is not only
crucial for the RAIN Group, but also for the industries we serve; if our
production is impacted, it could have a negative effect on the broader
global economy. The protective measures have also helped us reach
mechanical completion of our HHCR plant. We managed the final stage
of construction with more than 250 contractors in full compliance
with German COVID-19 regulations and without a single case of
infection. Meanwhile, the startup sequence for the HHCR facility has
been initiated.

At the RAIN Group, we always aim high and continue to improve

and make our accomplishments sustainable. When it comes to our
financial performance, we are aggressively managing our spending
by focusing on activities that add value for the Company, customers or
investors. We also have implemented rigorous cost-optimisation and
management programmes.

At the same time, we are moving away from ‘materials of yesterday’. Case
in point is the closure of the Uithoorn resins production facility in the
Netherlands that we announced last August. It was not an easy decision,
since it did have an impact on employees, families and the surrounding
community. However, the development of alternative products and
technologies has reduced demand for many of the resins produced at
Uithoorn and made some of the products nearly obsolete. The products
that were profitable at Uithoorn have been successfully transitioned and
are now being manufactured at our Duisburg facility in Germany. In
fact, during the first quarter of FY20, we realised 90% of the combined
volumes of both sites despite winding down production at Uithoorn.

Throughout 2020, we are committed to building on what we
accomplished during the previous year: improved financial performance
during the second half of 2019, the near-completion of our major

capital projects, and the introduction of new products such as ACP and
NOVARES® pure that could be real differentiators for us. By building on
these achievements and managing our costs, we believe 2020 will be a
year that positions the Company to advance sustainably.

Sincerely,

Jagan Reddy Nellore
Vice Chairman

Date: April 28,2020



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Fine balance
of growth and
sustainability

In a challenging and uncertain
business environment, we were able
to operate prudently and maintain
our long-term growth strategy.

* Average of five years

PROFIT AND LOSS METRICS

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS OPERATING PROFIT
(Zin million) (% in million)
115,609* 18,829*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

PROFIT AFTERTAX EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
(Zin million) ()
5,437 16.16*
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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PROGRESS
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BALANCE SHEET METRICS
TOTAL ASSETS NET WORTH BOOK VALUE PER SHARE
(US$ in millions) (US$ in millions) (®)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
NET DEBT NET DEBT TO NET WORTH NET DEBT TO OPERATING
(US$ in millions) (In multiples) PROFIT (In multiples)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BUSINESS SEGMENT-WISE METRICS

REVENUE OPERATING PROFIT

(%) (%)

2019 2019

2018 2018

CAPACITY UTILISATION

® @ Carbon
©® @ Advanced Materials
® @ Cement

2018 2019

16 RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



REVENUE BY END INDUSTRY
(%)

37 2019

OVERVIEW &
PROGRESS
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INDUSTRIES

Aluminium
Construction
Graphite

Carbon Black
Coatings
Distributor

Wood Preservation
Titanium Dioxide
Specialty Chemicals
Petroleum
Adhesives
Refractory

Rubber

Printing

Gypsum

Energy Generation

Others

CY 2019

OPERATING PROFIT
RECONCILIATION

PROFIT AFTERTAX
RECONCILIATION

Reported amount

15,968 3,914

Adjustments:

Inventory adjustments

206 160

Reorganisation costs towards plant closure in the Netherlands

1,076 807

Insurance claims related to prior periods

(326) (258)

Income from sale of land in Hanau, Germany

(156) (101)

Expenses towards strategic projects and other non-recurring items

789 572

Reversal of provisions relating to environmental issues

(128) (101)

Accelerated depreciation due to plant closure in the Netherlands

- 806

Tax adjustments

- (588)

Adjusted amount

17,427 5,211

Operating profit = Profit before depreciation and amortisation, impairment loss, interest and taxes adjusted with exceptional items, if any.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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MAKING DRIVING SAFER AND I ;
TOMOBILES MORE FUEL EFFICIENT
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ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

BETTER ON-ROAD
MOBILITY FOR ALL

Tyres play a crucial role in vehicle safety and fuel
efficiency. Our products reduce the rolling and
abrasion resistance of a tyre, which gives it a longer
life and reduces a car’s energy consumption. We also
produce a product that improves a tyre’s grip on wet
surfaces, which enhances its safety performance.

Our NOVARES® resins help tyre manufacturers achieve an
optimal balance between the grip required for safety and the
rolling and abrasion resistance required for longer life of tyres
and fuel efficiency.

NOVARES® resins are used as dispersing agents in the tyre
rubber compounds to optimise the balance between grip and
rolling as well as abrasion resistance at different rotational
speeds. In lower-speed situations and during breaking,

NOVARES® resins help to soften the tyre and improve traction.

In high-speed situations, it hardens the tyre to reduce rolling
and abrasion resistance.

FOCUSEDON
VALUE CREATION

19




BUSINESS MODEL

We sharpen our core

competencies responsibly

OUR LATENT STRENGTHS

WIDER REACH

Our presence in high-demand end markets

and our integrated low-cost logistics network
provide access to global raw material sources.

A hub-and-spoke production, blending and
distribution model provides efficient utilisation
of all processed materials and flexible selection
of markets globally.

SCALE AND SCOPE

Sustainable large-scale operations with
best-in-class technologies and sophisticated
processes produce superior raw materials,
enabling economies of scale.

LONG-TERM RELATIONSHIPS
We have enduring and long-term relationships
with customers and suppliers.

GROWING TALENT POOL

We are building a diverse team, and our
emphasis on meritocracy and responsible
leadership serves to motivate our people to
strive for excellence.

FINANCIAL

The generation of consistent, robust and free
cashflow builds capital to fund our future
growth strategies.

COMPLIANCE
We have embedded industry-defining standards
of quality and compliance in our operations.

MANAGEMENT

Experienced and committed leadership
team is focused on consistently seeking new
growth opportunities.

20

73%

CONTRIBUTION
TO OPERATING
PROFIT

18«

CONTRIBUTION
TO OPERATING
PROFIT

9
CONTRIBUTION

TO OPERATING
PROFIT

HOW WE OPERATE THE BUSINESS

CARBON

Primarily serves the aluminium
industry, along with the titanium
dioxide and steel manufacturing
industries globally

ADVANCED MATERIALS
Converts part of our carbon output,
petrochemicals and other raw materials
into high-value, environment-friendly
raw materials that are critical to various
industries globally

CEMENT

Under the brand name Priya Cement,

we manufacture high-quality,
high-performance cement to meet rising

urbanisation and sustainable construction

requirements in South India



FOCUSEDON
VALUE CREATION
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Our objective is to optimise our resource utilisation and leverage our competencies
to create sustainable value for our stakeholders. We serve fast-growing global

markets and rely on deep market research and analytics.

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

END USER INDUSTRY

0 UPCYCLE
O o 6 We extract additional value from by-products of various industries ALUMINIUM
CK? including refining, steel and coal-fired power generation by
responsibly transforming them for 21st-century applications.
Find out more on pages 22-25. ﬁ STEEL
\l/
©+ INNOVATION
Innovation is a part of our DNA. We consistently focus on innovation GRAPHITE
- and have a robust research-and-development arm that helps us
anticipate, pursue and develop sustainable solutions, optimising
product mix and conversion costs. REFRACTORY
Find out more on pages 26-27. 6
<:, EXPANSION
! . S O. S . . COATINGS
We are increasing our manufacturing capacity through brownfield and
greenfield expansions, and consequently are growing our market reach.
This enables us to leverage emerging sector-specific opportunities. @ AUTOMOTIVE
Find out more on pages 28-29.
STAKEHOLDERS WE SERVE @ CONSTRUCTION
/& INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
5 . .
N ) We deliver consistent financial returns to our shareholders. H PRINTING
L J
@ CUSTOMERS
*  Wemanufacture critical raw materials for a range of industries. WOOD TREATMENT
- 23
@+  EMPLOYEES ©
Our employees are go-getters who push the levers of our growth and @) 6 TITANIUM DIOXIDE
&L L transformation.
[(Jcy  SUPPLIERS @ ENERGY STORAGE/LITHIUM-ION
Our suppliers are a critical component of our value-creation journey. ——  BATTERIES
o O
SOCIETY 3
Our sustainable practices and social responsibility strengthen our AH SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
future-readiness. Operationally, we are introducing processes and
systems to reduce our carbon footprint and help our customers attain
their sustainability goals. We generate electricity and steam through @ ADHESIVE & PAINTS
the conversion of waste heat at nine of our facilities. Further, we have
installed FGD technology at four plants to reduce our ecological impact. p—
Our new vertical-shaft calciner nearing completion in India will also be O CARBON BLACK

equipped with cogeneration and FGD systems.



UPCYCLING

Extracting more from
by-products

Resource efficiency and carbon productivity

are foundations of our business model.

Rather than entirely relying on a fresh supply

of raw materials, we are upcycling industrial

by-products and transforming them into

critical raw materials for everyday products.

Deeper impact

The calcined petroleum coke and coal tar pitch manufactured
by our Rain Carbon Inc. subsidiary are combined to produce

anodes that are essential in aluminium smelting. In a world that

isincreasingly threatened by climate change, aluminium holds

significant value, as a lightweight metal for the production of

automobiles and energy-efficient buildings. A variety of products

that we use daily are made up of lightweight, high-strength,

corrosion-resistant and electrically conductive aluminium. Many

companies use the aluminium made possible by our CPC and

CTP for transportation, packaging and other applications as a

weight-reducing metal to reduce greenhouse-gas impacts.

Carbon upcycling value-chain

Upcycling in Carbon through calcination

Green petroleum coke (GPC), which we transform to produce calcined petroleum
coke (CPC), is a by-product of oil refining. Our calcination process yields a value-
added material (CPC) thatis an indispensable ingredient in the anodes required
for aluminium smelting. Without CPC, aluminium smelters would not be able to
produce this infinitely recyclable, strong, lightweight and versatile material that
has become the metal of choice for innumerable applications and products.

Our ability to upcycle GPC to a source of carbon for aluminium production
prevents the GPC from being burned as a low-cost fuel alternative to steam coal
in power production. As such, we are not just upcycling and facilitating the
production of environment-friendly aluminium; we’re also helping mitigate the
use of GPC in ways that adversely impact the environment and public health.

Beyond aluminium, our CPC s also used to produce high-strength steel to
construct bridges, skyscrapers and other infrastructure, and it is an ingredient
used in the production of titanium dioxide that is implemented by paint and
pharmaceutical companies.

Our new anhydrous carbon pellets (see page 27) is another example of how we
are using science and engineering to turn industrial by-products into
value-added materials that also offer environmental benefits. We believe
calcined anhydrous carbon pellets, used in the production of anodes, will
enable aluminium smelters to reduce their energy consumption and emissions.

CALCINATION
______________ . e e e e e e - - - —-—————Z-
i CALCINED PETROLEUM « ALUMINIUM
B COKE - STEEL
« TIO:
—————————————— ®- @ =====--ccotoe
]
GREEN | CALCINATION | Qg,
PETROLEUM COKE* : & WHRSYSTEM : ’E’ 0 0O
]
| I B
i t==--@ T=——-c—====—-- @ =
: ENERGY THIRD PARTIES
________________ e o e o o
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Green petroleum coke (GPC), a by-product in crude oil refining, is upcycled, through the calcination process to produce CPC, which is a critical
material in the anodes required for aluminium smelting. There are no known commercially viable substitutes for CPC in aluminium smelting.

Without calcination, GPC would continue to be used as a fuel.

* refinery by-product

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



FOCUSEDON
VALUE CREATION

23

Upcycling in Carbon
thl‘OUgh distillation Developing an eco-friendly binder

Our proprietary CARBORES® binder is an innovative engineered pitch product that
combines the advantages of coal tar pitch (CTP) and phenolic resins. CARBORES® is an
environment-friendly alternative to CTP.

Coal taris another industrial by-product that we
upcycle through distillation. It is a liquid by-product
derived from the conversion of coal into metallurgical

coke used for pig iron and steel production that has no In 2001, we introduced CARBORES® to the market. It contains 90% less toxic substances
significant alternative use. Without distillation coal tar than traditional electrode binder materials and has opened new markets and
would be burned as a fuel or disposed as a hazardous opportunities for the Company, especially in the refractory industry.

waste to prevent it from contaminating waterways and
groundwater. Moreover, our ability to distill coal tar into
coal tar pitch and other carbon products makes possible
arange of downstream products such as aluminium,
creosote for wood treatment and preservation, carbon
black oil for automobile tyres and much more.

The property profile of CARBORES® also allows it to be used as a substitute for standard
CTP in many applications. The product’s market reach has encouraged us to further
improve the environmental qualities of CARBORES®.

Carbon upcycling value-chain

DISTILLATION l @ ' @

There is no known commercially viable substitute for
CTP in aluminium smelting. Without distillation, coal tar
would continue to be used as fuel.

OTHER PRIMARY COAL RAIN'S DOWNSTREAM PROCESSING
TARDISTILLATES

+ ALUMINIUM - REFRACTORY
« GRAPHITE
| i
COAL TAR* : DISTILLATION : OTHER CARBON - WOoD « CONSTRUCTION
: : PRODUCTS TREATMENT » PRINTING
1 : - CARBON BLACK OIL - CARBON
\ | - NAPHTHALENE BLACK
! l - CREOSOTE
! : - OTHEROILS
[ ] |
: Coal tar, a by-product in blast-furnace plants of pig-iron : :
I or steel mills, would be upcycled, through distillation | !
1 X L L. |
| Pprocess, to produce coal tar pitch, which is a critical ) |
: material in the anodes required for aluminium smelting. : !
[ |
[ |
[ |
[ |

* By-product of metallurgical coke manufacturing process

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



UPCYCLING

Making advanced materials
by upcycling

Through distillation, the Company is creating a range
of value-added materials such as coal tar pitch—another
critical ingredient used in the production of anodes for
aluminium smelting—as well as naphthalene, carbon
black oil and creosote oil. These upcycled products
from our coal tar distillation process are further refined
to create advanced materials.

Making advanced materials by upcycling

Dy, Dy

‘CARBON LINKING' HEAVY INDUSTRIES AND
DOWNSTREAM USERS

We deploy our technology and resources to convert by-products from various
industries into value-added raw materials that are essential ingredients for
everyday products. We create additional value from these by-products and
prevent them from being disposed or burned.

As a global leader in the production of materials critical to users of carbon
products, we connect heavy industries and downstream users by acting as a
critical carbon link between them.

We touch lives by contributing to:
TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATION

Creosote oil is one of the primary aromatic oils we distill from coal tar. It is used
to preserve wood products, such as railway sleepers and utility and telephone
poles, and can extend their useful life for up to 30 years. By prolonging the
useful life of these products, our creosote oil reduces the need to harvest trees
for these applications.

BUILDING INSULATION

Naphthalene oil is one of the primary distillates we produce from the distillation
of coal tar. We refine naphthalene oil into naphthalene and further process
naphthalene into phthalic anhydride, which is an essential raw material for
high-tech polyurethane thermal-insulation solutions used in building
construction. Insulating and sealing a building helps reduce greenhouse gas
emissions associated with the burning of fossil fuels to generate electricity and
heat in the buildings.

_______________________ -
|

* NAPHTHALENE : » RESINS » TYRES
: - NAPHTHALENE DERIVATES + ASPHALT SEALERS
: « PETROCHEMICAL INTERMEDIATES + CONSTRUCTION CHEMICALS
: « ENGINEERED PRODUCTS - INSULATION FOAMS
: - FIBRES
: - BINDERS

Various by-products in the distillation of coal tar are further
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processed to produce ‘advanced materials’ for greener products.
The RAIN Group upcycles ‘chemicals’ into ‘advanced materials’.
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Upcycling in Cement

Our upcycling efforts also extend to the Cement business, where
we blend fly ash produced as a scrap | waste-material of coal-fired
power generation with clinker to produce our portland pozzolana
cement (PPC), which is used in buildings and other construction
applications that require high-strength concrete.

To avoid environmental hazards, power companies are required
to isolate the fly ash in containment ponds that require vast land
parcels and huge quantities of water to convert the ash into a
manageable slurry.

Our ability to use fly ash in PPC reduces the risk of an
environmental catastrophe that could occurin the event of a
containment-pond failure. It also enables us to produce 50% more
cement using the same amount of limestone, thus extending our
reserves of this valuable raw material for use by future generations.

Over the last few years, we have significantly reduced our
production of OPC, as we are gradually shifting to the more
eco-friendly PPC. PPC accounted for nearly three-fourths (75%)
of total cement production in 2019.

Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India
] R S ) YL Y |

Making high-quality cement through upcycling

|
CLINKER GRINDING : PORTLAND POZZOLANA CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS
WITH FLY ASH* : CEMENT AND OTHER CIVIL STRUCTURES

|

|

|

|

|

|

1 1
I The fly ash generated in thermal power plants is usually dumped into ash ponds to avoid environmental hazards |
: of contamination. We blend fly ash to produce portland pozzolana cement, thereby upcycling fly ash into building :
I materials. This process optimises the use of limestone and preserves the same for future generation. 1
1 1

* Fly ash is a scrap produced by coal-fired thermal power plants

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



INNOVATION

Crafting sustainable
solutions relentlessly

Benefits of molten NOVARES® pure resins

« Significantly reduced production cycle time

« Reduced energy consumption

e Reduced labour time compared to handling of solid pastilles
in bags
o No packaging scrap to handle and dispose

26

We think laterally, beyond the well-trodden path, with an objective
of crafting innovative solutions that have transformed peoples’
lives for the coming ages. Today, our RED efforts are focused on
sustainability—specifically, to proactively address global trends,
challenges and the resulting changing regulatory requirements.

In doing so, we continue to address societal expectations for the
21st century’s cleaner, faster and lighter products and applications.

Our relentless R&D initiatives have enabled us to:

» Pioneer aromatic chemistry in Germany

» Develop anhydrous carbon pellets, PETRORES®, CARBORES® and our new
NOVARES® pure ‘water-white’ resins

With the rise of mobile and cloud technologies, customers have become more
empowered—and their expectations continue to evolve. Customers seek
better products—those that are sustainable and help reduce environmental
impact. Our focus revolves around customer aspirations, and we continue to
develop products with reduced volatile organic emissions.

Water-white resins

As the European market leader for aromatic hydrocarbon resins and specialty
modifiers, we expect to begin commercial production of a new generation of
advanced hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins during the first half of 2020.
These resins will be manufactured at our Castrop-Rauxel facility in Germany.
These ‘water-white’ resins—including our new, proprietary NOVARES® pure
resins—will offer industry-leading purity, which is increasingly important for
food packaging and hygiene products.

Another key attribute of these advanced resins is their availability in both liquid
and solid forms—and our ability to produce customised resins with varying
softening points and partial hydration—which should enable us to expand an
already strong customer base within the European adhesive industry.

30 KTPA

ANNUAL INITIAL PRODUCTION
CAPACITY OF WATER-WHITE
RESINS IN EUROPE
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Other types of resins

With our R&D expertise, we improved liquid resins
through the optimisation of process technology at our
Duisburg facility in Germany. This resulted in improved
resin colour, from 6 (yellow brown) on the Gardner
colour scale to 2 (nearly water-white).

During 2019, we introduced resins for water-based
epoxy coatings. We expect them to produce sustainable
sales in the coming years, given the growing customer
demand for greener raw materials with reduced
environmental impact.

For the adhesives and rubber industries, we developed
solid resins using pure raw materials such as alpha
methyl styrene. These resins are used in paper and
packaging hotmelts for indirect food contact, and
they should result in reduced product weight for the
adhesives industry. For the rubber sector, these pure
monomer-based solid resins can improve the rolling
resistance of passenger car tyres, which will be one of the
most desired properties in tyres in the years ahead—as
manufacturers and consumers look for improved fuel
economy and reduced environmental impact.

Upgraded technology and other improvements in the
rubber lab at our Duisburg facility will enable us to
better understand the effect of our products on physical
rubber properties. This will help us improve the market
for our products and our ability to sell them to the right
customer segments.

Custom-sized CPC

In 2019, we commissioned new equipment at our
Robinson, Illinois, calcination facility in the US. This

has enabled us to create custom-sized CPC for customers
who use this material in non-anode applications such

as titanium dioxide production. We expect that this
innovation—coupled with the plant’s proximity to users
of non-anode-grade CPC compared with alternative
suppliers—should enable the Robinson plant to diversify
and grow its traditional customer base.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

FOCUSEDON
VALUE CREATION
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Anhydrous Carbon Pellet (ACP)

Rain Carbon has developed proprietary technology to manufacture anhydrous
carbon pellets (ACP) during the past decade. The manufactured spherical, high-
density, carbon pellets for calcination will ultimately be used in the production of
anodes for aluminium smelting. We believe anode and aluminium producers will
be attracted to ACP’s potentially superior performance profile, including potential
reduced energy consumption and emissions, which will enable our customers—as
well as the Company—to advance sustainably.

Why do we need ACP?

o ACP improves the yield or production of calcined petroleum coke (CPC) per tonne of green
petroleum coke (GPC) for anhydrous carbon pellets fed into our kilns. This has a direct
economic benefit for Rain Carbon by reducing the cost of raw-materials.

o It reduces fine carbon particles from being carried over from our kilns that consequently
are being combusted in our pyro-scrubbers. This reduces our SO2 and CO2 emissions per
tonne of CPC produced.

o When calcined, ACP is a higher bulk-density product than CPC. This is due to a
combination of lower porosity in calcined ACP and the spherical particle shape of the
calcined pellets. A spherical product always packs to a higher bulk density relative to
irregular-shaped CPC particles. This offers the potential for anode producers to make
higher density anodes that last longer in the electrolysis process.

o A second potential performance benefit is reduction of anode electrical resistivity. This
could ultimately reduce anode voltage drop, allowing smelter operation with lower
power consumption.

o ACP also allows the production of higher bulk density CPC in a vertical-shaft calciner.
An added benefit is the elimination of the dusting problem that typically comes with shaft
CPC. The GPC fines normally stay with the shaft CPC product, but ACP will resolve this
problem and improve product quality.



EXPANSIONS

Sustainability is also
a matter of scale

During 2019, we continued to invest to leverage
emerging opportunities as soon as green shoots
of growth appear across our global footprint.
The objective is to continue to create enhanced

value for all stakeholders.

We are making strategic investments to increase our production capacities and
optimise assets. During 2019, we announced several expansion projects, along with
operational improvements.

Carbon - Ready for a lucrative market

Over the next few years, the demand for carbon products such as coal tar

pitch (CTP) and calcined petroleum coke (CPC) is expected to grow significantly
in India and the Middle East. To reinforce our market leadership as a

provider of premium carbon products, we have undertaken several capacities
expansions projects.

VERTICAL-SHAFT KILN CPC PLANT

Avertical-shaft kiln CPC plant with annual production capacity of 370,000
tonnes per annum is under construction in Andhra Pradesh Special Economic
Zone (SEZ), Atchutapuram, Visakhapatnam, India. This plant is expected to
add significant value to us as it is our first CPC plant using vertical-shaft kiln
technology; our other CPC plants use rotary-kiln technology. Once operational
in 2020, the plant will produce various CPC grades to be blended with the CPC
produced in our rotary kilns to meet customers’ demand for high-density

CPC. This plant will utilise a state-of-the-art liquid-ammonia gas-scrubbing
technology. While the introduction of this advanced FGD technology has
increased the project costs of the shaft calciner, it will enable us to virtually
eliminate the plant’s SO2 emissions. The added benefit is the production of a
valuable by-product, ammonium sulphate, which is widely used as a fertiliser in
agricultural applications, making it a highly sustainable process.

Carbon Calcination Plant in Lake Charles, Louisiana, USA
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Advanced Materials -
Ready for niche markets

An increasing number of customers are demanding
products that cater to specialised applications and are
eco-friendly, too. To meet this demand, we rely heavily
on innovation and technology, and focus our efforts on
setting up an advanced production facility.

HYDROGENATED
HYDROCARBON RESINS

Hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins (HHCR) are
‘white-water’ resins used as adhesives in food
packaging and personal-hygiene products, as they are
contaminant-free. They also serve as a backbone for
polymers in new high-strength adhesives. To serve a
growing market for these resins, we are constructing
an HHCR manufacturing facility in Castrop-Rauxel

in Germany, which is expected to begin commercial
operations during the first half of 2020 and achieve
stabilisation during 2020 and 2021.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India \\,

Cement - Ready for one of India’s
largest markets

Our Cement business caters to India’s drive for rapid urbanisation by providing
high-quality cement, while also working to mitigate our environmental impact.
Therefore, we are upgrading our existing facilities and continuously monitoring
our manufacturing processes to identify areas for further improvement.

WHR POWER PLANT

We commissioned a WHR power plant in Suryapet, Telangana, in January 2020.
It is completely operational and is providing gross power generation per hour
of ~4.1 MW when the kiln is operational. This facility will help us substantially
save on electricity, augmenting the existing capacity of 6.4 MW at the Kurnool
cement plant.

UPGRADING THE LINE 1 CEMENT MILL

We have initiated an upgrade of the line 1 cement mill at the Kurnool plant,
which will facilitate an increase in production from 50 tonnes per hour to

155 tonnes per hour. The project is estimated to be completed before the second
half of 2020 and is expected to help reduce consumption of electricity. With
our existing manufacturing plants and capacity expansions, we are confident
in our ability to meet current demand for high-quality cement and expected
near-term growth.
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BUSINESSES
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CIRCULAR ECONOMY
SHOWS THE WAY FORWARD

Businesses face new challenges every day. On one hand,
they deal with increasingly constrained resources; on

the other hand, they grapple with demanding customers
and markets. To satisfy both, the solution lies in decoupling
growth from resource use, and evolving to create a

new economic paradigm of ‘reduce, reuse and recycle’.

This circular economy is the logical outcome as it reconciles
revenue growth and social impact.

Aluminium, with its diverse uses and sources, is one of the key components
in the development of a circular economy. It is recyclable, and nearly 75%

of the aluminium ever produced is still in use today. At the same time,

itis lightweight, making it among the most sought-after materials on

the planet for transportation, packaging and other applications. In fact,
countless products that are staples in our lives today would not exist
without the benefits of this versatile metal.

Aluminium is essential for the development of a low-carbon,
energy-efficient economy. For example, automobile manufacturers
worldwide are increasingly turning to aluminium as the key material in
their vehicles and components to reduce weight, improve fuel efficiency
and cut down emissions. Aluminium also enables energy-efficient
buildings and low-carbon products, and it is a crucial metal for high-
voltage power transmission lines and renewable power grids.

Due to its enormous range of applications, the growing demand for
aluminium cannot be met with only recycled materials; primary
aluminium production is essential to meet the world’s evolving
expectations. However, the industrial production of primary aluminium
requires two carbon materials—calcined petroleum coke (CPC) and coal tar
pitch (CTP)—and currently there are no commercially available substitutes
for CPC or CTP in primary aluminium smelting.

With an annual capacity of 2.1 million tonnes of CPC, we are the world’s
second-largest CPC producer—and that will increase to 2.5 million

tonnes later this year with the commissioning of our new vertical-shaft
calciner in India. We are also the world’s top producer of CTP and the only
manufacturer of value-added ACP. In this way we indirectly contribute

to the circular concept of aluminium recycling. Our products ensure the
production of aluminium, which can later on be recycled and keptin a
circular lifecycle.




BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW: CARBON

Manufacturing
essential raw materials
for critical industries

The RAIN Group is the world’s largest producer of coal tar
pitch (CTP) and the second-largest manufacturer of calcined
petroleum coke (CPC). Rain Carbon Inc., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the RAIN Group, manufactures CPC and CTP to
serve as critical raw materials in the production of primary
aluminium and other products.

CONTRIBUTION IN 2019

2,616 mMm1PA X 81,225 Mn

SALES VOLUME REVENUE

66% 16%

CONTRIBUTION TO OPERATING

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE MARGIN
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CPC and CTP are high-value, carbon-based
commodities produced by transforming the
by-products of oil refining and metallurgical coke
production, respectively. In addition to aluminium,
they are vital for industries like graphite, carbon black,
wood preservation, titanium dioxide and refractory.

With innovation as our cornerstone, we maximise the
performance of our products to create value for our
customers. We anticipate the future requirements of
our customers and develop sustainable solutions to

OUR
BUSINESSES
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improve their business performance. Recently, we developed a new material
called anhydrous carbon pellets (ACP) to mitigate the potential global shortage
of anode-grade GPCin future. We are developing facilities in India and the US
for its commercial production. Elsewhere, working with one of the European
aluminium smelters, we have developed a new environmentally friendly binder
for reducing emissions at smelters.

Our commitment to sustainability in our Carbon segment is evidenced by our
eco-friendly and energy-efficient practices, which include ~164 MW of power
and steam cogeneration capacity at our calcination and distillation facilities
using WHR technology and FGD systems in India and the US for recovery of SO2.

Product review
PRODUCTS RAW MATERIALS MANUFACTURING USES RAIN'S

USED PROCESS CAPACITIES
CALCINED Green petroleum coke CPC can be produced Raw material in Seven production

PETROLEUM (GPC), a by-product of using rotary-kiln the production units with

COKE (CPC) crude oil refining and vertical-shaft of primary an aggregate
technologies utilising aluminium, steel production capacity
a high-temperature and titanium of ~2.1million
process—calcining— dioxide tonnes per annum
that removes moisture (MTPA)
and volatile matter
from GPC

COALTARPITCH Coal tar, a by-product of CTP is produced Raw material used Four coal tar

(CTP) metallurgical coke, used in through the by the aluminium, distillation plants

the iron and steel industry distillation of coal graphite and with a total capacity

tar. Distillation is a refractory of 1.3 MTPA in Europe
process that separates industries and North America

components of a
product based on
different boiling points

OTHER CARBON
PRODUCTS
(CREOSOTE OIL,
CARBON BLACK OIL)

Same as CTP

Same as CTP

Used as raw
materials by the
wood treatment,
carbon black,
construction and
other industries

Same as CTP

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW: CARBON

Analysing the trends

Despite a disappointing performance during 2019,
we see several emerging opportunities for our
Carbon business.

INDUSTRIAL LANDSCAPE

Aluminium is required for a variety of applications,
including transportation and packaging. It is
concurrently lightweight and durable, which contributes
to enhanced fuel efficiency and reduced emissions

when used for various purposes. Aluminium is also
increasingly utilised for developing energy-efficient
buildings, electric and hybrid vehicles, sustainable
beverage packing, high-voltage power transmission lines
and renewable power grids.

However, in 2019, the aluminium market was weak as
London Metal Exchange prices fell following a surging
supply. The glut occurred as a second large North
American aluminium smelter restarted idled capacity,
and aleading Brazilian producer resumed full-scale
production of aluminium following a 50% curtailment
in 2018.

Additionally, the cost diminished for alumina—a key

raw material for aluminium production—following the
resolution of Brazil’s mining situation and the ramp-up of
three facilities in Russia, after the resolution of potential
US sanctions there. This oversupply led to curtailment

of high-cost plants, especially in Europe and China,
simultaneously benefiting cost-efficient facilities, which
expanded capacities in places like the Middle East.

REGULATORY LANDSCAPE

In October 2018, the Supreme Court of India restricted
the import of GPC by Indian calciners to a maximum of
1.4 million tonnes per year and constrained the import
of CPC to aluminium smelting companies only, and at a
maximum of 0.5 million tonnes per year. This impacted
our CPC production and blending capacities in India.
Moreover, the inability to import the required amounts
of CPC and GPC has affected our cost-effective strategy
of importing GPC and CPC, blending CPC in India and
selling to the world.
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The Supreme Court also ordered the Ministry of Environment and Forest to develop
emissions and environmental standards for calciners. At the RAIN Group, our
calcining operations in India include FGD systems that remove ~98% of SO2 from
our emissions, and thus we expect no challenges when these new standards

are implemented.

During the year, we also realised major advances in the development of our
proprietary, alternative raw material for calcination—anhydrous carbon

pellets (ACP)—which has been under development by the RAIN Group since

2011. Beyond the environmental and performance advantages of ACP used in
calcination, this engineered and value-added raw material will also help to de-
risk the Company's Indian calcination business, given the restrictions placed on
the import of our traditional key raw materials, GPC and CPC, with an ability to
use non-anode grade GPC, that available domestically.

Key highlights 2019

o CPCrevenue decreased primarily due to price decreases in North America and
Asia markets

« Increase in pitch revenue driven by higher volumes, due to improved
availability of raw material and sales to non-traditional markets

« Continued construction of vertical-shaft calciner in India
o Successfully imported first shipment of ACP into India

« Began construction of commercial-scale ACP production facilities in India
and the US

« Shipped the largest single CTP cargo in the world with reduced transportation
emissions due to the increased shipment size

Preparing for tomorrow

As the world’s second-leading manufacturer of CPC, our production capacity
will increase from 2.1 MTPA to ~2.5 MPTA following the start of the new vertical-
shaft calciner in India during the first half of 2020. This increased capacity

will enable us to cater to the growing aluminium production in India and the
Middle East.

Elsewhere, the commissioning of new production facilities in India and the

US for our proprietary ACP in 2020 will ensure we have enough feedstock for

the shaft calciner. Our ability to produce ACP on a commercial scale will also
provide us with a revolutionary carbon material that we believe offers anode and
aluminium customers a CPC alternative that can lower energy consumption,
reduce emissions and help them achieve their sustainability goals.

We are also making additional investments at our Vizag facility to expand its
warehouse capacity to store incremental volumes of GPC and CPC required for
the vertical-shaft calciner and ACP production plant under construction in the
Andhra Pradesh Special Economic Zone. Further, we are acquiring additional
rail cars in Europe to transport incremental volumes of coal tar and coal tar pitch
resulting from higher capacity utilisation of our joint-venture distillation

plant in Russia.
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Transforming industrial
by-products into a range
of essential raw materials

The RAIN Group is a global leader in the production of
advanced materials with a manufacturing capacity of 0.7

MTPA. We leverage innovative technology for the downstream
transformation of a portion of our carbon output, petrochemicals
and other raw materials. The advanced materials that we
produce, serve as eco-friendly, high-value raw materials critical
to various industries, including specialty chemicals, coatings,
construction, automotive, petroleum and energy storage.

Our production facilities are in Germany, Canada, Belgium and the
Netherlands. We have two parallel production processes: a) downstream
processing and refining of aromatic distillates and b) using crude benzene and
petroleum derivatives like Cg and C10 as raw materials.

CONTRIBUTION IN 2019

442mr1PA X 31,348 Mn

SALES VOLUME REVENUE
: 105
=1 26% %
¥ Carbon Distillation and Advanced Materials Plant = CONTRIBUTIONTO OPERATING

in Castrop-Rauxel, Germany . CONSOLIDATED REVENUE MARGIN

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW: ADVANCED MATERIALS

Product review
PRODUCTS RAW MATERIALS MANUFACTURING USES RAIN'S
USED PROCESS CAPACITIES
NAPHTHALENE Naphthalene oil Produced from our « Naphthalene Belgium, Canada
DERIVATES internal production of « Phthalic and Germany
naphthalene oil, which anhydride (PA)
is further processed Pol hthal
into downstream ° 01%’ napht ?’I\?ge
products—PA and sulfonates (PNS)
PNS/polycarboxylate  Modifiers
ether (PCE) liquids—
that serve as key raw
materials in various
industries
PETROCHEMICAL Crude benzene and Distillation of crude « Benzene Belgium and
INTERMEDIATES cracker residues benzene « Toluene Germany
» Xylene
« Solvents
« Fuel additives
RESINS Carboindene Downstream refining « Carbon resins Germany and the
Cg feedstock of naphthalene and « Hvdrocarbon Netherlands*
other inputs y,
resins
o Pure resins
« Hydrogenated
resins
« Phenolics
ENGINEERED Pitch and Manufactured from * CARBORES® Belgium and
PRODUCTS petroleum tar a highly reduced « PETRORES® Germany

concentration of
polycyclic aromatic
hydrocarbons (PAHs)

« Sealer coatings

* Site in the Netherlands to close in Q1 2020.
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RESINS AND MODIFIERS

Our resins are sold under the following brand names:

« Coal tar- and petrochemical-based resins

NOVARES®

o Low-cost petrochemical based resins

MULTIRES®

» Low-cost petrochemical based resins

NOVABOOST® & NOVADEST®

Best-selling advanced materials

The eco-friendly CARBORES® and PETRORES® products
are our top-selling engineered products to refractory and
lithium-ion battery producers.

ECO-FRIENDLY ENGINEERED
PRODUCTS

CARBORES® is a substitute binder used in
carbon-containing refractory and graphite
products, manufactured from a highly reduced
concentration of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons
(PAHs). This proprietary pitch product combines
the advantages of coal tar pitch products and
phenolic resins.

PETRORES® is another engineered product used in
specialty applications such as lithium-ion batteries
and energy storage.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

OUR
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Analysing the trends

The performance of our Advanced Materials segment fluctuates with market
conditions. During 2019, we observed weakness in the pricing of our larger-
volume products as a result of a tepid liquid-fuels market.

During 2019, our business segments were adversely affected by a sluggish
automotive industry worldwide. In addition, falling demand for steel and its
downstream impact on steel suppliers compressed the graphite and refractory
markets, our other key customers.

However, with growing global emphasis on more efficient energy-storage and
electric vehicles, industry demand for lithium-ion batteries has heightened,
directly affecting the requirement for PETRORES®. Similarly, increasing focus on
environmental stewardship has resulted in strong demand for our eco-friendly
pavement sealer base, and the growing demand for cleaner end products should
create strong market interest in our new NOVARES® pure ‘water-white’ resins.

Key highlights 2019

« Revenue decreased due to decline in volumes, lower realisation and changes
in foreign exchange rates

» Lower prices in engineered products and petrochemical intermediates driven
by sluggish demand in steel and graphite industries coupled with lower
oil-related prices

« Continued lower resins performance due to weakness in European automotive
and adhesives industries

« Completed the first part of phased commissioning of our new European
hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins facility

« Planned shutdown (March 2020) of the Netherlands resins facility is underway

» Continued strong demand for environment-friendly sealer-base products and
PETRORES® specialty coatings

Preparing for tomorrow

In 2018, we announced a realignment of business segments—conceptualised
the Advanced Materials division—in recognition of the evolving regulatory
requirements and universal demand for cleaner, lighter and more sustainable
products. During the first half of 2020, our ability to provide ‘raw materials for
tomorrow’ will be greatly enhanced when we begin commercial operation of our
new HHCR production plant. Strategically located at our Castrop-Rauxel facility
in Germany, the plant will offer our European customers a shorter and more cost-
effective supply chain for ‘water-white’ resins currently imported from Asia.

Our Advanced Materials sector is also well positioned to serve a growing global
electric-vehicle market, thanks to our PETRORES® product used in
energy-storage applications such as lithium-ion batteries. In addition, we see
2020 as a year where the profitability of resins business improves, as we reap the
benefits of enhanced product quality and economies of scale by transferring
production from the Uithoorn plant in the Netherlands and consolidating it at
the Duisburg facility in Germany.



BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW: CEMENT

Helping cement the
foundation of our
aspiring nation

The RAIN Group is among the largest producers of cement in
South India. Our wholly owned subsidiary, RAIN Cements Limited
(RCL), manufactures and markets high-quality ordinary portland
cement (OPC) and portland pozzolana cement (PPC) under the
Priya Cement brand. With one manufacturing unit in

Andhra Pradesh and Telangana each, and a packing facility in
Karnataka, our total manufacturing capacity is 4 million tonnes
per annum (MTPA). Our manufacturing base is strategically
situated near our limestone mines (within a two-kilometre radius
of our plants), and our mines have reserves for around 50 years.

CONTRIBUTION IN 2019

247mrrA 310,300 mn

SALES VOLUME REVENUE

8% 15%

CONTRIBUTION TO OPERATING
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE MARGIN

b Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India
. Bl TRV AD 8 Sl
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With ISO certifications like ISO 9oo1:2015, ISO
14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 for our quality
management, environmental management, and
occupational health and safety systems, respectively,
we are reinforcing India’s urbanisation resolve without
compromising on quality or negatively affecting the

OUR
BUSINESSES
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Pradesh, Telangana, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, Kerala, Odisha, Maharashtra and
Goa, we have more than 2,000 registered dealers.

We run educational and healthcare institutions in the vicinity of our plants
under the aegis of the Pragnya Priya Foundation—our social responsibility and
philanthropic arm—which benefit our people and families near our cement

environment. A prominent cement player in Andhra facilities.
Product review
PRODUCTS RAW MATERIALS MANUFACTURING USES
USED PROCESS
ORDINARY PORTLAND Limestone and gypsum o A premium-quality cement that Load-bearing structural concrete
CEMENT (OPC) attains high strength and is works such as columns, beams
known for its durability and slabs in high-rise buildings,
. ) commercial and industrial
+ Rapid setting and fast strength  complexes, and infrastructure
development features makeita  projects, including roads,
favourite among builders runways, bridges and flyovers
PORTLAND POZZOLANA Fly ash, a by-product from « Setting time and strength Reinforced cement concrete for
CEMENT (PPC) thermal power plants development of PPC is longer residential construction, most

than OPC

« Eliminates surface cracks due to
low heat of hydration

« Eco-friendly and consumes
less production energy to
manufacture, which reduces
overall production costs

commonly used in plastering,
brickwork and mass concrete work

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW: CEMENT

Analysing the trends

India is the second-largest cement producer after China,
with installed production capacity of more than

500 MTPA. However, it continues to have the lowest per
capita cement consumption at ~210 kilograms vis-a-vis
the global average of ~575 kilograms, providing ample
headroom for increased cement consumption in future.

I

India’s cement demand is driven by the housing sector
(~65%), followed by infrastructure (~25%), and the
commercial and industrial sectors (~10%). This demand
trend is expected to continue, helped by increased
government spending and incentives in the housing
industry, especially in the affordable-housing segment
in both rural and urban India. Additionally, roads, urban
infrastructure and commercial realty will continue to be
key demand drivers for cement in the coming quarters.
Over 500 million people in India are likely to be urban
by 2025,and this reality opens a broad landscape of
opportunities for the cement sector.

With the onset of a good monsoon and the subsequent
harvest throughout the markets in India, we expect

to see a strong impetus for development in the rural
economy. This, combined with a strong focus by Modi
Sarkar 2.0 towards housing and pending irrigation
projects, should result in a robust demand for cement.

Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India

P T | - 5] P \
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ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Key highlights 2019

» Operating profit from the Cement business more than doubled from
% 714 million in 2018 to ¥ 1,562 million in 2019 due to higher volumes and
better realisation

o Sales volumes increased across a majority of the markets
o Achieved highest-ever sales volume of 2,468,715 tonnes in a year
» Achieved highest-ever net sales of ¥ 10,300 million in a year

« Cement plants accredited by Bureau Veritas, an international
certification agency

o Commissioned a 4.1 MW WHR plant at Suryapet, Telangana

Preparing for tomorrow

We are serving India’s infrastructure development better by making our
cements more accessible for customers and easier to handle. We support our
small distributors and dealers who cannot afford to purchase and store large
quantities of cement at once with two new services in collaboration with our
freight transportation and logistics provider. These services include:

« Garuda, which refers to a legendary bird in Hindu mythology and symbolises
agility, provides direct deliveries from our Suryapet cement plant to
nearby towns.

« Free Door Delivery Service, known simply as FDDS, provides cement shipments
from our Kondapur warehouse to customers in the developing areas of
Hyderabad free of labour costs related to the unloading of cement bags
from trucks.

In addition, we are preparing to introduce biaxially-oriented polypropylene
(BOPP) packaging, which is more durable due to its high tensile strength

and waterproof and tear-resistant properties. BOPP also allows for higher-
quality printing, which will enhance the visual appeal of the packaging and is
expected to improve the marketability of our cements for our dealers.

Finally, we are implementing additional improvements to our safety
management systems, based on recommendations by the National Safety
Council (NSC) to improve the effectiveness of our existing safety systems and
procedures at both of our integrated cements plants.




L

ADVANCED MATERIALS ARE ESSENTIAL
FOR POWERING ELECTRIC VEHICLES

-
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ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

OUR
COMMITMENT

143

NEW-AGE
TRANSPORTATION
SOLUTIONS

The electromobility trend across the automotive and
transport (trains, trucks, buses, ships) sectors is set to
change, with an increasing number of hybrid and full
electric vehicles (EVs) on the roads.

Growing electrification of cars, especially the complete switch
from the internal combustion engine to the electric drive train,
improves a vehicle’s fuel economy. Lithium-ion batteries—with
their high energy, relatively low weight and volume—enable
this electrification. This is the energy-storage technology

that powers most of today’s consumer electronics, and its
proliferation in mobile and battery applications has just begun.

Alithium-ion battery contains micronised graphite powder,
and more than 9o% of its negative electrode consists of this
fine crystalline carbon. We are a supplier of carbon products
to the traditional graphite market providing graphite
electrodes for steel and aluminium production. Calcined coke
and binder-grade coal tar pitch (CTP) are mixed, extruded,
baked and graphitised to make the graphite electrodes. After
graphitisation, the electrode blocks are further treated with
impregnation-grade CTP, which optimises density, strength
and conductivity.

In collaboration with the R&D teams of our clients, our
specialists have developed ways to use our CTPs in the
manufacture of graphite for the negative electrode of
lithium-ion batteries. Our CARBORES® and PETRORES®
products have become vital components in the manufacture
of graphite-electrode materials for lithium-ion batteries and,
thus, play a significant role in the trend towards a greener,
cleaner and connected society.




GLOBAL EXCELLENCE CENTRE

Carbon Distillation and Advanced Materials Plant
in Castrop-Rauxel, Germany
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Broad-basing
business excellence

Our operational excellence programme is supported by

our Global Excellence Centre. We follow a global approach
supporting best-practice implementation for increased
operability at reduced cost. The initiative involves sharing

best practices of manufacturing and technology expertise
worldwide via an online plant database that is available 24x7.

The operational excellence programme has helped us realise substantial
savings with concentrated efforts on energy optimisation, reliability
improvements, sustainable resources and capacity debottlenecking. Besides,
we have incorporated global surveillance combined with artificial intelligence-
based analysis, which has improved compliance at the plant level. Additionally,
the programme facilitated the switch to more efficient modern technologies in
plant operations in a few instances.

We have also accelerated the organisation’s digital transformation with tools
like electronic shift books, ‘smart’ drawings and an internally developed
electronic work-permit system. The adoption of these digital instruments
has contributed to leaner and more efficient processes and safer operations.
Moreover, our state-of-the-art analytical software models help us predict
cleaning routines and better monitor the altering of catalysts.

Construction of K20 Plant in
Castrop-Rauxel, Germany

« Energy-saving initiative for lowering specific consumption

o Increased yield of the monomer indene, which is vital to our resin production
in Duisburg

» Technology developed in-house consolidating best practices across all
distillation facilities
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Reliability

« Implementation of root-cause analysis and tracking
in global management system

« Application of best practices across all plants

« Allocation of funds for maintenance capital
expenditure, based on reliability requirements

« Criticality analysis with maintenance spare-part
management procedure

« Centralised experts supporting periodical
maintenance shutdown to optimise loss-time and cost

IMPROVING COAL TAR THROUGHPUT (KT)

1,200
1,150
Te)
1,100 8 Y
:- -
1,050
1,000
2016 2017 2018 2019

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

Operational efficiency

e Technical support from central team

» Contractor management for uniform policies for
engaging third parties, standardised SHE policies,
periodical internal-audits

« Increase in throughput, with innovative ideas for
de-bottlenecking and reducing maintenance time

« Reduction of consumables

» Energy optimisation and minimisation of emissions

KPI monitoring

« 24/7 plant data availability over trendminer
« Unification of Plant Maintenance Module of SAP for
monitoring of all KPIs

« Roll-out of shift connector for digital
shift communication

OUR
COMMITMENT
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SAFETY PRACTICES

Carbon Distillation and Advanced Materials Plant in Zelzate, Belgium

L°

Safety counts at every step

2019 was a momentous year in our safety
journey, as our commitment to workplace
safety resulted in the safest year ever for RAIN.
During the reporting year, we achieved the
lowest historical total recordable incident rate
and an even lower total lost-time injury rate.

0.29

TOTAL RECORDABLE INCIDENT RATE (TRIR)

0.26°

TOTAL LOST-TIME INJURY RATE (TLIR)

* For the Carbon and Advanced Materials business segments.
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Reducing recordable and first-aid
instances

With an intensive focus on safety, we have achieved an exponential decline in
our total recordable injury rate (TRIR), which has resulted in the avoidance

of ~163 recordable incidents between 2015 and 2019. The total first-aid rate
significantly declined to 4.8 in 2019. Today, our safety performance exceeds the
industry benchmark (US Bureau of Labor Statistics) and is comparable with
best-in-class companies.

DECREASING TOTAL DECLINING RATE OF
RECORDABLE INJURY RATES FIRST-AID INJURIES
(%) (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019
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Building a sustainable
safety culture

At RAIN, we are establishing a proactive and
independent safety culture that encourages everyone
to act safely in each aspect of life—including away
from work. We have reduced unsafe acts and
conditions significantly in the past few years, while
we strive to promote a culture of reporting for prompt
implementation of corrective measures.

UNSAFE ACTS AND CONDITIONS RATE
(%)

2016 2017 2018 2019

In 2019, we focused on reducing the severity of injuries
and developing a robust unsafe acts and conditions
reporting culture. While our process-safety initiatives
are in the initial development stage, we have engaged
an international team of highly competent process-
safety experts to help us prioritise the activities for safe
and reliable operations.

‘Zero-incident’ organisation

We firmly believe that we can progress only as fast as the
successful implementation and acceptance of our safety
programmes and initiatives. While our TRIR of 0.29 in
2019 was a company record, we will only be satisfied by
becoming a zero-incidents organisation. Our aim is to
build a more mature and sustainable safety culture that
will allow us to increase our productivity and operational
discipline and facilitate highly competitive organic
growth. Our safety culture is centrally driven with a
global Safety, Health and Environment organisation
steering the company-wide programmes. Process safety
is an integral part of our mission to operate in the

safest manner possible by increasing the efficiency and
reliability of our operations. In addition, occupational
health is a key aspect of our safety activities. Currently,
there are several health programmes initiated at each
site and location, including global health days with
dedicated initiatives.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

OUR
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ACHIEVEMENTS 2019

« Company-best safety performance with ~g9 million work hours and more than
1,000 contractors of different nationalities

» Completed ~300,000 work hours without any recordable incidents at
Cherepovets facility in Russia and ~3 million work hours without any
recordables at the vertical-shaft calciner project in India

o Celebrated two years without a recordable incident at the Lake Charles,
Louisiana, plant in the US and one year without a recordable incident at the
Hamilton facility in Ontario, Canada

» Received the Louisiana Chemical Association’s Safety Award for the Lake
Charles facility

» Won awards for Best Safe Mining Activities in the Cement business

« Implementation of a cloud-based methodology to conduct process-safety risk
assessments in a structured and systematic way, including registration and
follow-up of actions

» New Global SHE Policy according to ISO 45001

Safety as a building block for success

ATRANSFORMATION IN SAFETY CULTURE AT RAIN CARBON
STARTING IN GERMANY

Our Rain Carbon subsidiary engaged DuPont Sustainable Solutions (DSS) to
enhance operational safety and optimise our expertise and processes.

DSS first helped us identify the major challenges to safety, and the findings
specified that our safety culture was highly dependent on discipline,
controls and monitoring to prevent incidents. We also realised the need for
amore independent mindset if we wanted to achieve sustainable changes
in safety performance. Interaction with the consultant team made us realise
the importance of taking ownership of the risks, because only then can we
manage them. DSS helped us uncover unsafe activities and learn how to
address them in a positive way.

Following the initial assessment period, we developed a two-year
implementation plan with prioritised short- and medium-term goals in
collaboration with DSS. The approach also identified several quick wins for
us. We established a safety steering committee and a support structure to
enable implementation of the action plan. DSS worked with us to develop a
site culture-transformation strategy and determined the necessary actions.
These initiatives have helped us bring structural changes in the way our
employees view safety and how they pursue it. Overall, our initiatives have
helped change the safety behaviour and attitude of our people and assisted
us in building a proactive safety culture throughout the RAIN Group.

73% 90%

DECREASE IN TOTAL INJURIES REDUCTION IN LOST WORKDAY
FROM 2015 TO JUNE 2019 CASES FROM 2015 TO JUNE 2019




PEOPLE

Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India
1

A formidable talent pool
drives our progress

We achieve growth by motivating our We invest in developing a strong performance-based culture that thrives on

people to leverage their abilities to the go-getters and incubates future leaders through:

greatest extent possible by leading an

active and fulflling life. Global and regional leadership and

training programmes

In February 2019, we completed the first global Rain Carbon Inc. leadership
training programme. We trained 16 leaders from 10 locations during 2018

and 2019. We also continued our annual regional leadership-development
programme, with 35 participants. Since 2017, 94 RAIN employees from Belgium,
Canada, Germany, India, the Netherlands and the US have taken part in these
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leadership-development programmes, and another
37 have been invited to participate in 2020. Our
employee-development efforts also included the

implementation of STOP™ (Safety Training Observation
Programme), which focuses on ways to address unsafe
acts and recognise people who act and work safe. Safety

OUR
COMMITMENT
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two train-the-trainer sessions—in Europe and the US—to enable employees to
implement this behaviour-based safety programme globally.

Inter-cultural trainings play an important role in improving cooperation within
an organisation. We implemented inter-cultural trainings during 2019 in the US,
India and Germany, and we plan to conduct inter-cultural trainings in Canada

experts from DuPont Sustainable Solutions conducted 112020.
PRODUCTS TARGET CONTENT CRITERIA FACTS
INTERNATIONAL
LEADING LEADERS - Succession planning/back- » Advanced Managers who Initiated in 2018
up for critical leadership communication (world- are leading other Four three-day
positions class presentation) leaders and who sessions annually
« Bring current leaders on « Strategic management have lfeadership Maximum
senior manager positions « Leading leaders/global experience participants: 12
Io tdhe n;.xt level of leadership
cadership « Developing oneself
» Networking cross-
functional global
REGIONAL?/ NATIONAL
GENERAL « Reflect and (further) » Leading one-to-one Potentials for Initiated in 2017
LEADERSHIP develop their leadership (basic communucation, next/ further Three two-day
PROGRAMME style/ competence delegation, motivation, career steps sessions annually
« Understanding of a feedback) Maximum
leader's position e Leading te.arns participants: 12 per
and role (presentation, region
moderation, change)
» Development of others
(development of teams,
coaching, team building)
LEADERSHIP « Development of « Effective and successful « Employees who Initiated in 2017
PRACTICE management behaviour leading of production are leading blue Three one-day

e Understanding of a
leader's position
and role

employees

» Functional positions
description

« Basic labour law

collar employees

« Foreman/
supervisor
level or future
foreman/
supervisor

sessions annually

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Vertical-Shaft Kiln under construction
in Atchutapuram SEZ, India

Further targets of our performance-
evaluation system

o Assess performance, regardless of the location, using the
same parameters
e Make expectations transparent

e Recognise and promote potential for further responsibilities
at an early stage

o Ensure goal-oriented personnel deployment and proactive
succession planning

o Create a uniform understanding of leadership and
performance

o Ensure market- and performance-based remuneration
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One performance-evaluation system

Employees can only develop when they receive regular feedback. We
understand that it is important for us to discuss the performance of our
people and to show appreciation for their contribution to the success of the
organisation. This why we have performance-evaluation discussions with

our employees every year in January and February. We evaluate four different
performance-based dimensions (conduct, knowledge and skills, management
skills and work results) and agree on personal-development measures:

PERFORMANCE
ASSESSMENT FIELDS

CONDUCT

PERFORMANCE-ASSESSMENT
CRITERIA

Occupational safety

Integrity

Motivation and commitment
Teamwork and respect

Customer and service orientation
Adaptability/flexibility
Professional expertise
Knowledge of the Company

IT proficiency

Communication
Foreign-language skills
Problem-solving skills

Judgment

Planning and organisation
Communication with employees
Setting of goals and delegation of tasks
Ability to motivate

Personnel development/People management
Work efficiency

Quality of work

Goal orientation

KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

WORK RESULTS

Our business focuses on creating a more sustainable world through our state-
of-the-art products, and it is because of our talented workforce that we are
steadily marching towards our goal.

AN INTEGRATED LEARNING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Our learning management system (LMS) plays an active role in standardising
and digitising various processes that are crucial to various work functions,
such as administration, documentation, tracking and reporting of the various
learning-and-development and training programmes for employees. In other
words, LMS is a platform that:

« Helps us publish global policies like our Code of Conduct
« Provides e-learning trainings

« Standardises and digitalises processes in the field of personnel development,
reducing administrative workload

« Consolidates all data in one place
 Allows superiors to track employee participation in trainings
« Allows for a global approval process for trainings via a global workflow

« Provides KPIs for future trainings
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Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India
¥ ‘ T

u
A b SI ness th at Over the years, we have steadily invested in minimising our environmental
u footprint. We are also focused on technically upgrading our plants and
processes to enhance their performance, which in turn helps us contribute to

res pQCtS the the health of our environment.

= Our sustainability efforts begin with ‘upcycling', where we transform

e nVI ro n me nt by-products of other industries into value-added materials required for countless
products and manufacturing applications. Efforts continue with FGD systems
that remove up to 98% of SO2 from emissions in our calcination units; blending
fly ash with clinker to produce portland pozzolana cement to reduce our
consumption of limestone and safely repurpose this scrap of coal-fired power

We are committed to environmental plants; and cogeneration of electricity and steam with an aggregate capacity

of ~175MW, which we either add to local power grids or captively consume by

converting waste heat from our production processes into clean energy.

stewardship and materials that support
lighter, faster and cleaner products. Our
overarching guiding principle is to help create
a world in which environmental protection is

not an imposed reality, but a way of life.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



GREEN STEWARDSHIP
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Carbon Calcination Plant in Chalmette, Louisiana, USA §

At the RAIN Group, our sustainability endeavours include the following
undertakings:

Reducing emissions

In 2010, we initiated a leak-detection-and-repair (LDAR) project to reduce
benzene, toluene and xylene (BTX) emissions at our facility in Zelzate, Belgium.
Each year, an external company performs a complete measurement campaign
to identify BTX leaks. In total, more than 6,000 emission points are measured.
Detected leaks are then repaired as soon as possible. Due to the success of

the LDAR project at Zelzate, a similar project was implemented in 2013 at our
Castrop-Rauxel facility in Germany, and the project is currently being rolled
out to our Hamilton and Cherepovets distillation facilities in Canada and
Russia, respectively.

The LDAR project enables us to constantly monitor and reduce benzene
emissions at our facilities and is a major element of our continuous activities
to minimise our environmental impact.

COz2 EMISSIONS

Our Zelzate site also implemented an extensive environmental programme,
including various activities to reduce air emissions. Between 2013 and 2018,
the plant was able to eliminate 103,028 tonnes of CO2 emissions.

FLUE-GAS DESULPHURISATION SYSTEMS

The reduction of sulphur dioxide (SO2) emissions in flue gas has a significant
capital- and operating-cost impact for a calciner. At RAIN, we minimise

SO2 emissions at our calcination facilities by utilising state-of-the-art FGD
systems.

We have operated our Vizag calciner with a high-efficiency lime-based FGD
system since its establishment in 1998. During the past decade, we have also
incorporated lime-based FGD systems at three of our US calciners in Chalmette,
Lake Charles and Norco.

INTRODUCING AMMONIA (NH3) SCRUBBER

Our new vertical-shaft calciner plant in the Andhra Pradesh Special Economic
Zone will be fitted with an ammonia-based FGD system, which allows for

a better control in scrubbing and lower SO2 emissions in comparison to
conventional lime-scrubber technology, achieving reduction of SO2 emissions
of ~99%. An added benefit of this type of FGD system is production of a valuable
by-product—ammonium sulphate—that will be provided to local farmers as a
fertiliser for agricultural applications.

99«

REDUCTION OF SO2 EMISSIONS WITH
AMMONIA-BASED SCRUBBER
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656,200 Mmwh

TOTAL ELECTRICITY GENERATED BYWASTE-HEAT
RECOVERY SYSTEMS DURING 2019

367,483 Mmwnh"

TOTAL STEAM GENERATED BY WASTE-HEAT
RECOVERY SYSTEMS DURING 2019

514,171 Tonnes™

SAVED CO; EMISSIONS

~8,000 mwh

OPTIMISATION OF OUR NOVABOOST® AND
NOVADEST® PRODUCTION PROCESSES THAT WAS
COMPLETED DURING 2019 IS EXPECTED TO RESULT
IN ANNUAL ENERGY SAVINGS OF 8,000 MWH/YEAR

Vertical-Shaft Kiln under construction in Atchutapuram

lSEZ, India

OUR
COMMITMENT
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WASTE-HEAT UTILISATION FOR POWER

The high-temperature flue gas generated by the calcining process provides
significant opportunity for energy conservation and recycling.

We have WHR systems at our US calcination facilities at Lake Charles, Chalmette
and Norco as well at the Visakhapatnam plant (and our two integrated cement
facilities) in India, and the new vertical-shaft calciner nearing completion in

India will also be so equipped. These WHR projects co-generate electric power

or steam from waste heat recovered in the calcining process. Energy recycling is
accomplished by first enabling the complete combustion of residual hydrocarbons
and any carbon dust carried over from the calcination process, and then capturing
this thermal energy in a heat-recovery steam generator. The resulting high-pressure
steam is used to generate electricity (Lake Charles, Chalmette and Visakhapatnam)
or to provide thermal heating for other industrial processes (Norco). This reduces
the need for the use of additional fossil fuels to generate that same amount of
energy, as well as the resulting in reduction of carbon dioxide emissions. The
combination of carbon calcination and energy recycling achieves simultaneous
benefits of CPC production and energy conservation. Furthermore, we have WHR
systems at our European distillation and advanced materials facilities in
Castrop-Rauxel, Duisburg and Zelzate. We also generate steam from waste heat that
is consumed captively.

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

At our Castrop-Rauxel and Duisburg sites in Germany, we have had a systematic
energy-management system certified to ISO 50001 since 2014. Various projects
have enabled us to optimise and improve our production processes, including
identification of untapped energy-efficiency potential and energy costs that have
an environmental impact. Our energy-management system has been the basis
for optimizing the production of our NOVABOOST® and NOVADEST® in terms
of fewer production steps while maintaining the same product quality. These
optimizations are expected to result in annual savings of 8,000 MWh/year.

A new process has been under development since 2017 that will optimise the
production of carboindene, a precursor for the manufacture of adhesives and
an additive in the manufacture of car tyres. The process is expected to result in
energy savings of up to 53,000 MWh per year.

During 2019, we took the following measures to enhance our environmentally
conscious operations:

« Collected data and key-performance indicators on our business operations’
impact on the environment through inspections

« Strengthened the adoption of pollution-control technology such as FGD
systems to reduce our environmental impact

o Integrated a compliance tracker to ensure all requirements are met
« Reinforced our environmental corrective-action system

« Consolidated waste-management controls and auditing of our
environmental practices

# Based on gross electricity generation at WHR power plants in Vizag, Lake Charles, Chalmette, Suryapet and Kurnool.

## Based on gross steam generation from WHR systems at Norco, Castrop-Rauxel, Duisburg and Zelzate.

##1# Based on gross electricity generation at WHR plants in Vizag, Lake Charles, Chalmette, Suryapet and Kurnool and steam generation at Norco,
Castrop-Rauxel, Duisburg and Zelzate. CO; emissions calculated from megawatts based on emission factors of local electricity grids.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.




CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

A greater sense
of purpose and

engagement

g

Student studying in school of
Pragnya Priya Foundation in Kurnool

District, Andhra Pradesh, India .

2,118

TOTAL STUDENTS IN DECEMBER 2019

I
Pragnya Priya Foundation

Established in 2012, the foundation was born

of our desire to empower underprivileged and
underserved communities in India with a focused,
hands-on and grassroots approach towards
education and health. It helps rural communities
to join the mainstream and reap the benefits of
sustainable development.
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We are aware of how our operations impact our stakeholders,
especially the local communities where we have offices and
manufacturing facilities. Our CSR initiatives are an important
catalyst in our broader commitment to enhance value for our

entire stakeholder fraternity.

As an organisation with production bases in Asia, Europe and North America,
we have CSR programmes in each of these regions. Our intervention areas
comprise education, healthcare and community development.

E—
EcoVadis CSR Rating

EcoVadis is among the world's leading rating agencies for sustainability. The EcoVadis
corporate social responsibility (CSR) assessment is an evaluation of how well a
company has integrated the principles of CSR into its business and management system
(environmental, labour practices and human rights, health and safety, fair business
practices and sustainable procurement issues).

2019 ratings
e Gold rating for Rain Carbon bvba (Zelzate)
« Silver rating for RUTGERS Germany GmbH (Castrop-Rauxel, Duisburg)

India
EDUCATION

Education offers emancipation from oppression and allows people to

flourish and grow. At the RAIN Group, we believe education is the right of every
individual, and we work towards providing quality education for the under
served communities near our production facilities and in another village in
the state of Andhra Pradesh.

We have established three schools under the Pragnya Priya Foundation
(www.pragnyapriya.org) in rural Telangana and Andhra Pradesh. The schools
serve students within its vicinity and those from economically challenged
families. Our schools have digitally enabled classrooms and use world-class
academic content from one of the top digital education providers in India.

We train the teachers with the latest trends in education and the use of digital
equipment. The schools also have laboratories for various subjects like physics,
chemistry and biology, along with libraries and playgrounds. We also ensure
good hygiene is maintained in the school premises. Due to high-quality
education provided by the Pragnya Priya Foundation, a larger proportion

of students than those in similar rural areas secured higher grades, gained
admission to institutions of higher learning such as premier engineering
colleges and completed professional examinations such as chartered
accountancy. We expect to see further improvement in the students' grades

as aresult of the 100% implementation of digital classes during the 2018-19
academic year.
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HEALTHCARE

The availability of proper healthcare is integral to
the physical and economic health of every Indian.
We established three hospitals in the rural areas of

Telangana and Andhra Pradesh under the Pragnya Priya

Foundation. Our hospitals are in the remotest regions,
asis evident from the fact that there are no other
medical facilities available in a 30-kilometre radius

of our hospitals. These medical centres are equipped
with test laboratories and other specialised equipment.
All our hospitals are National Accreditation Board for
Hospitals & Healthcare Providers (NABH) compliant
and have been issued certifications accordingly.

103,386

PATIENTS TREATED IN OUR HOSPITALS IN 2019

During 2019, we conducted several medical camps
in association with other hospitals in the regions.
We provide free consultancy, medicines, medical
tests and ambulance services.

MEDICAL CAMPS DURING 2019

MEDICAL NUMBER OF PATIENTS
CAMP ON TREATED

Kidney 405

Eye 345

Mega* 481

Cardiology 11

* Gynaecology, Paediatrics, Skin, General Medicine, General
Surgery, ENT, Orthopedics

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

OUR
COMMITMENT

55

| Hospital of Pragnya Priya Foundation in
Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India
B I

_.--

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
India

We undertake projects that contribute to overall development of communities
around our production facilities. We cooperate with our communities to
promote and support growth initiatives undertaken by local authorities.
Some of our key activities in this regard have been:

« Providing financial and material support towards building and maintaining
community-based infrastructure in villages such as roads, bridges, culverts,
drains and community centres

« Contributing to local welfare activities
» Donating building material for the construction of local government offices
« Supporting the repair work of hostels

« Contributing to Green Visakha for planting and maintaining a large number
of trees to create “social forests” and improve the air-quality in Vizag

North America

In North America, we participate in different CSR activities including
partnering with local schools to help drive STEM (science, technology,
engineering, mathematics) education.

During 2019, our employees donated ~1,000 hours to support local food banks,
serve as volunteer coaches, help construct Habitat for Humanity homes and more.

In addition, for more than two decades through a matching programme
with our employees, we have contributed ~$1.5 million to the United Way,
supporting a range of initiatives for those in need in local communities.

Europe

The RUTGERS Foundation (www.ruetgers-stiftung.de) based in Germany is the
epicentre of our CSR activities in Europe. We support scientific research and
working groups through the foundation. We also encourage project days designed
to create excitement and enhanced understanding about science and technology.
Our efforts have inspired more than 10,000 students and teachers in 300-plus
schools since 2005 and represent a contribution in excess of €1.25 million.

At RAIN, these initiatives are part of our moral commitment to taking
responsible actions that enable our communities and stakeholders to advance
in a meaningful and sustainable way.
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ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

IN STEP WITH INDIA'S
MEGA INFRAVANTAGE’

The cement sector has an important correlation with a
country’s economic growth. It plays a critical role in the
development of roads, bridges, ports, hospitals, factories,
offices, housing, schools, entertainment centres and other

constructions that reflect a growing economy.

Since RAIN Group's inception in 1986, we have embraced a ‘service-
to-the-nation” approach to business so that our high-quality
products are key drivers of India’s development. Over the last

three decades, the Priya Cement brand has been synonymous with
strength and longevity, as we have gradually evolved into one of the
most highly reputed cement brands in South India.

Our products (43-grade ordinary portland cement (OPC), 53-grade
OPC and portland pozzolana cement) find widespread acceptance
in India.

GOVERNANCE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Delivering with sound business ethics

Corporate governance is integral to our core
purpose and values, and we have built the
enterprise on a sturdy foundation of effective
corporate governance practices.

Our philosophy on corporate governance is underpinned
by arich legacy of transparent governance and
disclosure practices, respect for human values and
individual dignity, and adherence to the norms of
ethical and professional conduct. It ensures fiscal
accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness
to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees,
customers, vendors, investors and society at large.

We are committed to customer satisfaction and
enhancement of stakeholder value. Accountability to
stakeholders is a key tenet of our corporate-governance
philosophy, and it helps ensure transparency in our
operations and fairness in our business processes.

We have in place the necessary safeguards to avoid any
conflict of interest, and our Code of Conduct extends

to our subsidiaries. Our Board of Directors and Senior
Management confirm their compliance with the Code of
Conduct annually.

=4 Cement Plant in Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India
—‘I‘-m
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Our governance architecture

Our robust governance framework allows us to sustain a culture of integrity,
along with a high-performance orientation and an adaptive management style
in a dynamic business environment. At the RAIN Group, we have a multi-tiered
governance structure, comprising the interlinking of governing bodies and
Board management at various levels:

« At the apex are the Board of Directors and various committees, which
collectively direct the highest standards of corporate governance and
transparency across the operations of the organisation. The Board plays a
vital role in the oversight and management of the RAIN Group and exercises
independent judgment in overseeing management performance on behalf of
shareholders and other stakeholders. It is chaired by an Independent Director
and is responsible for overall strategy development, alliances, leadership
development, international opportunities, strengthening governance
practices and enhancing brand value, along with our global image and
reputation.

Our governance structure helps in clearly determining the responsibilities
of each business entity and entrusting them with powers that enable them
to fulfil those responsibilities in the most effective manner. It also allows us
to retain our organisational DNA, while facilitating effective delegation of
authority and empowerment at all levels.

The three-tier governance architecture helps ensure greater management
accountability and credibility, while facilitating enhanced business
autonomy, performance discipline and development of business leaders—all
of which contribute to increased public confidence.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD
AUDIT NOMINATION & STAKEHOLDERS CORPORATE SOCIAL RISK
REMUNERATION RELATIONSHIP RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENT REPORTING TO THE BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

OPERATIONS COMMERCIAL SALES & MARKETING FINANCE

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee periodically determines and
of Directors and comprises the Independent Directors. reviews CSR expenditure and social projects as well as their implementation.

It regularly reviews financial statements, internal
audit reports, audit plans, significant audit findings,
adequacy of internal controls, compliance with
accounting standards and more. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

This committee periodically investigates the functioning of the shareholder/
investor grievance redressal system and oversees improvements in the same,
besides reporting serious concerns, if any.

Chairperson: Mr Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Chairperson: Ms Nirmala Reddy

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
This committee regularly reviews remuneration of
Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent)
and persons who may be appointed to senior RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

management and key managerial positions. The Risk Management Committee periodically reviews risk assessment and
minimisation procedures that ensure that Executive Management controls risk
by means of a properly defined framework, besides reviewing major risks and
proposed action plans.

Chairperson: Mr N. Sujith Kumar Reddy

Chairperson: Ms Radhika Vijay Haribhakti

Chairperson: Mr N. Radhakrishna Reddy

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



RISK MANAGEMENT

Mapping and mitigating potential risks

We carefully analyse potential risks in our Three-tier risk management
business environment to sustain and grow infrastructure
our competitive advantage and ensure our At the Board level, our risk management architecture is evaluated

frequently by the Risk Management Committee (RMC). The RMC supports

the Audit Committee and the Board in developing an organisation-wide
always focused on a culture of innovation and risk management framework. The Board of Directors annually evaluates the
framework, focusing on discussions regarding management submissions on
risks, identifying crucial risks and approving relevant action plans to mitigate
such risks based on priority.

sustainable progress. Our global operations have
high performance.

AtRAIN, the Board and leadership team work tirelessly to The responsibility of assisting the RMC on an independent basis lies with the

mitigate potential risks with the help of our robust internal audit function armed with the full status of risk assessments and

risk management infrastructure, which focuses on management. Other activities of the RMC include obtaining frequent updates
strategic, legal, financial, operational and environmental on certain identified risks depending upon the nature, significance and likely
risks. We have a reliable practice to identify crucial risks impact on the business.

across the group and map out germane action plans for

At the Management level, senior managers are responsible for managing risks
across their respective departments. Strategic-risk registers capture the risks
identified by the operating teams as well as the functional leadership teams.

mitigation.

At the Operating level, managers are entrusted with the responsibility of
managing the risks at ground level. They are also authorised to identify risks
and escalate them to their respective senior managers for creating mitigation
plans. Operational risks are evaluated at functional review meetings and
mitigation plans agreed and implemented.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

— _ AUDIT ] RMC ] BOARD OF
! COMMITTEE [ | DIRECTORS

DEVELOP THE
ORGANISATION WIDE
RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK

DEPARTMENT \
il HEADS - - ------—- :

IDENTIFY RISKAND SUGGEST
MITIGATION MEASURES
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STRATEGIC RISKS

RISKTYPE

STRATEGIC RESPONSE

STAKEHOLDERS
IMPACTED

Inability to sell higher
sales volumes

» Expand market share and customer retention
« Leverage channel financing to provide additional liquidity
» Focus on cost across cycles consistently

o Customers
« Suppliers
« Employees
« Investors

Safeguarding against
fluctuation in exchange
and interest rates

« Board-approved foreign-exchange policy
» Monitor the foreign-exchange open exposure and cover the open exposure, if
any, from time to time to mitigate the foreign-exchange risk

e Government
o Investors

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Environment protection

« Comply with all applicable norms using best-in-class technology

« Enhance readiness to comply with future norms

« Embed the concept of a circular economy in operations

« Develop products that are safe and have better environmental performance
throughout their lifecycle

« Communities and
society

o Suppliers

o Customers

Risk of contamination of
green petroleum coke (GPC)
and calcined petroleum
coke (CPC) during
stevedoring, transit

and storage

« Visit refineries, study logistic chain and storage places

« Initiate measures with the Indian refineries and stevedores to minimise
contamination at load port/rake loading

« Standardise operating procedures and pre-inspection prior to transit and
storage

« Monitor the load port by RAIN team

» Appoint independent surveyors and train them to take preventive measures,
especially for GPC

« Change CPC-loading mechanism from coir-mat sling to bin-and-grab

» Train and supervision by surveyors

o Suppliers
o Government

Talent management

» Continue people-friendly policies to become a preferred employer
 Provide strong performance-management and reward systems

« Offer opportunities for skill enhancement and career development at all levels

» Enhance gender diversity

 Deliver platforms for greater interaction between employees and senior leaders

« Focus on long-term succession planning

« Employees

Information technology

« Secure SAP application with a disaster-recovery site with recovery-point
objective of one hour and recovery-time objective of two hours

« Follow a stringent change-management procedure to make configuration
changes for hardware and software

» Conduct half-yearly review of authorisations and review by the business team to

ensure that sanctity of authorisations is maintained
« Use the change-management policy to govern the creation of and changes to
the authorisations

« Investors
» Employees

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Occupational health
and safety

« Achieve incident-free safety performance based on detailed action plan
initiated under STOP™ programme of DuPont Sustainable Solutions (DDS)

« Train employees by DDS-approved trainers

« Provide medical facilities and health insurance for all employees

« Ensure compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements

« Employees
o Community

Process safety

» Make sure that all process-related risks are well described and controlled
« Emphasise on proper maintenance to ensure facilities are compliant with all
right-to-operate requirements

« Employees
o Communities

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Leadership supporting

responsible growth

MR HL ZUTSHI

CHAIRMAN

Mr Zutshi (77 years) is the Managing Trustee of the Energy Research
and Social Advancement Foundation and Ishwar Charitable Trust
Eye Hospital - ICARE. He is also a member of India International
Centre.

He served as the Chairman & Managing Director of Hindustan
Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL and the Chairman of South Asia
LPG Ltd., HINCOL, Prize Petroleum and others. He was also the
Chairman of the Petroleum, Coal, Fertiliser and Related Products
Division Council of the Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS); Convener
of the Financial Services Sector Taskforce of the Department of
Public Enterprises; and Advisor to Energy & Hydrocarbon, Mittal
S.a.r.], Luxemburg and ABN Amro Investments.

He provided inputs to the Government of India’s

Hydro-Carbon Vision 2025 and served as an Independent Director
on the Boards of MECON Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd. and others. He was
also a Special Director of the Board for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction(BIFR).

He specialised in mechanical engineering and was trained in
management at the Administrative Staff College (Hyderabad),
Indian Institute of Management (Ahmedabad) and Templeton
College, Oxford University. He is a Fellow of Energy Institute, UK.
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MR N RADHAKRISHNA REDDY

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr Reddy (77 years) is the Managing Director of RAIN Industries
Limited. He has more than 51 years of experience in the construction
and cement industries. He has been a Director of the Company since
1984. Currently, he is also on the Board of RAIN Cements Limited,
Renuka Cement Limited and several other organisations, along with
the Pragnya Priya Foundation.

MR JAGAN MOHAN REDDY NELLORE

VICE CHAIRMAN

Mr Nellore (53 years) is the Vice Chairman of RAIN Industries
Limited and has 27 years of experience in finance, commercial and
operations. He is also the CEO of the Rain Carbon Inc. subsidiary.

He is the founder of RAIN CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited, which

had been originally incorporated as RAIN Calcining Limited. He
spearheaded the vision, strategy and execution of the globalisation
of the entity’s business model through various acquisitions

and their subsequent integration to create the world’s leading
industrial carbon producer.

A member of the Boards for several of RAIN organisations and
other enterprises, he is also a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of RAIN Cements
Limited and RAIN CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited.

Mr Nellore holds a bachelor of science degree in industrial
engineering from Purdue University, USA.

MR N SUJITH KUMAR REDDY

DIRECTOR

Mr Reddy (48 years) is the Managing Director of RAIN Cements
Limited. He is also a Director at various other organisations,
including Pragnya Priya Foundation. He has a bachelor’s degree in
commerce, and more than 25 years of experience in manufacturing
and construction industries.
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MR BRIAN JUDE MCNAMARA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr McNamara (57 years) is an Independent Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary
Rain Carbon Inc.

He is a former banker with 31 years of experience in project finance,
corporate finance and investment management. He worked in
investment operations at International Finance Corporation

(IFC) in Washington, DC, from 1991 to 2015 with responsibility

for investment strategy, business development and project
financing for a range of sectors across emerging markets, including
chemicals, textiles, general manufacturing and mining. He has
extensive investment experience in project evaluation, financial
structuring and investment management across the chemicals,
fertilisers, carbon black, plastics, fibres, specialty chemicals and
primary metals industries.

Prior to joining IFC, he worked in the corporate finance division
of Solvay Chemicals (Belgium) and in banking and investment
management in Brussels, Belgium, and Dublin, Ireland. He has
bachelor’s degrees in economics and philosophy from Bristol
University, UK and a master’s degree in finance and banking from
University College Dublin, Ireland.

MR VARUN BATRA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr Batra (53 years) is a senior finance professional with more
than 29 years of experience in private equity, special situations,
corporate finance and capital markets, credit and relationship
management across various corporate and financial institutional
customers. He has relevant experience in relationship, risk and
product management, and debt and equity investing across the
capital structure.

Currently, he serves as a Senior Partner and heads the Mumbai office
for Baring Private Equity Partners India Pvt. Ltd. He is a member

of the Board of Starkarma Realty Holdings India Private Limited.

He is a graduate in mathematics from St. Xavier’s College, Mumbai
and postgraduate from the Indian Institute of Management (IIM),
Ahmedabad.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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MS RADHIKA VIJAY HARIBHAKTI
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Ms Haribhakti (62 years) has over 32 years of experience in
commercial and investment banking with Bank of America, JM
Morgan Stanley and DSP Merrill Lynch.

She serves as an Independent Director on the Boards of Adani Ports
& Special Economic Zone Ltd., EIH Associated Hotels Ltd., ICRA Ltd.
and others. She is also a member of several Board committees in
these enterprises.

She has advised several large corporations and led their equity and
debt offerings in domestic as well as international capital markets.
She now heads RH Financial, a boutique advisory firm focused on
M&A and private equity.

She has also been closely involved with issues of women
empowerment, financial inclusion and CSR and has served on the
Boards of non-profits. She has also served on the Governing Council
of Citi group Micro Enterprise Award and CII's National Committee
on Women Empowerment. She is a graduate in commerce from
Gujarat University and postgraduate from the Indian Institute of
Management (IIM), Ahmedabad.

MS NIRMALA REDDY
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Ms Nirmala Reddy worked as a Financial Sector consultant for the
World Bank, Washington, DC, during 1995-2006. Her assignments
were on credit intermediation, sustainability, privatisation,
appraisal of development banks and financial institutions in
projects located in Mongolia, Guyana, Egypt, and Jordan. She also
worked on projects for the Asian Development Bank in Thailand
and the African Development Bank in Cote de I'vore.

Earlier, she was a career banker having joined the State Bank as

a probationary officer in 1969. She has 22 years of experience in
banking operations, foreign exchange as head of merchant banking
in her career with Vijaya Bank and served as Director correspondent
banking with American Express Bank Ltd. Bombay. She was trained
in the Bank’s branches in New York, London, and Frankfurt.

Ms Reddy holds a master's degree in political science from Osmania
University, Hyderabad. She has studied French and Japanese.

She is currently a Director on the Board of RAIN Industries Limited
and is also a Director on the Board of its two subsidiaries: RAIN
Cements Ltd. and RAIN CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited.
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SURYAPET, INDIA, CEMENT PLANT
« Safety for Sustainability, 1st Prize

« Environment, Health & Skill Management, 1st Prize

« Overall Performance, 3rd Prize

KURNOOL, INDIA, CEMENT PLANT

» Mine Workings, 1st Prize

« Contractual Work Vis Safety & Safety Is My Responsibility Card,

2nd Prize
« Loading & Transportation, 3rd Prize
« Safety Management System, 3rd Prize

« Publicity, Propaganda & Innovation, 3rd Prize

» Waste Dump Management, 1st Prize

« Mineral Conservation, 3rd Prize

ZELZATE, BELGIUM, CARBON DISTILLATION AND
ADVANCED MATERIALS FACILITY

« Gold CSR Rating
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CASTROP-RAUXEL, GERMANY, CARBON DISTILLATION
AND ADVANCED MATERIALS FACILITY

« Silver CSR Rating

DUISBURG, GERMANY, ADVANCED MATERIALS FACILITY

« Silver CSR Rating

LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA, US, CARBON CALCINATION
AND R&D FACILITY

» Most Improved Performance, Class 1 Division

« President’s Award for employee giving

« Spirit of Southwest Louisiana Award

CARBON DISTILLATION AND ADVANCED MATERIALS
BUSINESS UNIT

« ‘A’ rating from 19 customers, based on goods quality, on-time
delivery, claim management and customer service
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RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Registered Office: Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony, Hyderabad- 500073, Telangana State, India
CIN: L26942TG1974PLC0O01693 Phone No: 040-40401234 Email: secretarial@rain-industries.com
Website: www.rain-industries.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 45th Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Members of Rain Industries Limited (the
Company) will be held on Thursday, the August 13,2020 at
11 AM. IST through Video Conferencing (“VC”) [ Other Audio
Visual Means (“OAVM”) without the physical presence of the
Members at a common venue, in compliance with General
Circular No. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA Circulars), to transact the businesses
mentioned below.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at
the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed
Venue of the AGM.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2019 and Reports of Board and
Auditors thereon.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Consolidated Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended December 31, 2019 and Report of Auditors thereon.

3. To approve and ratify interim dividend.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy
(DIN: 00022383) who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy
Nellore (DIN: 00017633) who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
for Rain Industries Limited

S.Venkat Ramana Reddy
Company Secretary
M. No. A14143

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 25, 2020

NOTES:

1.  Inview of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic and
restrictions imposed on the movement of people, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its Circular
dated 5 May 2020 read with Circulars dated 8 April
2020 and 13 April 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) and SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD|
CMD1/CIR/P[2020/79 dated 12 May 2020 has permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through
Video Conference/ Other Audio Visual Means, without the
physical presence of the Members at a common venue.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the Circulars
issued by MCA and SEBI, 45th AGM of the company being
conducted through Video Conferencing (VC) herein after
called as “e-AGM”.

e-AGM: Company has appointed KFin Technologies
Private Limited (KFintech), Registrars and Transfer
Agents, to provide Video Conferencing facility for the
Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of the circulars on the
VCJOVAM(e-AGM):

a.  Members can attend the meeting through log in
credentials provided to them to connect to Video
conference. Physical attendance of the Members at the
Meeting venue is not required.

b.  Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the e-AGM through VC/
OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes
through e-voting.

A proxy is allowed to be appointed under Section 105 of
the Companies Act, 2013 to attend and vote at the general
meeting on behalf of a member who is not able to attend
personally. Since the AGM will be conducted through VC |
OAVM, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies.
Hence, Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route
Map are not annexed to this Notice.

The Members can join the e-AGM 15 minutes before
and after the scheduled time of the commencement
of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice.

The attendance of the Members (members logins)
attending the e-AGM will be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013

In compliance with MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5
May, 2020 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD1/
CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12 May 2020 and owing to the
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the
financial statements including Board’s Report, Auditor’s
report or other documents required to be attached
therewith (together referred to as Annual Report), the
Annual Report for Financial year ended December 31,
2019 and Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode
to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the
Company or the Depository Participant(s).

In line with the MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the e-AGM has been uploaded on
the website of the Company at www.rain-industries.com.
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of
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the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 10.

Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com respectively is also available on the
website of e-voting agency KFin Technologies Private
Limited at the website address https://evoting.karvy.com/

8. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have
not updated their email addresses with the Company are
requested to update their email addresses by writing to
the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, KFin
Technologies Private Limited at einward.ris@kfintech.
com. Members are requested to submit request letter
mentioning the Folio No. and Name of Shareholder along
with scanned copy of the Share Certificate (front and back)
and self-attested copy of PAN card for updation of email

address. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode 12.

are requested to register [ update their email addresses
with their Depository Participants

9. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed from May 7, 2020 to May 12,
2020 (both days inclusive).

STATUTORY
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Profile of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore and Mr. N. Sujith
Kumar Reddy who are being appointed/ re-appointed

as Directors is annexed to Notice and Report on

Corporate Governance.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, unclaimed dividend
amount of Rs.46,85,496 of the Company for the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2011 and Rs.45,79,084 for

the Financial Year ended December 31, 2012 has been
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) established by the Central Government pursuant to
Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has uploaded the
details of unclaimed Dividend amounts lying with the
Company as on May 8, 2019 (date of last Annual General
Meeting) on the website of the Company (www.rain-
industries.com) and also on the website of Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

13. Information in respect of such unclaimed dividend when due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

are given below:

Sl.  Forthe Percentage Date of Due date for transfe_r to
. . L . the Investor Education and
No. Financialyear ended of Dividend Declaration .
Protection Fund
1 December 31,2013 (Interim dividend) 50% November 14, 2013 December 13,2020
2 December 31, 2014 (Interim dividend) 50% November 6, 2014 December 7, 2021
3 December 31,2015 (Interim dividend) 50% August 14, 2015 September 15, 2022
4 December 31, 2016 (Interim dividend) 50% August 13,2016 September 14, 2023
5 December 31, 2017 (Interim dividend) 50% August 11,2017 September 10, 2024
6  December 31,2017 (Final dividend) 50% May 11,2018 June 10,2025
7  December 31,2018 (Interim dividend) 50% November 14, 2018 December 13,2025
8 December 31, 2019 (Interim dividend) 50% November 13,2019 December 12, 2026

The Shareholders who have not en-cashed the
aforesaid dividends are requested to make their
claim to the Secretarial Department, Rain Industries
Limited, Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony, Hyderabad
-500073, Telangana State, India, e-mail: secretarial@
rain-industries.com.

14. Unclaimed Equity shares held in the suspense account
are maintained with Stock Holding Corporation Of India
Limited, G6-G10,East Block, Swarna Jayanthi Commercial
Comp Next, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana 500002 vide
DP ID:IN301330 and Client ID: 40195702 .

15. Compulsory transfer of Equity Shares to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer
and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“Rules”), all shares on which

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years
or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority.

The Company has transferred 2,12,196 equity shares
to Investor Education and Protection Fund during the
financial year ended December 31, 2019.

To Claim the equity shares and dividend which were
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection

Fund, the shareholders are requested to visit the website

of the Company i.e., www.rain-industries.com to know the
procedure for claiming Shares and Dividend transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority.

The Shareholders who have not encashed the dividends
are requested to make their claim to the Secretarial
Department, Rain Industries Limited, Rain Center, 34,
Srinagar Colony, Hyderabad - 500073, Telangana State,
India, e-mail: secretarial@rain-industries.com.



NOTICE (CONTINUED)

16. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs have made it mandatory
for all the Listed Companies to offer Electronic Clearing
Service (“ECS”), NEFT, RTGS facilities for payment of
dividend, wherever applicable. This facility offers various
benefits like timely credit of dividend to the shareholders
account, elimination of loss of instruments in transit or
fraudulent encashment, etc.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING
THE e-AGM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE:

i.  Attending the e-AGM: Members will be able to attend the
AGM through VC | OAVM or view the live webcast of AGM
at https:/[ris.kfintech.com/vc[login2vc.aspx by using their
remote e-voting login credentials and selecting the ‘Event’
for Company’s AGM. Members who do not have the User
ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the User
ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the
remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the Notice.
Further, Members can also use the OTP based login for
logging into the e-voting system.

ii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops with Google Chrome for better experience.

iii. Further Members will be required to allow Camera, if any,
and hence use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

iv.  Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

v.  Facility of joining the AGM through VC | OAVM shall
open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM
and Members who may like to express their views or ask
questions during the AGM may register themselves at
https:/[ris.kfintech.com/agmvcspeakerregistration.

vi. Facility of joining AGM will be closed on expiry of 15
minutes from the schedule time of the AGM. Those
Members who register themselves as speaker will only be
allowed to express views/ask questions during the AGM.
The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers and time for each speaker depending upon the
availability of time for the AGM.

vii. Submission of Questions | queries prior to e-AGM:

Members desiring any additional information with
regard to Accounts| Annual Reports or has any question
or query are requested to write to the Company Secretary
on the Company’s investor email-id i.e. secretarial @
rain-industries.com at least 2 days before the date of
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the e-AGM so as to enable the Management to keep the
information ready. Please note that, members questions
will be answered only if they continue to hold the shares as
of cut-off date.

Alternatively, shareholders holding shares as on cut-off
date may also visit https:[/evoting.karvy.com and click on
the tab “Post Your Queries Here”” to post their queries|
views/questions in the window provided, by mentioning
their name, demat account number/folio number, email ID,
mobile number. The window shall be activated during the
remote e-voting period and shall be closed 24 hours before
the time fixed for the e-AGM.

viii. Speaker Registration before e-AGM: Shareholder who
wish to register as speakers are requested to visit https://ris.
kfintech.com/agmvcspeakerregistration, the shareholders
are requested to get registered on or before August 10,
2020, 5.00 P.M. (IST), Due to limitations of transmission
and coordination during the e-AGM, the Company may
have to dispense with or curtail the Speaker Session
during the e-AGM, hence shareholders are encouraged
to send their questions etc. in advance.

ix. Facility of joining the AGM through VC | OAVM shall be
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis.
However, the participation of members holding 2% or more
shares, promoters, Institutional Investors, directors, key
managerial personnel, chairpersons of Audit Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Auditors are not restricted
on first come first serve basis.

X.  Members who need technical assistance before or during
the AGM, can contact KFintech at https:/[ris.kfintech.com/
agmgqa/agmgqa/login.aspx.

xi. Corporate members intending to send their authorised
representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) | Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”) pursuant to the provisions of Section 113
of Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a certified
copy of the relevant Board resolution to the Company.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING:

In terms of the provisions of Section 108 and 109 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rule 20 and 21 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 (hereinafter called “the Rules” for the purpose of this
Section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing
facility to exercise votes on the items of business given in the
Notice through electronic voting system to members holding
shares as on August 06,2020 (End of Day) being the Cut-off date
fixed for determining voting rights of members, entitled to
participate in the e-voting process and poll.
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The procedure and instructions for e-voting are as follows:

1.  Openyour web browser during the voting period and
navigate to 'https://evoting.karvy.com'.

2. Enter the login credentials (i.e., user-id & password). Your
folio/DP and Client ID will be your User-ID.

User - ID for Members holding shares in Demat Form:

o ForNSDL:8 Character DPID followed by 8 Digits Client ID.
o For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID.

e For Members holding shares in Physical Form:

o« EVENT No. followed by Folio Number registered
with the Company.

o Password: Your Unique password is printed on separate
sheet[viaemail forwarded through the electronic notice.

Enter the Verification code i.e., please enter the alphabets
and numbers in the exact way as they are displayed for
security reasons.

3. Please contact our toll free No. [1800 3454 001] for any
further clarifications.

4. Members can cast their vote online from 10.00 A.M. (IST)
on August 09, 2020 to 5.00 P.M. (IST) on August 12, 2020.

5.  After entering these details appropriately,
click on "LOGIN".

6.  Members will now reach 'Password Change' menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily change their login
password in the new password field. The new password has
to be minimum eight characters consisting of at least one
upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-
9) and a special character. Kindly note that this password
can be used by the Demat holders for voting for resolution
of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that Company opts for e-voting through KFIN
Technologies Private Limited e-voting platform. System
will prompt you to change your password and update any
contact details like mobile no., email ID, etc. on first login.
You may also enter the 'Secret Question' and answer of
your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget
it. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

7.  Youneed to login again with the new credentials.

8. Onsuccessful login, system will prompt to select the 'Event’
i.e.'Rain Industries Limited".

9. Ifyou are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on

to "https:/[evoting.karvy.com" and casted your vote earlier
for any Company where the System Provider was KFIN

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

10.

11.
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Technologies Private Limited, then your existing login id
and password given earlier are to be used.

On the voting page, you will see Resolution description
and against the same the option FOR/AGAINST/ ABSTAIN
for voting. Enter the number of shares (which represents
number of votes) under 'FOR/AGAINST/ ABSTAIN' or
alternatively you may partially enter any number in 'FOR'
and partially in '"AGAINST', but the total number in 'FOR/
AGAINST' taken together should not exceed your total
shareholding. If the Member do not want to cast, select
'ABSTAIN' After selecting the resolution you have decided
to vote on, click on 'SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘OK’,
else to change your vote, click on 'CANCEL' and accordingly
modify your vote.

Once you 'CONFIRM' your vote on the Resolution, you will
not be allowed to modify your vote.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR VOTING DURING
THE E-AGM SESSION:

1

The e-voting window shall be activated upon instructions
of the Chairman during the e-AGM.

E-voting during the AGM is integrate with the VC
platform and no separate login is required for the
same. The shareholders shall be guided on the process
during the e-AGM.

Members [ shareholders, attending the e-AGM through
Video Conference and who have not cast their vote on
resolutions through Remote e-Voting shall be eligible
to cast their vote through e-voting system available
during the e-AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will
be eligible to attend the e-AGM, however, they shall not be
allowed to cast their vote again during the e-AGM.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

1.

The Company'’s equity shares are Listed at (i) BSE Limited,
Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001,
Maharashtra, India; and (ii) National Stock Exchange of
India Limited, Exchange Plaza, Floor 5, Plot No. C/1, Bandra
(East), Mumbai-400051, Maharashtra, India and the
Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock
Exchanges for the year 2019 -2020.

Members are requested to send all communication relating
to shares (Physical and Electronic) to the Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at KFIN Technologies
Private Limited (Unit: Rain Industries Limited), Karvy
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500032,
Telangana State, India.



NOTICE (CONTINUED)

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) and their shareholding under Section 170 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
and Register of Contracts maintained under Section 189
of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
are available for inspection at the registered office

of the Company.

Asrequired under Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standard - 2 on General Meetings details in respect of
Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting, is separately annexed hereto.
Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment have
furnished requisite declarations under Section 164(2) and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
including rules framed thereunder.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Members holding shares either in demat or physical
mode who are in receipt of Notice, may cast their votes
through e-voting.

Members opting for e-voting, for which the USER ID
and initial password are provided in a separate sheet.
Please follow steps from SI. No. (1) to (11) under heading
‘INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING’ above to vote through
e-voting platform.

The e-voting period commences from 10.00 A.M. (IST)

on August 09, 2020 to 5.00 P.M. (IST) on August 12, 2020.
During this period, the members of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in demat form, as on

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 25, 2020

(iv)

)

(vi)

the cut-off date of August 6, 2020 may cast their vote
electronically. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by
the member, the member shall not be allowed to change
it subsequently.

The Company has appointed Mr. DVM Gopal, Practising
Company Secretary (Membership No. 6280 and CP
No0.6798) in his absence Ms. Ansu Thomas, Practising
Company Secretary (Membership No. 8994 and CP No.
16696) having address at 6/3/154-159, Flat No. 303, 3rd
Floor, Royal Majestic, Prem Nagar Colony, Near Banjara
Hills Care Hospital, Khairtabad, Hyderabad - 500004,
Telangana, India as the Scrutiniser to conduct the voting
process (e-voting) in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding

48 hours from the conclusion of the Annual General
meeting unlock the votes in the presence of at least two
(2) witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and
make a Scrutinizer's Report containing the details with
respect to votes cast in favour, against, neutral/abstained,
shall submit the Report to the Chairman of the Company.

Subject to the receipt of sufficient votes, the resolution
shall be deemed to be passed at the 45th Annual General
Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on
August 13, 2020, the results declared along with the
Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's
website www.rain-industries.com and on the website of
KFintech, www.evoting.karvy.com, within 48 hours of
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
forRain Industries Limited

S.Venkat Ramana Reddy
Company Secretary
M. No. A14143

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE DATED JUNE 25, 2020
Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting on August 13, 2020

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India]

S. No.Particulars

Name of the Director

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy

70

DIN 00017633
Date of birth and Age January 17,1967
53 Years

Qualification

Experience and expertise in specific
functional areas

Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial
Engineering from Purdue University, USA

More than 27 years of experience in
finance, commercial and operations areas.

00022383

July 26,1971
48 Years

Graduate in Commerce
More than 25 years of experience in

manufacturing and Construction Industry.
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S. No.Particulars
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Name of the Director

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy

5 Brief resume Resume is given in the Corporate Resume is given in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of Governance Report forming part of
Annual Report. Annual Report.

6  Relationship with other Directors, Son of Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy, Son of Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy,
Manager and other Key Managerial Managing Director and brother of Mr. N. Managing Director and brother of
Personnel of the Company Sujith Kumar Reddy, Director. Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Vice

Chairman.

7  Nature of appointment (appointment | Retires by rotation and offers himself for Retires by rotation and offers himself for
re-appointment) re-appointment. re-appointment.

8 Terms and Conditions of appointment | | Appointment as a Non-Executive Director =~ Appointment as a Non-Executive Director
re-appointment subject to retirement by rotation. subject to retirement by rotation.

9 Remuneration last drawn by such Remuneration paid to Mr. Jagan Mohan Nil
person, if applicable and remuneration | Reddy Nellore till March 30, 2019 is given
sought to be paid in the Corporate Governance Report.

10  Date of first appointment on the Board June 13,1997 March 22,1992

11  Shareholding in the company Holds 100 equity shares Holds 10,028,770 equity shares

12 The number of Meetings of the Board 4 outof4 4outof4
attended during the year

13 Directorship Details of the Board 1. Rain Cements Limited 1. Rain Cements Limited

2. RainCII Carbon (Vizag) Limited 2. Renuka Cement Limited

3. Renuka Cement Limited 3. PCLFinancial Services Private

4. Pragnya Priya Foundation Limited

5. SujalaInvestments Private Limited 4. Arunachala Holdings Private Limited
6. Rain Enterprises Private Limited 5. Apeetha Enterprises Private Limited
7. Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. 6. Nivee Holdings Private Limited

8. Rain CII Carbon LLC 7. Nivee Property Developers Private

9. ClICarbon Corp Limited

10. Handy Chemicals (USA) Ltd 8. Pragnya Priya Foundation

11. Rain Carbon Inc.

14 Membership/ Chairmanship of I) Member: I) Member:

Committees of other Boards A. Audit and Nomination and A. Corporate Social Responsibility

Remuneration Committee of
1. Rain Cements Limited
2. RainClII Carbon (Vizag) Limited
B. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of
1. Rain Cements Limited
II) Chairman
A. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee
1. RainCII Carbon (Vizag) Limited

Committee of
1. Rain Cements Limited

Place: Hyderabad
Date: June 25, 2020

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

By order of the Board
forRain Industries Limited

S.Venkat Ramana Reddy
Company Secretary
M. No. A14143
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Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 45" Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements (standalone and

consolidated) for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
A) Standalone

The Standalone performance for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019 is as under:

The financial summary

(In ¥ Million)

S.No. Particulars December 31,2019 December 31,2018
1 Revenue from operations 637.91 1,053.53
2 Profit before finance cost, depreciation and tax expense 579.73 974.62
3 Finance Cost 186.70 196.08
4 Profit before depreciation and tax expense 393.03 778.54
5 Depreciation 5.86 5.20
6 Profit before Tax Expense 387.17 773.34
7 Tax Expense 32.78 168.68
8 Profit After Tax Expense 354.39 604.66
9 Add: Surplus at the beginning of the year 617.15 745.65
10 Total Available for appropriation 971.54 1,350.31

Appropriations:
11 Dividend including taxes 336.35 672.69
12 Transfer to general reserve 35.44 60.47
13 Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 599.75 617.15
B) Consolidated
The Consolidated performance for the Financial Year ended December 31,2019 is as under:
The financial summary

(In¥ Million)

S.No. Particulars December 31,2019 December 31,2018
1 Revenue from operations 123,607.97 140,489.93
2 Profit before finance cost, depreciation, share of (loss)[profit of associates and tax 16,371.47 20,063.72

expense
3 Finance cost 4524.01 4565.13
4 Profit before depreciation, share of (loss)[profit of associates and tax expense 11,847.46 15,498.59
5 Depreciation 5,940.15 5,550.86
6 Profit before share of (loss)/profit of associates and tax expenses 5,907.31 9,947.73
7 Share of (loss)[profit of associates (net of income tax) (0.21) 8.80
8 Profit before tax expense 5,907.10 9,956.53
9 Tax expense 1,282.76 3,643.22
10 Profit after tax expense 4,624.34 6,313.31
11 Non-controlling interests 710.50 497.05
12 Profit after tax expense after non-controlling interests 3,913.84 5,816.26
13 Add:Surplus at the beginning of the year 43,103.64 38,020.54
14 Total Available for appropriation 47,017.48 43,836.80

Appropriations:
15 Dividend including taxes 382.30 672.69
16 Transfer to general reserve 121.28 60.47
17 Surplus carried to the Balance Sheet 46,513.90 43,103.64
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State of the Company'’s Affairs

During the year under review, the Company achieved revenue
0f% 637.91 million and net profit of ¥ 354.39 million on a
standalone basis. During the same period, the consolidated
revenue was ¥ 123,607.97 million and net profit after
non-controlling interests was ¥ 3,913.84 million.

The Company continues with its rigorous cost-optimisation
initiatives and efficiency improvements, which have resulted in
significant savings through continued focus on cost controls,
process efficiencies and product innovations that exceed
customer expectations in all areas, enabling the Company to
maintain profitable growth in the a healthy economic scenario.

However, since the closure of the financial year ended December
31,2019, the global coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has caused
significant economic and social disruption worldwide. In Europe
and North America, our production facilities continue to operate
in areas where “stay-at-home” orders have been issued, as they are
considered “essential” businesses that serve other critical industries
such as aluminium and steel. As of this date, we anticipate that
coronavirus could have a material impact on the Company’s
performance at least through the first half of financial year 2020.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Cautionary Statement

RAIN Industries Limited along with its subsidiary companies

in India and abroad are together referred to as “RAIN Group”.
Statements in this business outlook describing RAIN Group’s
estimates and expectations may be forward-looking statements.
Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or
implied. Important factors that could impact RAIN Group’s
operations include economic conditions affecting demand and
supply for the products manufactured by RAIN Group; price
conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which RAIN
Group operates; changes in government regulations, tax laws
and statutes; and other incidental factors.

Overview

RAIN Group is one of the world’s largest producers of calcined
petroleum coke, coal tar pitch, other carbon products and
advanced materials. RAIN Group operates in three key business

REVENUE (%)

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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verticals: Carbon, Advanced Materials and Cement. RAIN Group
has eighteen manufacturing facilities in eight countries across
three continents and continues to grow through capacity
expansions and mergers and acquisitions throughout the world.

Our Carbon business segment converts the by-products of oil
refining (i.e., green petroleum coke or “GPC”) and a by-product
of metallurgical coke production (i.e., coal tar) into high-value
carbon-based products [i.e., calcined petroleum coke (or “CPC”),
coal tar pitch (or “CTP”) and other carbon products (or “OCP”)]
that are critical raw materials for the aluminium, graphite,
carbon black, wood preservation, titanium dioxide, refractory
and other global industries.

Our Advanced Materials business segment carries out the
innovative downstream transformation of a portion of our
carbon output, petrochemicals and other raw materials into
high-value materials that are critical to the specialty chemicals,
coatings, construction, automotive, petroleum, energy storage
and other global industries.

Our Cement business segment produces and markets high-
quality ordinary portland cement (or “OPC”) and portland
pozzolana cement (or “PPC”) consumed largely by the civil
construction and infrastructure industries within South India.

Our scale and process sophistication provide us the flexibility
to capitalise on market opportunities by selecting raw materials
from a wide range of sources across various geographies,
adjusting the composition of our product mix and producing
products that meet stringent customer specifications, including
several specialty products.

Our global manufacturing footprint and our integrated
worldwide logistics network have strategically positioned

us to capitalise on market opportunities by addressing raw
material supply and product demand on a global basis in both
established (mainly North America and Europe) and emerging
markets (mainly Asia and the Middle East).

Revenue and operating profit contributions from our three
business segments for the year 2019 are as follows:

OPERATING PROFIT (%)

Carbon
Advanced Materials
Cements
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Carbon

Carbon consists of calcined petroleum coke (“CPC”), coal
tar pitch (“CTP”), and derivatives of coal tar distillation
including carbon black oil, creosote oil, naphthalene

oil, other aromatic oils and co-generated energy

from waste-heat recovery. This segment contributed
approximately 66% of the consolidated revenue of RAIN
Group for CY 2019.

The Carbon business converts the by-products of

oil refining and a by-product of metallurgical coke
production into high-value carbon-based products that
are crucial for the manufacturing of aluminium, graphite,

carbon black, wood preservation, titanium dioxide,
refractory and other global industries.

Environment-friendly and energy-efficient practices have
made RAIN Group’s Carbon business highly efficient and
sustainable. The Carbon business co-generates energy

at four calcined petroleum coke plants with a combined
power generation capacity of approximately 125 MW. The
Company has made substantial investments in flue-gas
desulphurisation (“FGD”) to reduce emissions at its
plants in India and in the United States. These strategic
investments give the Carbon business a competitive
advantage in the CPC industry.

Carbon Segment - Revenue Mix

Revenue-mix from Carbon segment by Product, User-Industry and Geography for the year 2019 are as follows:

PRODUCT (%)

USER - INDUSTRY (%)

GEOGRAPHY (%)

CPC Aluminium The Americas

CTP Carbon Black Europe

oCP Graphite Asia

Energy Wood Preservation Middle East
Tio2 Africa

Others
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1.1. Calcined Petroleum Coke (“CPC")
RAIN Group carries on the business of manufacturing
and selling of CPC through its wholly owned
subsidiaries in India and the USA. RAIN Group has six
CPC manufacturing plants in the United States and
one CPC plant in India with an aggregate production
capacity of approximately 2.1 million tonnes per
annum. In addition, RAIN Group is setting up a
greenfield CPC plant with a capacity of 0.37 million
tonnes per annum, using vertical-shaft technology
in the Andhra Pradesh Special Economic Zone,
Visakhapatnam, India. We expect the vertical-shaft
CPC plant to commence operations during the first
half of CY 2020. Adding this vertical-shaft technology
to the portfolio will allow the CPC business to offer
its customers a wider range of quality options to meet
their CPC requirements.

CPCis produced from GPC, a porous black solid that
is a by-product of the crude-oil refining process,
through a process known as “calcining”. This process
removes moisture and volatile matter from the GPC
at a very high temperature. CPC is produced in two
primary qualities: (i) anode-grade CPC (for use in the
aluminium smelting process), and (ii) industrial-
grade CPC (for use in the manufacturing of titanium
dioxide and other industrial applications). Anode-
grade CPCrepresents approximately 78% of global
CPC production, and industrial-grade CPC represents
the remaining 22%. For every tonne of primary
aluminium produced, approximately 0.4 tonnes of
CPCis consumed.
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WORLD CPC-END-USE DEMAND MIX (%) GLOBAL CPC-DEMAND & SUPPLY

(in Million Tonnes)

Aluminium
Needle
Recarburizer
Titanium Dioxide
Other

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

. Demand . Production = Surplus/(Deficit)

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

Worldwide CPC production for CY 2019 was about The price of GPC varies depending on the quality and
28.5 million tonnes, 75% of which was produced in the market in which it is utilised. The price of GPC
China and North America, comprising 75% of global is largely driven by prevailing demand and supply
demand. China continues to play a dominant role conditions. A refinery typically realises higher prices
in the CPC industry, and its share of the world’s CPC for GPC that is used in production of anode-grade
production is estimated to remain at 56 - 59% in the CPC and industrial-grade CPC as compared to GPC
near term. China and North America will maintain used as a fuel.

a positive surplus. Due to a large gap between

production and demand in the Middle East, Asian WORLD ANODE-GRADE GPC-DEMAND & SUPPLY
calciners are expected to increase their focus on the (in Million Tonnes)

region for the surplus capacity.

As per recent industry estimates, worldwide demand
for CPC aggregated to approximately 28.4 million
tonnes in CY 2019. The demand is expected to

grow to approximately 31.9 million tonnes by CY
2024, representing a CAGR of +2.3%. Worldwide
production of CPC aggregated to approximately 28.5
million tonnes in CY 2019 and is expected to grow
to approximately 31.9 million tonnes by CY 2024,
representing a CAGR of +2.3%.

RAIN Group estimates that more than 280 oil
refineries worldwide produce and sell GPC in varying
forms and qualities. Generally, the sale of GPC does
not constitute a material portion of oil refineries’
revenues. The quality of GPC is largely a function of
the crude oil being refined. Manufacturers of CPC 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
blend various grades of GPC (and CPC) to meet the

stringent quality specifications of their customers. M pemand

. Production = Surplus/(Deficit)

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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WORLD ANODE-GRADE GPC - BALANCE IN 2019 (SURPLUS /
(DEFICIT) (in Million Tonnes)
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Source: Management Estimate and Industry
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In general, it is advantageous for oil refineries to
process more sour crude, as compared to sweet
crude, to improve their profitability. The price
spread between sweet crude and sour crude has
increased. This economic incentive for refineries to
process sour crudes has the effect of reducing the
production of anode-grade GPC. In fact, a significant
volume of existing anode-grade GPC quality has
deteriorated due to increased use of sour crude by
refineries. Nonetheless, it should be noted that many
coking units will continue to produce anode-grade
GPC because these refineries are unable to process
sour crudes due to limitations of their refinery
configuration. However, a few refineries process
sweet crudes based on logistical advantages to

those locations.

In general, CPC and GPC prices move in parallel.
Hence, CPC producers are converters with an ability
to pass on the increase/decrease in GPC cost to their
customers. However, there may be a time lag of one or
two quarters for CPC prices to reflect changes in GPC
costs. During this time lag, CPC producers will realise
lower or higher convertor margin.

The availability of low-sulphur GPC is expected to be
negatively affected due to regulations implemented
by the International Convention for the Prevention
of Pollution from Ships (“MARPOL”), which went
into effect at the beginning of 2020 and is expected
to cause oil-refining companies to shift to heavier or
high-sulphur crudes. The regulation aims to reduce
the amount of sulphurous gasses emitted at sea by
reducing the allowable level of sulphur in marine
fuel used for operating ships from 3% to 0.5%. It is
expected that larger vessels will use scrubbers to meet
this requirement. The freight cost is estimated to
increase in all perspectives. Refineries may also find

it reasonable to process the high-sulphur feedstock
in their cokers to get a premium rather than
selling high-sulphur fuel oil (HSFO) at a discount.
Hence, there is a limited possibility of a petroleum
coke shortage due to the implementation of new
regulations by MARPOL.

Threats & Challenges-CPC

The main threat for the CPC industry is the
availability of suitable-quality GPC. GPC is a by-
product of the oil refining process and is not
produced to meet the supply or quality needs of CPC
or aluminium producers. Changes in the economics
of processing sour crudes over the past 15 - 20 years
have resulted in a trend towards refining more sour
crudes. While petroleum refineries continue to build
refining capacity (and, therefore, indirectly increase
GPC production), the global supply of traditional
anode-grade GPC is expected to grow at a slower pace
as refineries are processing more sour crude, which
results in the production of lower-quality (fuel-grade)
GPC. Thus, global CPC producers have experienced,
and may continue to experience, a decline in the
availability of high-quality anode-grade GPC.

CPC quality directly influences anode quality in the
performance of aluminium smelters. To meet the
aluminium industry’s demand for consistent quality
of anode-grade CPC, RAIN Group works closely with
smelters to expand existing quality specifications,
allowing use of more non-traditional anode coke
(“NTAC”) in blends for the production of anode-grade
CPC without compromising on quality. RAIN Group’s
patented Isotropic Coke Experiment (“ICE”) technology
is one method of utilising grades of GPC previously

not considered acceptable to produce anode-grade
CPC. Additionally, strategic investments in flue-gas
desulphurisation at the Chalmette, Lake Charles and
Norco plants in Louisiana, USA as well as the existing
Vizag calciner and the new vertical-shaft calciner

in India have enabled RAIN Group to unlock an
unmatched advantage of utilising high-sulphur GPC
more efficiently to serve the growing demand from
aluminium smelters without compromising on quality.

During CY 2019, RAIN Group announced plans

to produce anhydrous carbon pellets (“ACP”), a
proprietary product developed through years of
research and development, to mitigate the risk of
reduced anode-grade GPC supply. ACP would be
produced by using carbon fines and other non-anode
grade GPC, which are abundantly available to meet
the ever-increasing demand for anode-grade GPC
from calciners.

It is expected that India will continue to lead CPC
demand growth in the world (ex-China) as a result of
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capacity expansions by major aluminium producers WORLD CTP-PRODUCTION VS. DEMAND (in Million Tonnes)

in the country over next few years.

With the restrictions on the import of GPC by
calciners and the import of CPC by aluminium
smelters, capped at 1.40 million tonnes per annum
and 0.50 million tonnes per annum respectively by
the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India, the additional
requirement of both calciners and smelters will
have to be met from domestic supplies within India.
Further, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has also
directed the Ministry of Environment to finalise

the standards of emissions from calciners by March
2020. RAIN Group, with its FGD scrubbing facilities
at its existing calciner in Visakhapatnam and the
new vertical-shaft calciner nearing completion, is
well prepared to meet the emission standards to be
announced by the Ministry of Environment.

1.2. Coal Tar Pitch (“CTP”) and Other Carbon Products
RAIN Group operates four coal tar distillation
facilities in Belgium, Canada, Germany and Russia,

with an aggregate primary coal tar distillation 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
capacity of approximately 1.3 million tonnes per )
annum. Coal tar distillation is carried out in Belgium, I pemand B Production

Canada and Germany through wholly owned
subsidiaries, and coal tar distillation is carried

out in Russia through a joint venture with PAO R
Severstal, Russia. WORLD CTP-BALANCEIN 2019 (in Million Tonnes)

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

Coal taris a liquid by-product derived from the o
conversion of coal into metallurgical coke. During ~ N
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this conversion, approximately 80% of the coal o
volume is processed into metallurgical coke. . ‘

Metallurgical coke is an important reducing agent ' .
— <
< —
N S
S e

o
=
o

and energy source in blast furnaces that produce pig
iron and steel. Consequently, the supply of coal tar is
correlated to pig iron production, which, in turn, is
driven by steel production. Asia (including 54% from
China) contributes approximately 76% of total global
pig iron production and Europe (including 4% from China  Americas Middle  Europe  Other Others
Russia) contributes about 13%. East Asia

Every tonne of metallurgical coke produced yields Source: Management Estimate and Industry
on average 0.04 tonnes of coal tar. Coal tar is the
main raw material in the coal tar distillation
process. The coal tar distillation process can

be categorised into two stages: (i) primary coal

tar distillation (“primary distillation”) and (ii)
downstream processing of selected products of
primary distillation into co-generated refined
products (“downstream”). With a distillation yield
of approximately 48%, CTP is the main end-product
in the coal tar distillation business and therefore
crucial for its growth. Coal tar distillation also yields
naphthalene oil (approximately 12%) and aromatic
oils (approximately 40%).

As per recent industry estimates, global demand for
CTP aggregated to approximately 7.3 million tonnes
in CY 2019. This is expected to grow to approximately
8.3 million tonnes by CY 2024, representing a CAGR
of +2.6%. Global production of CTP aggregated to
approximately 7.4 million tonnes in CY 2019 and is
expected to grow to approximately 8.3 million tonnes
by CY 2024, representing a CAGR of +2.4%.

Geographically, CTP production is led by China,
followed by Europe and Asia with these three markets

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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having an aggregate share of 90% in CY 2019. China,
Europe and Asia (excluding China) currently have
surplus production. While China will maintain
this surplus through CY 2024 with a CAGR of 2.9%,
the levels of surplus production over demand for
CTP in Europe should decline through CY 2024. The
levels of surplus production over demand for CTP
in other regions are expected to remain negative

in future years.

Seventy-eight percent of the world’s CTP production
is used to produce carbon anodes for aluminium

smelting. For every tonne of primary aluminium
produced, approximately 0.1 tonne of CTP is
consumed. Therefore, production of primary
aluminium is an important determinant of demand
for CTP. The second-largest CTP end-users, consuming
approximately 10% of global production, are graphite
electrode producers. Graphite electrodes are used in
the manufacturing of steel using electric arc furnaces.
Elsewhere, demand for CTP is increasing as a key
component in the production of solar panels, LED
lights and in materials such as carbon fiber.

WORLD ALUMINIUM - PRODUCTION & DEMAND

(in Million Tonnes)

2020 2021 2022 2023

2024

2019
. Consumption . Production

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

WORLD ALUMINIUM - GREENFIELD & BROWNFIELD
EXPANSION (%)

China India
Other Others
Middle East

Europe including Russia
North America

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

The aluminium industry is the largest consumer of
calcined petroleum coke and coal tar pitch. Global
demand for primary aluminium aggregated to
approximately 63.4 million tonnes in CY 2019 and

is expected to grow to approximately 70.0 million
tonnes by CY 2024, representing a CAGR of +2.0%.
Global production of primary aluminium aggregated
to 63.6 million tonnes in CY 2019 and is expected to
grow to approximately to 71.2 million tonnes by CY
2024. Of the total production in CY 2019, 56% was
from China, 11.9% from Europe (including Russia)
and 6% from North America. Production of primary
aluminium is growing in Asia (excluding China) and
the Middle East, and these two markets contributed
6.9% and 8.9% of global primary aluminium
production during CY 2019. The expected demand
will be driven by electrical conductors, increased
usage in automobiles and significant growth in
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the packaging industry. India is expected to see an
increase in aluminium consumption, which mainly
will be driven by the construction, automobile and
packaging industries.

Aluminium continues to chip away steel’s previously
unassailable position as the metal of choice for

the automotive industry. Due to more stringent
regulations and societal pressure to improve fuel
economy, automobile manufacturers are increasing
their use of lighter materials such as aluminium

for the structural shell of vehicles as well as

closing panels such as the hood, trunk and doors.
Aluminium producers will continue to innovate with
new alloys and production processes to meet the
automotive industry’s demand.
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By 2024, more than 6.0 million tonnes of aluminum
smelting capacity additions are expected through
various greenfield and brownfield projects
announced across the world. Approximately 62%

of the additional capacity will take place in China
and 38% in Asia (excluding China), Europe and

the Middle East.

Other Carbon Products from Tar Distillation
Naphthalene, as a chemical intermediate, is used
mainly as a precursor to other chemicals or as a
solvent for chemical reaction. Naphthalene is used
both in the production of dispersants and by the
construction industry, and as superplasticizers

to produce concrete and gypsum. Therefore,
demand for naphthalene is correlated to the
construction industry.

Naphthalene is also used in the production of
phthalic anhydride as a substitute for ortho-xylene
as it is more cost-effective. Phthalic anhydride is used
in the manufacturing of plastics, polyester resins
and alkyd resins. Additionally, phthalate esters made
from phthalic anhydride are used as plasticisers

in the production of several PVC products. RAIN’s
Advanced Materials segment produces phthalic
anhydride, and a majority of the raw material
(naphthalene) is supplied internally.

Aromatic oils, such as creosote oil and carbon back
oil, are sold to a variety of industries. Creosote

oilis used by the wood-treatment industry for

the impregnation of wood. The majority of this
production is sold to the North American market as
the European market has seen decreased demand due
to environmental restrictions.

Carbon black oil is primarily sold to the carbon black
industry, which produces carbon black for the tyre
and rubber industries. Therefore, demand for our

carbon black oil is dependent on these end industries.

After industrial processing, the downstream
products made from naphthalene and aromatic
oils, such as phthalic anhydride and toluene, form
indispensable constituents of many articles of
daily life. For example, they are used as key raw
materials in the leather, construction, car tyres and
pharmaceutical industries.

Threats & Challenges - CTP and Other Carbon
Products

The main threat to the supply of CTP is the
availability of reliable quantities of coal tar from the
steel industry. With approximately 10% of global coal
tar production coming from the EU’s 27 countries,
the region’s supply of coal tar meets most of the

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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coal tar requirements for RAIN Group’s distillation
operations, which are located predominantly in
Europe. Steel production using electric arc furnaces
is becoming more prevalent due to various factors
including its superior technology and lower
emissions compared to traditional blast furnaces. As
aresult, coal tar production is limited to the existing
capacities of metallurgical coke ovens. RAIN Group
strengthened its coal tar sourcing through its Russian
joint venture. With approximately 5% of global coal
tar production, Russia contributes significantly to
coal tar supply in the region.

Although the aluminium industry has experienced
production and consumption growth on a long-term
basis, there may be cyclical periods of weak demand
that could result in decreased primary aluminium
production. RAIN Group’s sales have historically
declined during such cyclical periods of weak global
demand for aluminium.

Research and development is being conducted by
certain smelters to produce carbon-free aluminium
for reducing emission of greenhouse gases through
the use of inert anodes, which would replace
traditional carbon anodes. However, the ability to
retrofit such technology by existing aluminium
smelters and the cost of producing aluminium using
inert anodes are yet to be established. The energy
consumption for an inert anode cell will increase by
15-20% compared to a carbon anode cell, for example.
Given that substantial quantities of greenhouse gases
are released in the generation of electricity consumed
in aluminium smelting, anything that increases
energy consumption has the potential to significantly
increase greenhouse gas emissions. More than 60%

of aluminium smelters across the world today use
electricity generated from coal-fired power plants,
and such smelters do not aim to produce carbon-free
aluminium, as it would be difficult for them to find
alternative sources of carbon-free electricity.

The curtailment of coal tar distillation by certain
manufacturers in North America and Europe has
minimised the demand for coal tar and benefited
RAIN Group with improved availability of raw
material for its distillation plants.

Increasing demand from traditional end customers as
well as demand from more recent applications such
as lithium-ion batteries, solar panels and LED light
bulbs are gradually tightening the global balance

for supply of CTP. In the event of future coal tar and
CTP shortages, petroleum pitch would be the most
reliable alternative for the aluminium industry, as

it can be blended with coal tar pitch for preparing

the carbon anodes.
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1.3.

Naphthalene and aromatic oils (other by-products

in primary distillation) are subject to the demand
and supply forces of the construction and automotive
industries and changes in prices of correlated
commodities. Any decrease in prices of fuel oil

and ortho-xylene could reduce margins and
competitiveness of naphthalene and aromatic oils.

Co-Generated Energy

RAIN Group is committed to environmental
compliance at all of its facilities. As part of this
commitment, RAIN Group has made significant
investments in waste-heat recovery (“WHR”) systems
to generate steam or electricity in all three business
verticals of Carbon, Advanced Materials and Cement.
Currently, RAIN Group has co-generation power
plants at five plants, with an aggregate capacity of
116 MW. Further, RAIN Group has co-generation
steam plants at four plants, with an aggregate
capacity of 59 MW.

The operation of these waste-heat recovery units
reduces greenhouse gas emissions by offsetting the
use of fossil fuels that would be otherwise required
to produce an equivalent amount of energy. This
significantly reduces RAIN Group’s carbon footprint.

As further evidence of RAIN Group’s commitment to
the environment, it has made substantial investments
in flue-gas desulfurisation at its CPC plants in India
and USA to substantially reduce the emission of
sulphur-dioxide to meet all regulatory requirements
for air-quality standards.

Threats & Challenges - Energy

Energy production is proportional to the waste heat
produced during calcination process. The output

is subject to the volume and quality of raw material
being processed in calcination. Any decrease in
capacity utilisations in calcination or change in

raw material quality will directly influence the
generation of energy. A substantial part of the energy
produced is sold to external customers for industrial
use. Availability of alternate economical sources

of energy, such as solar energy, to these industries

in the future could cause a reduction in sales of
energy by RAIN Group.

A trend of declining tariffs in India continues to
impact revenues from the sale of energy. Part of the
energy generated at our CPC plants, as well as our
cement operations, is captively used to power those
operations, mitigating the risk of declining energy
tariffs. Energy revenues in the United States are less
subject to fluctuations as much of these sales are
under long-term agreements with fixed prices.

Advanced Materials

RAIN Group is a global leader in the production of
advanced materials through the innovative downstream
transformation of a portion of our carbon output,
petrochemicals and other raw materials into high-value
materials that are critical to the specialty chemicals,
coatings, construction, automotive, petroleum and
other global industries. RAIN Group operates advanced
materials production facilities in Belgium, Canada,
Germany and the Netherlands.

RAIN Group produces 0.65 million tonnes of advanced
materials product per annum. Its products have
applications ranging from rubber tyres to printing inks,
and from energy storage to pharmaceutical products. To
expand and diversify the segment, RAIN Group is setting
up a hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins (“HHCR”) plant
atits integrated coal and petrochemical site in Castrop-
Rauxel, Germany with an initial capacity of 30,000 tonnes.
This plant will produce various HHCR products with full
flexibility of operations using special proprietary and
patented technology of RAIN Group.

RAIN Group produces advanced materials in two parallel
production processes:

o Downstream processing and refining of aromatic
distillates

o Petroleum derivatives, such as C9 and C10, which
serve as raw materials for the production of a range of
advanced material products

About 26% of RAIN Group’s consolidated revenue for

CY 2019 is from this segment. The Advanced Materials
business can be classified broadly into four sub-product
categories: engineered products, petrochemical
intermediates, naphthalene derivates and resins.

2.1. Engineered Products
RAIN Group’s innovative CARBORES® binder, an
engineered pitch product, combines the advantages
of coal tar pitch products and phenolic resins. Coal
tar pitch contains polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons
(PAHs) that require special safety precautions during
its use. CARBORES® is a substitute binder used in
carbon-containing refractory products and graphite
products, created with reduced concentration of
PAHs. While designed for refractory products,
the property profile of CARBORES® also allows
it to be substituted for standard coal tar pitch in
other applications.

The Company’s portfolio of engineered products
also includes PETRORES®, which is used in
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specialty applications such as lithium-ion batteries
and energy storage. PETRORES® is produced by
further processing petroleum tar, which we procure
from refineries.

2.2. Petrochemical Intermediates
RAIN Group produces benzene, toluene and xylene
from the secondary distillation of crude benzene, a
liquid by-product derived from conversion of coal
into metallurgical coke used for pig iron and steel
production. Benzene, toluene and xylene are critical
inputs for several chemicals-based substances.
Applications of toluene and xylene include use as
solvents for inks and paints.

2.3. Naphthalene Derivatives
RAIN Group produces phthalic anhydride, poly-
naphthalene sulfonates and modifiers from the
downstream refining of naphthalene and from other
inputs procured externally.

The Company also produces specialty polymers called
superplasticisers from the downstream refining,
polymerisation and purification of naphthalene

2.4.
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oil and naphthalene. Superplasticisers are used as
in-process aids in the manufacture of concrete and
gypsum wallboard and have widespread use for a
variety of industrial and agricultural applications.

In addition, RAIN Group produces a wide range

of differentiated naphthalene and melamine
superplasticisers in liquid and powder form, as well
as carboxylate dispersants in liquid form.

Resins

RAIN Group manufactures hydrocarbon resins

based on coal tar distillates produced during the
downstream refining of carboindene and from C9
and C10, which are liquid by-products derived from
the steam cracking of petroleum substances. Coal
tar-based resins are used primarily for applications in
coatings and rubber tyres while petrochemical-based
resins are used primarily for applications in adhesives
and printing inks. The Company recently introduced
a family of colourless resins used in colour-sensitive
applications such as tape and book bindings.

The Company also produces phenolics, which are
used for applications in leather treatment, electric
wire enamels and pharmaceuticals.

Advanced Materials Segment - Revenue Mix

REVENUE (%)

CUSTOMER (%)

Petrochemical Intermediates
Engineered Products

Resins
Napthalene Derivates

Construction

P Rubber

Coatings Refactory
Distribution Gypsum
Speciality Chemicals Printing
Petroleum Others
Adhesives
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Outlook

Based on slowing GDP growth in key markets, mainly
Europe, political uncertainties like the USA-China
trade dispute and the return of volatility of raw-
material markets, we expect more challenging and
uncertain business conditions in the near future.

Europe is the main market for our resins, modifiers
and petrochemicals. Lower demand by the coatings
and adhesive industries will be offset by improving
demand from tyre industry resulting in an overall
stable volume in resins and modifiers business. This
segment will benefit from our new product, NOVARES®
pure hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins (“HHCR”),
produced at our new HHCR plant in Germany.
Carbonless copy paper and coatings are some of our
end customers for products manufactured by our
modifiers group. The majority of these customers are
from Asia. Demand for these products shall remain
moderate due to intense competition from China.
Our 3.5 DMP product, although a small contributor, is
used in disinfectants and has a strong market in Asia
with an expected increase in demand.

Among petrochemicals, phthalic anhydride

(“PA”) is highly competitive since the primary raw
material naphthalene is available in-house from
our distillation business. Further, the naphthalene-
based process is cost advantaged compared to
ortho xylene-based production. In coming years,
the overall outlook of petrochemicals is stable due
to the partial offset of benzene, toluene, xylene
performance with PA.

North America is our main market for polymers,
superplasticisers and naphthalene. The products

are mainly used in producing gypsum as well as

in concrete mixture for construction. Delays in
infrastructure projects have affected the performance
of this business. Investment in infrastructure,
industrial and residential projects shall maintain the
overall outlook stable in coming years. Oversupply
will continue to impact naphthalene business.

Our engineered products business shall benefit from the
sealer market in North America with our new sealer,
ULTRASEAL, and growing demand in Asia for PETRORES®
in lithium-ion anode applications. With stable demand
from refractories in Asia, the performance of our
CARBORES® products shall be moderate. Overall,

the outlook for this business is positive.

Due to falling demand for certain advanced materials,
we announced the shutdown of our Uithoorn
production facility in the Netherlands by March 2020.
The products from that plant that were profitable
have been transitioned to our existing plant in
Duisburg, Germany. With higher capacity utilisation

of the Duisburg plant, and the elimination of costs
related to the operation of the Uithoorn facility, the
performance of this part of our business is expected
to improve from CY 2020.

To meet growing demand for white-water resins,
we are constructing the HHCR production facility
in Castrop-Rauxel, Germany, which is expected

to commence commercial operations in the first-
half of CY 2020.

Threats & Challenges - Advanced Materials

Key threats to RAIN Group’s Advanced Materials
business are volatility in commodity prices and
Chinese competition. The price of benzene, C9 and
C10 fractions largely depend on the price of crude
and fuel oil. Tariffs implemented by the United States
have caused Chinese products to compete in the
European market. We expect this to continue until

a comprehensive trade agreement between the two
countries is finalised.

RAIN Group tries to mitigate its pricing and
procurement risks through an integrated global
management of sales and procurement, optimised
processes and long-term agreements with suppliers to
ensure reliable sourcing of raw material.

The quarterly operating results fluctuate due to
avariety of factors that are outside our control,
including inclement weather conditions, which in
the past have affected operating results. Historically,
our operating results have been lower in the first
and fourth quarters as compared to the second and
third quarters.

Cement

RAIN Group has two integrated cement plants, one each
in the states of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh, India
with an aggregate installed capacity of 4 million tonnes
per annum. RAIN Group also has a fly-ash handling and
cement-packaging unit in the state of Karnataka, India.
About 8% of the consolidated revenue of RAIN Group for
CY 2019 is from the Cement business segment.

RAIN Group’s cement plants manufacture two grades of
cement: ordinary portland cement (“OPC”) and portland
pozzolana cement (“PPC”). The plants are strategically
located near the primary raw material source of limestone.
The fly-ash handling unit in the state of Karnataka has a
cement-packaging unit that converts the bulk cement into
packed cement bags and supplies neighboring areas. Of
the total cement produced, PPC grade accounts for about
75% and OPC grade about 25%.

RAIN Group has been constantly reducing the output cost

by introducing efficient energy measures, such as waste-
heat recovery power plants and the use of fuel-grade green

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



petroleum coke to heat its furnaces. Stringent standards
stipulated by Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) are applied
in cement production to attain consistency in quality.

The major costs in the production of cement are (a)
freight and transportation and (b) power and fuel, each
constituting 25 - 30% of the total cost of manufacturing.
RAIN Group constantly works to improve efficiencies in
logistics, such as entering into long-term contracts with
transport agencies for transportation of cement to all
dealers spread across various states. The downside risk
is that any increase in fuel prices could adversely affect
freight costs.

The Cement business segment consumes up to 29MW of
electricity. RAIN Group supplements this segment’s power
requirements with electricity generated at its CPC plant in
Visakhapatnam and from two waste-heat recovery power
plants with an aggregate capacity of 11IMW in the Kurnool
and Suryapet cement plants.

Cement Industry Growth in India
The Indian cement industry is estimated to have a total
production capacity of 485 million tonnes during CY
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2019, with an additional capacity of 23 million tonnes
under construction. Total capacity is expected to increase
to approximately 550 million tonnes by CY 2024. Cement
is a cyclical commodity with a high correlation to GDP.
The Indian housing sector is the most critical demand
driver of cement, accounting for about 65% of total
consumption. The other major consumers of cement
include infrastructure (15%) and commercial and
industrial construction (20%). During the last few years,
low capacity utilisation, coupled with weak prices and
increasing input costs, have impacted the performance of
the cement industry in India. Subdued operating profits
and high debt-service obligations have led some Indian
cement producers to defer expansion plans.

With increased demand by the infrastructure and housing
sectors, coupled with limited capacity additions, cement
capacity utilisation on a pan-India basis is expected

to improve steadily over next few years. In particular,
demand is expected to be boosted by infrastructure
development in tier-2 and tier-3 cities, growth in the real
estate sector and initiatives to build 100 Smart Cities by the
Government of India.

CEMENT CONSUMPTION BY SECTOR IN 2019 (%)

Infrastructure
Rural Housing
Urban Housing

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

Commercial & Industrial

CEMENT CAPACITY IN INDIA (BY REGION) (%)

North
Central
East
West
South

Source: Management Estimate and Industry

Cement, being a bulk commodity, is freight-intensive, and
transporting it over long distances can be uneconomical.
This has resulted in cement being largely a regional play,
with the industry divided into five main regions in India:
North, South, West, East and Central. The southern region
of India has the highest installed capacity, accounting for
about 34% of the country’s total installed capacity.

Current Position

With increased in infrastructure spending and improved
construction of housing projects, Indian cement industry

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

witnessed a double-digit growth during CY 2019. A lack of
available sand and uncertainty regarding the capital for
the state of Andhra Pradesh has resulted in weaker demand
in Andhra Pradesh. There is an increase in demand for
cement in other southern states.

Near Future

As stated elsewhere, cement demand is closely linked to
the overall economic growth, particularly in the housing
and infrastructure sectors. With the Government of India
introducing new plans for housing and infrastructure
development, cement demand is expected to increase.



BOARD’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Historically, positive incremental demand over supply,

as well as high levels of capacity utilisation, have led to
increases in cement prices. A rebound in demand growth
from CY 2020 is expected to support prices in the southern
region. Cement demand across India is expected to
increase at a CAGR of 8%.

Due to limited capacity additions and a revival in
demand, the cement sector is expected to enter a multi-
year earnings growth cycle where it gains pricing and
operating leverage.

The real estate sector is a crucial contributor to demand
growth in the southern region. Major cities like Bengaluru,
Chennai and Hyderabad have emerged as promising
commercial destinations, which boosts demand for
commercial and office space within these cities. In
addition, these cities are some of the biggest hospitality
markets in southern India, with Hyderabad reporting year-
over-year growth of 7.6%, followed by 4.3% in Bengaluru
and 1.4% in Chennai.

Further, the 2020 Union Budget of India highlighted

a stimulus package of % 103 trillion for developing the
infrastructure sector over the next five years, consisting
of more than 6,500 projects across a range of sectors. The
government’s spending push in the infrastructure sector
should help to expand aggregate demand and the level
of economic activity, thereby cushioning a weakening in
cement consumption.

Threats & Challenges - Cement

The Indian cement industry has witnessed a massive
capacity addition of more than 250 million tonnes
during the last decade. This capacity addition is
disproportionately high when compared to the growth
in demand and concentrated in southern India, with
more than 80 million tonnes of new capacity during
this period. This has resulted in significant pressure

on capacity utilisation and price realisation among the
region’s producers.

The Indian cement industry’s average utilisation has
increased to approximately 70% in CY 2019, led by
improvement in demand and lower capacity additions
during CY 2019. Pan-India utilisation is expected to reach
75% in CY 2020 while the utilisation levels in the southern
region are expected to remain stable at 60% in CY 2020.
Cement demand and capacity utilisation are expected to
improve, as a result of a slower pace in capacity additions
and better demand prospects.

Coronavirus Update

RAIN Group is closely monitoring the global outbreak of
coronavirus (COVID-19), and the Company has implemented
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anumber of measures to protect our employees, communities
and operations so the supply and movement of materials as well
as the services that customers and society depend on from the
Company are not impacted.

Beyond basic actions like encouraging employees to intensify
their personal hygiene practices and instituting significant
travel restrictions, here is a sample of the steps we are taking
to ensure business continuity during this challenging and
unpredictable period:

o Permitting some non-critical operations employees to work
from home offices and to conduct meetings electronically to
avoid the spread of germs during face-to-face interaction

« Implementing a social-distancing program at our sites in
which people are encouraged to maintain a distance of 2
meters from co-workers, contractors and others such as truck
drivers transporting materials to and from our sites

o Limiting the number of outside contractors, vendors and
visitors at our sites, as well as face-to-face interactions
between RAIN Group employees and outsiders

o Maintaining safety inventories that would allow us to
continue production, in the event of a supply-chain
interruption

o Working closely with our suppliers, vendors and customers —
and identifying alternative raw material and logistics sources
and routes - to minimise the risk of supply-chain disruptions

o Relocating finished goods closer to our customers where
feasible, including to other RAIN Group facilities with rail
and water access and infrastructure to reduce our exposure
to truck transportation — particularly in Europe, where the
closing of highway border-crossings is a possibility

« Utilising our chemical know-how to produce cleaning agents
with disinfecting properties to wipe down handrails, door
handles and other surfaces at our facilities and to reduce our
consumption of commercial disinfectants so there is ample
supply for others

Growing fears and uncertainty surrounding the pandemic are
expected to cause a temporary slowdown in economic activity.
In our Carbon and Advanced Materials business segments, our
current expectation is that coronavirus will be a factor for at
least the first half of 2020. We also anticipate that our Cement
business segment will be similarly impacted by a near-term
reduction in construction projects in India, possibly resulting
in muted demand for cement. With the rapidly changing
conditions, the impact on volumes growth and financials
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, as the duration and
scope of disruptions to industry remain largely unclear.
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Listing of Equity Shares
The Company’s equity shares are listed on the following
Stock Exchanges:

(i) BSELimited, Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai-400 001, Maharashtra, India; and

(ii) National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange Plaza,
Floor 5, Plot No. C[1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051, Maharashtra, India.

The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees to the said Stock
Exchanges for the Financial Year 2019-20.

Subsidiary Companies

The Subsidiary Companies situated in India and Outside India
continue to contribute to the overall growth in revenues and
overall performance of the Company.

As per the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a separate
statement containing the salient features of the Financial
Statements of the Subsidiary Companies| Associate Companies/
Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Board’s

Report (Annexure- 1).

The detailed policy for determining material subsidiaries as
approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website
and can be accessed at the Web-link: https:/[rain-industries.
com/investors[#policies

Performance and contribution of each of the
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

As per Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a Report

on the Financial performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Venture Companies along with their contribution to the
overall performance of the Company during the Financial Year
ended December 31,2019 is annexed to this Board’s report
(Annexure - 2).

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year
ended December 31, 2019 forms part of the Annual Report.

As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act,

2013, the Company has placed separate Audited accounts of its
Subsidiaries on its website www.rain-industries.com and a copy
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of separate Audited Financial Statements of its Subsidiaries will
be provided to shareholders upon their request.

Share Capital

The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on December 31,
2019is% 672,691,358 divided into 336,345,679 Equity Shares of
% 2 each fully paid up.

Variations in Net worth

The Standalone Net worth of the Company for the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2019 is % 9,176.74 Million as compared
to0 ¥ 9,158.61 Million for the previous Financial year ended
December 31, 2018 and the Consolidated Net worth of the
Company for the Financial Year ended December 31,2019 is

% 49,599.05 Million as compared to ¥ 46,227.41 Million for the
previous Financial year ended December 31, 2018.

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors
During the year, four Board meetings were held.

The dates on which the Board meetings were held are: February
27,2019, May 8, 2019, August 13,2019 and November 13, 2019.

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings
held during the year ended December 31, 2019 are as follows:

. Number of Board Meetings

Name of the Director Held Attended
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy 4

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore 4 4
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 4 4
Mr. H. L. Zutshi 4 4
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti 4 4
Ms. Nirmala Reddy 4 4
Mr. Varun Batra 4 4
Mr. Brian McNamara! 3 3
Mr. S. L. Rao? 1 1

! Mr. Brian McNamara was appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.

2Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company
w.e.f. March 15,2019

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms an integral
part of this Report and provides details of the overall industry
structure, developments, performance and state of affairs of the
Company’s various businesses viz., Carbon, Advanced Materials,
Cement along with internal controls and their adequacy, Risk
Management Systems and other material developments during
the Financial Year.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement as required under
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement,
the Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirms:

i)  thatin the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed;

ii) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
on December 31, 2019 and of Profit and Loss Account of the
Company for that period;

iii) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) that the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts
for the Financial Year ended December 31,2019 on a
going concern basis;

v)  that the Directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively; and

vi) that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Statement on Declaration given by Independent
Directors under Section 149

The Independent Directors have submitted declaration of
independence, as required pursuant to sub-section (7) of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet
the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6)

of Section 149.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the
following Independent Directors:

Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti, Chairperson, Mr. H. L. Zutshi,
Ms. Nirmala Reddy, Mr. Varun Batra and Mr. Brian McNamara.
o Briefdescription of the terms of reference:

- Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in Senior Management in
accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to
the Board for their appointment and removal;

- Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board;

- Carry on the evaluation of every Director’s performance;
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- Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Director; and

- Recommend to the Board, a policy relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other Employees

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings
During the period from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held
on February 26,2019 and November 12, 2019.

Attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings

. . . Number of Meetings
Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti | Chairperson 2 1
Mr. H. L. Zutshi Member 2 2
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Member 2 2
Mr. Varun Batra Member 2 2
Mr. Brian McNamara' Member 1 1
Mr. S. L. Rao? Member 1 1

! Mr. Brian McNamara was appointed as member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with effect from February 28,2019

2Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f.
March 15,2019.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, Securities or
Investments under Section 186

There are no Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security made
during the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019 as per the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related
Parties

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188 entered by
the Company during the Financial Year ended December 31,
2019 in prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed to this Board’s Report
(Annexure -4).

Transfer of Amount to Reserves
The Company has transferred ¥ 35.44 Million to the General
Reserve for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

Dividend

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on November 13,
2019 declared an Interim Dividend @ 50% on the paid-up Equity
Share Capital i.e., % 1.00 per equity share for the Financial Year
ended December 31, 2019 and same was paid to the shareholders
and no further dividend has been recommended for the
Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

The dividend pay-out is in accordance with the Company’s
Dividend Distribution Policy.
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Dividend Distribution Policy

The Dividend Distribution Policy containing the requirements
mentioned in Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part

of this Annual Report. (Annexure 3) and the policy is also
available on the Company’s website at: https:/[rain-industries.com/
investors/#policies.

Extract of Annual Return

The Extract of Annual Return as per the provisions of Section

92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in Form MGT-9 is
annexed to this Board’s Report (Annexure - 5).

The conservation of energy, technology absorption,
foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to the
provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014

Information with respect to conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to
Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Board’s Report (Annexure - 6).

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee consists of the
following Directors:

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy, Chairman, Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy
Nellore, Member and Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Member.

Mr. T. Srinivasa Rao is the Chief Risk Officer and Mr. S. Venkat
Ramana Reddy acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee had formulated a Risk Management Policy for
dealing with different kinds of risks which it faces in day to
day operations of the Company. Risk Management Policy of the
Company outlines different kinds of risks and risk mitigating
measures to be adopted by the Board. The Company has
adequate internal control systems and procedures to combat
risks. The Risk management procedures are reviewed by the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis at the time of review of the Quarterly Financial results

of the Company.

During the Financial Year, Risk Management Committee
Meeting was held on November 12, 2019.

Attendance at the Risk Management Committee
Meeting:

Number of Meetings

Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy Chairman 1 1
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore Member 1 1
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Member 1 1
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility reflects the strong commitment
of the Company to improve the quality of life of the workforce
and their families and also the community and society at large.
The Company believes in undertaking business in a way that
will lead to overall development of all stakeholders and society.

The Board of Directors of the Company have constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprising of the
following Directors:

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Chairman, Mr. N. Sujith
Kumar Reddy, Member and Ms. Nirmala Reddy, Member
(Independent Director).

Corporate Social Responsibility policy was adopted by the
Board of Directors on the recommendation of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee.

During the last three years, the Company has spent ¥ 7 Million
on CSR activities.

The Company along with its subsidiaries in India has
spent an amount of ¥ 231.09 Million towards CSR activities
during last 3 years.

Areport on Corporate Social Responsibility as Per Rule 8 of
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
is annexed to this Board’s Report (Annexure - 7).

During the Financial Year, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee Meeting was held on November 11, 2019.

Attendance at the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee Meeting:

Number of Meetings

Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore | Chairman 1 1
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Member 1 1
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Member 1 1

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of
following Directors:

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Chairman, Mr. N. Radhakrishna
Reddy, Member, Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Member and
Ms. Nirmala Reddy, Member (Independent Director).

During the Financial Year, Stakeholders Relationship
Committee Meeting was held on February 25, 2019.
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Attendance at Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Meeting:

Number of Meetings

Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Chairman 1 1
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy Member 1 1
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore | Member 1 1
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Member 1 1

Terms of Reference

(i) Resolving the grievances of the security holders including
complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-
receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends,
non-receipt of new/duplicate certificates, etc.

(i) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting
rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by
the Company in respect of various services being rendered
by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(iv) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by
the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company.

Share Transfer Committee
The Share Transfer Committee consists of following Directors:

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Chairman, Mr. N. Radhakrishna
Reddy, Member and Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Member.

The Committee meets every week/15 days to oversee and review
all matters connected with the securities transfers and review
the performance of the Registrar and Transfer agents and
recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality
of investor services.

Mechanism for Evaluation of the Board

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual
evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees
as well as performance of the Directors individually. Feedback
was sought by way of a structured questionnaire covering
various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy
of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board
culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance and the evaluation was carried
out based on responses received from the Directors.
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The evaluation is performed by the Board, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Independent Directors with
specific focus on the performance and effective functioning of
the Board and Individual Directors.

In line with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD|
CIR/P/2017/004, dated January 5, 2017, the Company adopted the
criteria recommended by the SEBL

The Directors were given six Forms for evaluation
of the following:

(i) Evaluation of Board;
(ii) Evaluation of Committees of the Board;
(iii)

(iv) Evaluation of Chairperson;

Evaluation of Independent Directors;

(v) Evaluation of Non-Executive and Non-
Independent Directors; and

(vi)

The Directors were requested to give following ratings
for each criteria:

Evaluation of Managing Director.

1. Could do more to meet expectations;
2. Meets expectations; and

3. Exceeds expectations.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. DVM Gopal,
Practicing Company Secretary as scrutinizer for Board
evaluation process.

The Directors have sent the duly filled forms to Mr. DVM Gopal
after Evaluation.

Mr. DVM Gopal based on the evaluation done by the Directors,
has prepared a report and submitted the Evaluation Report.

The Chairperson based on the report of the scrutinizer has
informed the rankings to each Director and also informed
that based on the Evaluation done by the Directors and also
report issued by Mr. DVM Gopal, the performance of Directors
is satisfactory and they are recommended for continuation as
Directors of the Company.

Familiarization programmes imparted to Independent
Directors

The Members of the Board of the Company have provided many
opportunities to familiarize themselves with the Company, its
Management and its operations. The Directors are provided
with all the documents to enable them to have a better
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understanding of the Company, its various operations and the
industry in which it operates.

All the Independent Directors of the Company are made
aware of their roles and responsibilities at the time of their
appointment through a formal letter of appointment,
which also stipulates various terms and conditions of
their engagement.

Executive Directors and Senior Management provide an
overview of the operations and familiarize the new Non-
Executive Directors on matters related to the Company’s values
and commitments. They are also introduced to the organization
structure, constitution of various committees, board
procedures, risk management strategies, etc.

Strategic Presentations are made to the Board where Directors
get an opportunity to interact with Senior Management.
Directors are also informed of the various developments in the
Company through Press Releases, emails, etc.

Senior management personnel of the Company make
presentations to the Board Members on a periodical basis,
briefing them on the operations of the Company, plans, strategy,
risks involved, new initiatives, etc., and seek their opinions and
suggestions on the same. In addition, the Directors are briefed
on their specific responsibilities and duties that may arise

from time to time.

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company
make presentations to the Board of Directors with regard to
regulatory changes from time to time.

The Independent Directors have attended the Master class for
Directors organized by Institute of Directors, New Delhi.

The details of the familiarisation programme is available on the
website: http://| www.rain-industries.com

Directors

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Vice Chairman of the Company,
also serves as the Chief Executive Officer of Rain Carbon Inc., a
step-down wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company.

To ensure that the Company’s Carbon business receives

the attention necessary to navigate changing raw material
trends, tax laws and other issues; manage organic expansions;
and ensure the ongoing success of this crucial business
segment, Mr. Nellore has decided to dedicate more time to
Rain Carbon Inc.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Whole
Time Director/Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director of

the Companies incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956

or Companies Act, 2013, shall be a Resident in India. With

Mr. Nellore also being the Chief Executive Officer of Rain Carbon
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Inc., it is difficult for him to be in India for a defined period of
time every year.

In view of the above, Mr. Nellore has submitted his resignation
from the position of Managing Director with effect from March
31, 2019, but continues to be the Director & Vice Chairman

of the Company.

Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy
Nellore from the position of Managing Director, Mr. N.
Radhakrishna Reddy has been appointed as Managing Director
of the Company for a period of three years (i.e., from March 31,
2019 to March 30, 2022).

During the year under review, Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from

the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15,2019 due to
advancing age and falling health and Mr. Brian McNamara was
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.
February 28, 2019.

Justification for Appointing Mr. Brian McNamara as an
Independent Director.

Mr. Brian McNamara is a former banker with 31 years

of experience in project finance, corporate finance and
investment management. He worked in investment operations
at International Finance Corporation (IFC) in Washington

D.C. from 1991 to 2015 with responsibility for investment
strategy, business development and project financing for a
range of sectors across emerging markets including chemicals,
textiles, general manufacturing and mining. He has extensive
investment experience in project evaluation, financial
structuring and investment management across the chemicals,
fertilizers, carbon black, plastics, fibers, specialty chemicals and
primary metals industries.

In the opinion of the Board, the appointment of Mr. Brian
McNamara as Independent Director will be value addition to the
Board and would be beneficial for the Company.

Re-appointment

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore and Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy,
Directors of the Company, retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following have been designated as the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company pursuant to Sections 2(51) and
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy - Managing Director
Mr. T. Srinivasa Rao - Chief Financial Officer
Mr. S. Venkat Ramana Reddy - Company Secretary
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During the year under review, there has been a change in the
Key managerial personnel. Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
resigned from the position of Managing Director of the
Company but continues to be Director of the Company and

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy was appointed as a Managing
Director who is a Key Managerial Personnel as per Section 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Meeting of Independent Directors

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held under
the Chairmanship of Mr. Varun Batra, Independent Director
on November 12,2019, inter-alia, to discuss evaluation of the
performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a
whole, evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, taking
into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors and the evaluation of the quality, content and
timeliness of flow of information between the management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform its duties.

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with the
overall performance of the Directors and the Board as a whole.

Registration of Independent Directors in Independent
Directors Databank

All the Independent Directors of the Company have been
registered and are members of Independent Directors Databank
maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

Confirmation from the Board

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given

their respective declaration/disclosures under Section 149(7)
of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations and
have confirmed that they fulfill the independence criteria

as specified under section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation

16 of the Listing Regulations and have also confirmed that
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which
exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence.
Further, the Board after taking these declaration/disclosures on
record and acknowledging the veracity of the same, concluded
that the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and
possess the relevant expertise and experience to qualify as
Independent Directors of the Company and are Independent of
the Management.

Opinion of the Board

The Board opines that all the Independent Directors of the
Company strictly adhere to corporate integrity, possesses
requisite expertise, experience and qualifications to discharge
the assigned duties and responsibilities as mandated by
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations diligently.
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Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public
in terms of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, no
amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits
was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

Statutory Auditors

The Company’s Statutory Auditors, BSR and Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Regn. No.116231W/W-100024),
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for

a period of 5 years at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the
Company, i.e., up to the conclusion of the 48th Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Accordingly, BSR and Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company will continue till the
conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in 2023. In
this regard, the Company has received a Certificate from the
Auditors to the effect that their continuation as Statutory
Auditors, would be in accordance with the provisions of Section
141 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
or disclaimer made by BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants (ICAI Regn. No.116231W[W-100024), Statutory
Auditors in their report for the Financial Year ended
December 31, 2019.

Secretarial Auditors Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors
have appointed DVM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries

as Secretarial Auditors to conduct Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

The Secretarial Auditors Report issued by DVM & Associates LLP,
Company Secretaries in Form MR-3 is annexed to this Board’s
Report (Annexure - 8).

The Secretarial Auditors Report does not contain any
qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer.

Secretarial Audit of Material Unlisted Indian
Subsidiaries

The Material Unlisted Indian Subsidiaries of the company
(i.e., Rain Cements Limited (RCL) and Rain CII Carbon (Vizag)
Limited (RCCVL)) undertake Secretarial Audit every year under
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audit
of RCL and RCCVL for the Financial Year ended December
31,2019 was carried out pursuant to Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The Secretarial Audit Report of RCL issued by Mr. M.B. Suneel,
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Practicing Company Secretary, partner, P.S Rao and Associates
and Secretarial Audit Report of RCCVL issued by Mr. DVM
Gopal, Partner, DVM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark or disclaimer.

The Secretarial Auditors Report of RCL and RCCVL in Form MR-3
are annexed to this Board’s Report (Annexure - 8A and 8B).

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

The Company has undertaken an audit for the Financial Year
ended December 31, 2019 for all applicable compliances as

per Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and
Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder. The Annual Secretarial
Compliance Report issued by Mr. DVM Gopal, practicing
Company Secretary has been submitted to the Stock Exchanges
within 60 days of the end of the Financial Year and same is
annexed to this Board’s Report. (Annexure - 8C)

Board’s response on Auditor’s qualification, reservation
or adverse remarks or disclaimer made

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
made by the statutory auditors in their report or by the
Practicing Company Secretary in the Secretarial Audit

Report for the year.

Internal Auditors

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ernst

& Young LLP as Internal Auditors to conduct Internal Audit

of the Company for the Financial Year ended December 31,
2019. Further, the Company has an in-house internal audit
department to carry-out extensive internal audits and special
management reviews of all operating subsidiary companies in
India, Europe and North America.

Maintenance of Cost Records specified by the Central
Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013

The provisions relating to maintenance of Cost Records as
specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Internal
Auditors and Secretarial Auditor have not reported any
instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or
Employees to the Audit Committee under section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be mentioned
in this Report.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of the following Members (all are
Independent Directors):

Ms. Nirmala Reddy, Chairperson, Mr. H.L. Zutshi, Member,

Mr. Varun Batra, Member, Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti,
Member and Mr. Brian McNamara, Member.
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There has been no such incidence where the Board has not
accepted the recommendation of the Audit Committee during
the year under review.

Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2019. The maximum time gap
between any two meetings was not more than one hundred
and twenty days.

The Audit Committee meetings were held on February 26, 2019,
May 7, 2019, August 13,2019 and November 12, 2019.

Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings

. . . Number of Meetings
Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Chairperson 4 4
Mr. H. L. Zutshi Member 4 4
Mr. S. L. Rao! Member 1 1
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Member 4 3
Mr. Varun Batra Member 4 4
Mr. Brian McNamara? Member 3 3

' Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f.
March 15,2019.

2 Mr. Brian McNamara was appointed as member of Audit Committee
w.e.f. February 28, 2019.

Corporate Governance

The Company has a rich legacy of ethical governance practices
and committed to implement sound corporate governance
practices with a view to bring about transparency in its
operations and maximize shareholder value.

AReport on Corporate Governance along with a Certificate
from the Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of
the Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Companies Act,
2013, the Rules prescribed thereunder and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is implemented through the Company’s Whistle
Blower Policy.

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy establishing
a formal vigil mechanism for the Directors and employees to
report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides
for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees
who avail of the mechanism and provides direct access to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. It is
affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied
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access to the Audit Committee. The policy of vigil mechanism is
available on the Company’s website.

The Whistle Blower Policy aims for conducting the affairs in
a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.
All employees of the Company are covered under the Whistle
Blower Policy.

Statement of particulars of appointment and
remuneration of managerial personnel

The Statement of particulars of Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial personnel as per Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Board’s Report (Annexure -9).

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, unclaimed dividend
amount of ¥ 4,685,496 of the Company for the Financial Year
ended December 31, 2011 has been transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central
Government pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 on May 28, 2019.

During the year, 212,196 equity shares have been
transferred to IEPE.

The Company has transferred an amount of % 2,873,436
towards dividend to IEPF on the shares which were already
transferred to IEPE.

Information in respect of unclaimed dividend and due dates for
transfer to the IEPF are given below:

ﬁl(', For the Financial year ended Percentage of Dividend Date of Declaration Due date for transfer to IEPF
1 December 31,2012 55% April 27,2013 May 26,2020
2 December 31, 2013 (Interim dividend) 50% | November 14,2013 December 13,2020
3 December 31, 2014 (Interim dividend) 50% November 6, 2014 December 7,2021
4 December 31,2015 (Interim dividend) 50% August 14, 2015 September 15,2022
5 December 31, 2016 (Interim dividend) 50% August 13,2016 September 14, 2023
6 December 31,2017 (Interim dividend) 50% August 11,2017 September 10, 2024
7 December 31,2017 (Final dividend) 50% May 11,2018 June 10,2025
8 December 31, 2018 (Interim dividend) 50% | November 14,2018 December 13,2025
9 December 31, 2019 (Interim dividend) 50% | November 13,2019 December 12,2026
Insurance The Company maintains all its records in ERP (SAP) System and

All properties and insurable interests of the Company have
been fully insured.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to the Financial Statements

The Corporate Governance Policies guide the conduct of
affairs of the Company and clearly delineates the roles,
responsibilities and authorities at each level of its governance
structure and key functionaries involved in governance. The
Code of Conduct for Senior Management and Employees of
the Company (the Code of Conduct) commits Management to
financial and accounting policies, systems and processes. The
Corporate Governance Policies and the Code of Conduct stand
widely communicated across the Company at all times.

The Company’s Financial Statements are prepared on the basis
of the Significant Accounting Policies that are carefully selected
by Management and approved by the Audit Committee and the
Board. These Accounting policies are reviewed and updated
from time to time.
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the work flow and approvals are routed through ERP (SAP).

The Company has appointed Internal Auditors to examine
the internal controls and verify whether the workflow of the
organization is in accordance with the approved policies of
the Company. In every Quarter, while approval of Financial
Statements, the Internal Auditors present to the Audit
Committee, the Internal Audit Report and Management
Comments on the Internal Audit observations. The reports of
in-house internal auditors are reviewed by the audit committees
of respective subsidiary companies, and the minutes of the
meetings and key observations of the in-house internal audit
team are reported to the Audit Committee of the Company on a

quarterly basis.

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted various
policies such as Related Party Transactions Policy, Whistle
Blower Policy, Material Subsidiaries Policy, Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, Anti Corruption and Anti Bribery
policy, Risk Management Policy, Dissemination of material
events Policy, Documents preservation policy, Monitoring and
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Reporting of Trading by Insiders, Code of Internal Procedures
and conduct for Regulating, monitoring and reporting of
trading by Insiders, Code of Practices and Procedures for

Fair Disclosures, Policy on Prevention of Fraud and Internal
Financial Control Policy and such other procedures for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business for
safeguarding of its assets, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

The Company recognises Internal Financial Controls cannot
provide absolute assurance of achieving financial, operational
and compliance reporting objectives because of its inherent
limitations. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal
Financial Controls to future periods are subject to the risk that
the Internal Financial Control may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Accordingly,
regular audits and review processes ensure that such systems are
reinforced on an ongoing basis.

Names of Companies, which have become or ceased to
be Company'’s Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate
Companies during the year

During the Financial Year, no Company has become or

ceased to be Company’s Subsidiary, Joint Venture or

Associate Company.

Change in the nature of business
There has been no change in the nature of business
of the Company.

The details of significant and material orders passed

by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting

the going concern status and Company’s operations in
future

There have been no significant material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Material changes and commitments

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company which occurred between the
Financial Year ended December 31, 2019 to which the Financial
Statements relates and the date of signing of this report.

Financial Year of the Company

The Company has wholly owned subsidiary Companies situated
in India and outside India. The Companies situated outside
India follow the Financial Year from January 1 to December 31
and they contribute significant revenue to the consolidated
revenue of the Company and their statutory financials, tax
filings are also made on this basis in the respective jurisdictions
where they are registered. A common Financial Year of the
Company and its Subsidiary Companies has synergies in closing
of accounts, compilation and disclosure of data, internal control

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

STATUTORY
REPORTS

93

assessment and audit thereof and preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements, hence, the Company is following the
Financial Year from January 1 to December 31.

The Company Law Board vide its order dated October 16, 2015
permitted the Company to follow the Financial Year from
January 1 to December 31.

Business Responsibility Report

The ‘Business Responsibility Report’ (BRR) of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2019 forms part of this Annual
Report as required under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
(Annexure - 10).

Nomination and Remuneration policy

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human
resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable remuneration
to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees
of the Company, to harmonize the aspirations of human
resources consistent with the goals of the Company and in
terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time,
the policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has

been formulated.

Nomination and Remuneration policy of the Company forms
part of this Annual Report. (Annexure - 11) and the policy

is also available on the Company’s website at: https:/[rain-
industries.com/investors/#policies.

Human Resources

The Company believes that the quality of its employees is the key
to its success and is committed to providing necessary human
resource development and training opportunities to equip
employees with additional skills to enable them to adapt to
contemporary technological advancements.

Industrial relations during the year continued to be cordial
and the Company is committed to maintain good industrial
relations through effective communication, meetings

and negotiation.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The Company has adopted policy on Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace in accordance with the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has not received any complaints during the year.

The Company regularly conducts awareness programs
for its employees.
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The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints
received and disposed off during the year:

Sl Status of the No. of
Particulars complaints received and
No. .
disposed off
1 Number of complaints on Sexual Nil
harassment received
2 Number of Complaints disposed off | Not Applicable
during the year
3 Number of cases pending for more | Not Applicable
than ninety days
4 Number of workshops or awareness | The Company regularly
programme against sexual conducts necessary
harassment carried out awareness programmes
for its employees
5 Nature of action taken by the Not Applicable
employer or district officer

Constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
The Company has not received any complaints during the year.

Initiatives for Stakeholder and Customer Relationship
The Company has an effective Investor Relations programme
(“IR”) through which the company continuously interacts with
the investor community across various channels (Periodic
Earnings Calls, Individual Meetings, Participation in one-on-
one interactions and group meetings). The Company ensures
that critical information about the Company is available to

all the investors by submitting all such information to the
Stock Exchanges and also uploading the information on the
Company’s website under the Investors section.

The company strives to adopt emerging best practices in IR
and building a relationship of mutual understanding with
investors and analysts.

We place our customers at the center of everything we do,
aiming to provide relevant products effortlessly through the
channels they choose. Development and investment of robust
customer relationship management structures can be very
costly. RAIN has, therefore, taken great care in recognizing the
processes and frameworks that require attention to meet the
targets of greater efficiency. It requires us to spend significant
management time but at the same time, leads to better business
and a better brand.

Customer satisfaction is the most important measure of success
in our industry. All the effort we put in everyday gets translated
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into our high Customer retention and repeat customer volume.
We reach out to key influencers from our customers to get their
feedback about our products. In addition, we seek inputs on
their future roadmap and priorities. This helps us measure the
health of our relationships with our customers, and what we can
do to add value.

Environment, Health and Safety

The Company considers it is essential to protect the Earth and
limited natural resources as well as the health and wellbeing
of every person.

The Company strives to achieve safety, health and
environmental excellence in all aspects of its business activities.
Acting responsibly with a focus on safety, health and the
environment to be part of the Company’s DNA.

In line with the ‘Go Green’ philosophy, the Company is
continuously adopting new techniques to eliminate and
minimize the environmental impact. Various projects have
been implemented by the Company to use alternate sources of
energy wherever possible.

The Company does not just talk about ‘sustainability’; it follows
in true letter and spirit. Sustainability is about how RAIN
operates. RAIN strives to promote circular economy and deliver
societal value. RAIN’s approach is to innovate, collaborate and
educate communities.

With an intensive focus on safety, we have achieved an
exponential decline in our total recordable injury rate (TRIR),
which has resulted in the avoidance of approximately 163
recordable incidents between 2015 and 2019. The total first-aid
rate has significantly declined to 0.48 in 2019. Today, our safety
performance exceeds the industry benchmark (US Bureau of
Labor Statistics) to be comparable with best-in-class companies.

We firmly believe that we can progress only as fast as the
successful implementation and acceptance of our safety
programmes and initiatives. While our TRIR of 0.29 in 2019 was
a company record, we will only be satisfied by becoming a zero-
incidents organisation.

Our aim is to build a more mature and sustainable safety
culture that will allow us to increase our productivity and
operational discipline and facilitate highly competitive organic
growth. Our safety culture is centrally driven with a global
Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) organisation steering the
company-wide programmes.

Occupational health is a key aspect of RAIN’s safety activities.
Currently, there are several health programmes initiated

at each site and location, including global health days with
dedicated initiatives.
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Process safety is an integral part of our mission to operate in
the safest manner possible by increasing the efficiency and
reliability of our operations.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Prevention of Insider Trading Code

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015,
the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention

of Insider Trading. The Company has appointed Mr. S. Venkat
Ramana Reddy, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer, who
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isresponsible for setting forth procedures and implementing of
the code for trading in the Company’s securities. During the year
under review, there has been due compliance with the said code.
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ANNEXURE -3

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1.
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INTRODUCTION

The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on July
8, 2016 has notified the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2016 (Regulations).

As per Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which
requires top five hundred listed companies (based on
market capitalization of every financial year) to formulate
a Dividend Distribution Policy, which shall be disclosed in
its Annual Report and on its website.

Rain Industries Limited (the “Company”) being one of

the top five hundred listed company as per the criteria
mentioned above, the Company has approved and adopted
this Dividend Distribution Policy (the “Policy”) at its
meeting held on February 23, 2017, being the effective date
of the Policy.

The intent of the Policy is to broadly specify the external
and internal factors including financial parameters
that shall be considered while declaring dividend and
the circumstances under which the shareholders of the
Company may or may not expect dividend and how the
retained earnings shall be utilized, etc.

DEFINITIONS
i. “Board” shall mean Board of Directors
of the Company.

ii. “Companies Act” shall mean the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder, notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
from time to time.

ili. “Dividend” includes any interim dividend.

iv.  “Listed Entity | Company” shall mean Rain
Industries Limited.

v.  “Policy” means Dividend Distribution Policy.

vi. “Regulations” shall mean the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as notified by The
Securities and Exchange Board of India, as amended,
from time to time.

vii. “Stock Exchange” shall mean a recognised Stock
Exchange as defined under clause (f) of Section 2 of
the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

w

POLICY

Parameters and Factors for Declaration of Dividend
The dividend pay-out decision of the Board depends

upon the following financial parameters, internal and
external factors:

Financial parameters and Internal Factors:

i.  Operating cash flow of the Company;

ii.  Profitearned during the year;

iii. Profit available for distribution;

iv.  Accumulated Profits;

v.  Free Reserves;

vi. Earnings Per Share (EPS);

vii. Working capital requirements;

viii. Capital expenditure requirement;
ix. Business expansion and growth;

x.  Likelihood of crystalization of contingent
liabilities, if any;

xi. Additional investment in subsidiaries and associates
of the company;

xii. Up gradation of technology and physical
infrastructure;

xiii. Creation of contingency fund,

xiv. Acquisition of brands and business;

xv. Cost of Borrowing; and

xvi. Pastdividend payout ratio [ trends.

External Factors:

I Economic environment;

ii. Capital markets;

iii. Global conditions;

iv.  Statutory provisions and guidelines; and

v.  Dividend payout ratio of competitors.
Circumstances Under Which the Shareholders of
the Company May Expect Dividend

The decision regarding dividend pay-out is a crucial
decision as it determines the amount of profit to be
distributed among shareholders of the Company and the

amount of profit to be retained in business. The decision
seeks to balance the dual objectives of appropriately
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rewarding shareholders through dividends and retaining
profits in order to maintain a healthy capital adequacy
ratio to support future growth.

The Board of Directors of the Company will assess the
Company’s financial requirements, including present
and future organic and inorganic growth opportunities
and other relevant factors and declare Dividend in any
financial year.

The Dividend including Interim Dividend for any financial
year shall normally be paid out of the Company profits

for that year. This will be arrived at after providing for
depreciation in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. If circumstances require, the Board
may also declare dividend out of accumulated profits

and free reserves of any previous financial year(s) in
accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulations, as applicable.

C. Circumstances under which the Shareholders of
the May Not Expect Dividend
The shareholders of the Company may not expect dividend
in the following circumstances, subject to discretion of the
Board of Directors:

i.  Proposed expansion plans requiring higher
capital allocation;

ii.  Decision to undertake any acquisitions,
amalgamation, merger, joint ventures, new
product launches etc. which requires significant
capital outflow;

iii. Requirement of higher working capital for the
purpose of business of the Company; and

iv.  Inthe event of loss or inadequacy of profit.

D. Utilization of the Retained Earnings
The Board may retain its earnings in order to make better
use of the available funds and increase the value of the
stakeholders in the long run. The decision of utilization of
the retained earnings of the Company shall be based on
the following factors:
o Market expansion plan;
e Product expansion plan;
« Increase in production capacity;
e Modernization plan;
« Diversification of business;
« Long term strategic plans;

o Replacement of capital assets;

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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o Where the cost of debt is expensive;
o Dividend payment; and

 Such other criteria as the Board may deem fit
from time to time.

Manner of Dividend Payout

In case of final dividend:

i.  Recommendation, if any, shall be done by the Board,
usually in the Board meeting that considers and
approves the annual financial statements, subject to
approval of the shareholders of the Company.

ii.  The dividend as recommended by the Board shall be
approved/declared at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

iii. The payment of dividends shall be made within
the statutorily prescribed period from the date of
declaration, to those shareholders who are entitled to
receive the dividend on the record date/book closure
period, as per the applicable law.

In case of interim dividend:
i. Interim dividend, if any, shall be
declared by the Board.

ii. Before declaring interim dividend, the Board shall
consider the financial position of the Company that
allows the payment of such dividend.

iii. The payment of dividends shall be made within
the statutorily prescribed period from the date
of declaration to the shareholders entitled to
receive the dividend on the record date, as per the
applicable laws.

iv. Incase no final dividend is declared, interim dividend
paid during the year, if any, will be regarded as final
dividend in the Annual General Meeting.

Parameters to be Adopted with Regard to Various
Classes of Shares

Since the Company has issued only one class of equity
shares with equal voting rights, all the members of the
Company are entitled to receive the same amount of
dividend per share. The Policy shall be suitably modified at
the time of issue of any new class of shares depending upon
the nature and guidelines thereof.

NON APPLICABILITY OF POLICY
The Policy shall not apply to:

o Determination and declaration of dividend on
preference shares, as and when issued by the Company,
as the same will be as per the terms of issue approved by
the shareholders;
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« Issue of Bonus Shares by the Company; and

o Buyback of Securities.

The Policy is not an alternative to the decision of the
Board for recommending dividend, which is made every
year after taking into consideration all the relevant
circumstances enumerated hereunder or other factors as
may be decided as relevant by the Board.

POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENTS

This Policy would be subject to modification in accordance
with the guidelines [ clarifications as may be issued

from time to time by relevant statutory and regulatory
authority. The Board may modify, add, delete or amend
any of the provisions of this Policy. Any exceptions to the

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020
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Dividend Distribution Policy must be consistent with the
Regulations and must be approved in the manner as may
be decided by the Board of Directors.

6. DISCLOSURES

The Dividend Distribution Policy shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report and on the website of the Company i.e. at
www.rain-industries.com

7. DISCLAIMER

This document does not solicit investments in the
Company’s securities and further is not an assurance of
guaranteed returns (in any form), for investments in the
Company’s equity shares.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
forRain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00021052 DIN: 00017633
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ANNEXURE -4

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto.

1. There are no contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are not at arm’s length basis.
2. Contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 which are at arm’s length basis are as follows:
Sl. Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date(s) of approval | Amount Justification for entering into contracts
No related party contracts/ the contracts/ |the contractsor |bythe Board,ifany | paidas
and nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ | arrangements advances,
relationship transactions transactions or transactions ifany
including the
value, if any
1 RainCements |Revenue from From January |%45.80 Million |February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited
Limited Shared Services 01,2019 to 2018 and (the Company) has set-up
(Wholly December 31, February 27, a Shared Service Center to
owned 2019 2019 provide accounting, legal,
Subsidiary) human resources, corporate
communications, corporate
finance and information
technology support services to its
Subsidiary Companies in India
and outside India. Accordingly,
the Company has entered into
contracts to provide shared
services to Subsidiary Companies.
2 RainCements |Provide premises |From January |3 5.81 Million |February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited (the
Limited on lease 01,2019 to 2018, November Company) has own building
(Wholly owned December 31, 14,2018 and at which its Registered Office
Subsidiary) 2019 February 27, is situated. For operational
2019 convenience and better co-
ordination, Rain Cements Limited
(Wholly owned Subsidiary)
registered Office is also located
in the same building at which
the Company’s registered Office
is situated. Hence, the Company
has entered into a lease agreement
with Rain Cements Limited. The
rent received by Rain Industries
Limited is similar to the Rent
prevailing in surrounding
buildings.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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SI. Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date(s) of approval | Amount Justification for entering into contracts

No related party contracts/ the contracts/ |thecontractsor |bythe Board,ifany | paidas
andnatureof | arrangements/ arrangements/ | arrangements advances,
relationship transactions transactions or transactions if any

including the
value, if any

3 RainCII Revenue from From January |%58.83 Million | February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited
Carbon (Vizag) | Shared Services 01,2019 to 2018 and (the Company) has set-up
Limited December 31, February 27, a Shared Service Center to
(Wholly 2019 2019 provide accounting, legal,
owned human resources, corporate
Subsidiary) communications, corporate

finance and information
technology support services

to its Subsidiary Companies in
India and abroad. Accordingly,
the Company has entered into
contracts to provide shared
services to Subsidiary Companies.

4 RainCII Provide premises |From January |%5.81 Million |February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited (the
Carbon (Vizag) | on lease 01,2019 to 2018, November Company) has own building
Limited December 31, 14,2018 and at which its Registered Office
(Wholly 2019 February 27, is situated. For operational
owned 2019 convenience and better
Subsidiary) coordination, Rain CII Carbon

(Vizag) Limited, a step down
wholly owned subsidiary
Company) registered Office is also
located in the same building at
which the Company’s registered
Office is situated. Hence, the
Company has entered into a lease
agreement with Rain CII Carbon
(Vizag) Limited. The rent received
by Rain Industries Limited is
similar to the Rent prevailing in
surrounding buildings.

5 RainCII Reimbursement | From January |%0.10Million |February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited is the
Carbon (Vizag) | of travel expenses, | 01,2019 to 2018 and Holding Company of Rain CII
Limited insurance and December 31, February 27, Carbon (Vizag) Limited. Rain
(Wholly dispatches by 2019 2019 Industries Limited has incurred
owned Rain CII Carbon certain expenditure on behalf of
Subsidiary) (Vizag) Limited Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited

which was reimbursed by Rain CII
Carbon (Vizag) Limited.

6 RainCII Sale of Hydrated |From January |%1.23 Million |February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited is the
Carbon Lime 01,2019 to 2018 and Holding Company of Rain
(Vizag) December 31, November 13, CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited,
Limited 2019 2019 Rain Industries Limited trades
(Wholly Hydrated lime. Hence, it is
owned thought appropriate to sell
Subsidiary) Hydrated Lime to Rain CII Carbon

(Vizag) Limited.
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SI. Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date(s) of approval | Amount Justification for entering into contracts
No related party contracts/ the contracts/ |thecontractsor |bythe Board,ifany | paidas
and nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ | arrangements advances,
relationship transactions transactions or transactions if any
including the
value, if any
7 RainCII Reimbursement |From January |%1.89 Million |February 28, NIL Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited
Carbon of travel expenses, | 01,2019 to 2018 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of
(Vizag) insurance and December 31, February 27, Rain Industries Limited. Rain
Limited other expenses to | 2019 2019 ClII Carbon (Vizag) Limited has
(Wholly Rain CII Carbon incurred certain expenditure on
owned (Vizag) Limited behalf of Rain Industries Limited
Subsidiary) which was reimbursed by Rain
Industries Limited.
8 RainClII Sale of Export From January | 122.04 Million | February 28, NIL Rain CII Carbon (Vizag)
Carbon Licenses 01,2019 to 2018 and Limited imports Raw materials
(Vizag) December 31, February 27, for manufacture of Calcined
Limited 2019 2019 Petroleum Coke. It has to pay
(Wholly Customs duty on imports to
owned Customs authorities. Rain CII
Subsidiary) Carbon (Vizag) Limited can also
submit the duty scripts in lieu of
payment of Customs duty. Rain CII
Carbon (Vizag) Limited purchases
duty scripts from Rain Industries
Limited to settle the Customs
duty to Customs Authorities.
Rain Industries Limited sells
duty scripts at face value. Hence,
itis thought appropriate to sell
duty scripts to Rain CII Carbon
(Vizag) Limited. It is mutually
beneficial to both the Companies
to undertake this transaction.
9 RainCII Revenue from From January |%90.86 Million |February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited
Carbon LLC, Shared Services 01,2019 to 2018 and (the Company) has set-up
USA (Wholly December 31, February 27, a Shared Service Center to
owned 2019 2019 provide accounting, legal,
Subsidiary) human resources, corporate

communications, corporate
finance and information
technology support services

to its Subsidiary Companies in
India and abroad. Accordingly,
the Company has entered into
contracts to provide shared
services to Subsidiary Companies.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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SI. Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date(s) of approval | Amount Justification for entering into contracts
No related party contracts/ the contracts/ |thecontractsor |bythe Board,ifany | paidas
and nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ | arrangements advances,
relationship transactions transactions or transactions if any
including the
value, if any
10 Reutgers Revenue from From January |% 82.34 Million | February 28, NIL Rain Industries Limited
Holding Shared Services 01,2019 to 2018 and (the Company) has set-up
Germany December 31, February 27, a Shared Service Center to
GmbH 2019 2019 provide accounting, legal,
(Wholly human resources, corporate
owned communications, corporate
Subsidiary) finance and information
technology support services
to its Subsidiary Companies in
India and abroad. Accordingly,
the Company has entered into
contracts to provide shared
services to Subsidiary Companies.
11 Rain Carbon |Revenue from From %75.95 Million | November 13, NIL Rain Industries Limited
GmbH (wholly | Shared Services November 2019 (the Company) has set-up
owned 13,2019 to a Shared Service Center to
subsidiary December 31, provide accounting, legal,
Company) 2019 human resources, corporate
communications, corporate
finance and information
technology support services
to its Subsidiary Companies in
India and abroad. Accordingly,
the Company has entered into
contracts to provide shared
services to Subsidiary Companies.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Director
DIN: 00017633

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28,2020

Managing Director
DIN: 00021052
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended December 31, 2019

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN

ii) Registration Date

iii) Name of the Company

iv) Category [ Sub-Category of the Company

v)  Address of the Registered Office and contact details

vi) Whether listed Company

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

L26942TG1974PLC001693

March 15,1974

Rain Industries Limited

Company Limited by Shares | Public Company

Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony,
Hyderabad - 500073, Telangana State, India.
Ph.N0.040-40401234, Fax:040-40401214;
email: secretarial@rain-industries.com;
website: www.rain-industries.com

YES
Listed at
i) BSE Limited

ii) National Stock Exchange of India Limited

KFin Technologies Private Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,

Gachibowli, Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032,
Telangana State, India.

Phone: +91 040 67161566; Fax: +91 040 23420814
Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com,;

CIN: U72400TG2003PTC041636

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover (Consolidated) of the company shall be stated:

Sl. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the %o total turnover
No. Product/ service* of the Company
1  Carbon 19209 66%
2 Advanced Materials 20119 26%
3  Cement 23941 8%

*As per NIC Code 2008

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

ﬁ Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN :lt:llaili?i?a/ry / % of shares Is\zstl;z:ble
o . held
Associate
1 Rain Cements Limited, Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony, U23209TG1999 Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Hyderabad - 500073, Telangana State, India PLC031631 Company
2 RainCII Carbon (Vizag) Limited, Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony, |U11100TG2008 Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Hyderabad - 500073, Telangana State, India PLC0O58785 Company
3 Renuka Cement Limited, Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony, U26942TG1996 Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Hyderabad - 500073, Telangana State, India PLC025831 Company
4 Rain Commodities (USA) Inc. Corporate Office: 10 Signal Road, Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Stamford, CT 06902, US Company
5 Rain Global Services LLC, 10 Signal Road, Stamford, CT 06902, US Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Company
6 Rain Carbon Inc., 10 Signal Road, Stamford, CT 06902, US Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Company
7 Rain Carbon Holdings, LLC, 10 Signal Road, Stamford, CT 06902, US | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Company
8 Rain CII Carbon LLC, 1330 Greengate Drive, Suite 300, Covington | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
LA 70433,US Company
9 ClICarbon Corp, 10 Signal Road, Stamford, CT 06902, US Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Company
10 RUTGERS Canada Inc., 725 Strathearne Ave. North, Hamilton, Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Ontario L8H 5L3, Canada Company
11 RUTGERS Polymers Limited, 120 de L'Industrie Blvd., Candiac, Qc | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
J5R 1J2, Canada Company
12 Handy Chemicals (USA) Ltd., Corporate Trust Center, 1209 Orange |Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Street, Wilmington, Delaware, US Company
13 Rain Carbon BVBA, Vredekaai 18, B-9060 Zelzate, Belgium Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Company
14 VFT France SA, Avenue du Bord des Eaux, 62251 Henin Beaumont | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Cedex Company
15 RUTGERS Germany GmbH, Kekuléstr. 30, 44579 Castrop-Rauxel, Not Applicable Subsidiary 99.70 Section 2 (87)
Germany Company
16 RUTGERS Poland Sp. z 0.0., ul. Szkolna 15, PL-47-225 Kedzierzyn- Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Kozle, Poland Company
17 RUTGERS Resins BV, Molenlaan 30, 1422 ZA Uithoon, The Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Netherlands Company
18 OO0 RUTGERS Severtar, Mira Street 30, 162608 Cherepovets, Not Applicable Subsidiary 65.30 Section 2 (87)
Vologda Region, Russia Company
19 Severtar Holding Ltd, 48 Themistokli Dervi Athienitis, Centennial | Not Applicable Subsidiary 65.30 Section 2 (87)
Building 1st floor office 104, 1066 Nicosia, Cyprus Company
20 Rumba Invest BVBA & Co. KG, Varziner Str. 49, 47138 Duisburg, Not Applicable Subsidiary 94.90 Section 2 (87)
Germany Company
21 RUTGERS (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd, Suite 706, Office Block, Hotel Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Equatorial, No. 65 Yan An Road (West), Shanghai 200040, P.R. China Company
22 Rain Carbon GmbH, Kekuléstr.30, 44579 Castrop-Rauxel, Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Germany Company
23 RUTGERS Wohnimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG Kekuléstr.30,44579 | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Castrop-Rauxel, Germany Company
24 RUTGERS Gewerbeimmobilien GmbH & Co. KG Kekuléstr.30, Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
44579 Castrop-Rauxel, Germany Company
25 Rain RUTGERS LLC Bakhrushina Street 32 block 1 Moscow, Russia | Not Applicable Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2 (87)
Company
26 InfraTec Duisburg GmbH Not Applicable Associate 30.00 Section 2(6)
Varziner Str.49, 47138, Duisburg, Germany Company
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)
i) Category-wise Shareholding

:o Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat Physical

Total

% to Total
Shares

Demat

% to Total

Physical Total Shares

% change
during
the year

A. PROMOTERS
(1) Indian
(a) Individuals | HUF
(b) Central Government
(c) State Government(s)
(d) Bodies Corporate
(e) Banks/FI
(f) Any Other
Sub - Total (A) (1):-
(2) FOREIGN
(a) NRIs-Individuals
(b) Other - Individuals
(c) Bodies Corporates
(d) Banks/FI
(e) Any other
Sub - Total (A) (2):-
Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A) (1)+(A)(2)
B PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
1 Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds
(b) Banks/FI
(c) Central Government
(d) State Government(s)
(e) Venture Capital Funds
(f) Insurance Companies
(g) FlIs[FPIs
(h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds
Others (Specify)
Sub - Total (B) (1):-
2 Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share
capital up to %1 lakh.
Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Z1 lakh.

@

=

ii

=

56,961,651 -

81,268,885 -

56,961,651

81,268,885

16.94

24.16

56,961,651

81,268,885

56,961,651 16.94

81,268,885 24.16

138,230,536 -

138,230,536

41.10

138,230,536

138,230,536 41.10

138,230,536 -

138,230,536

41.10

138,230,536

138,230,536 41.10

550,338 -
37,731 37,000

1,500

54113910

54,701,979 38,500

29,876,202 164,640
55,316,110 3,561,210

36,697,281 61,420

550,338
74,731

54,115,410

54,740,479
30,040,842
58,877,320

36,758,701

0.16
0.02

16.09

16.28
893
17,51

10.93

2,927,139
1,003,262

46,981,950

50912,351
29,252,204
59,252,395

35,532,278

2,927,139 0.87

36,500 1,039,762 031

1,500 46,983,450 13.97

38,000 50,950,351 15.15

158,635 29,410,839 8.74

2,987,320 62,239,715 18.50

1,524,405 37,056,683 11.02

0.71
0.29

2,12

-1.13
-0.19
1.00

0.09

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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s No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % chang
No Category of Shareholders Demat Physical Total % tsoh'l::‘t:sl Demat Physical Total % ';)h-:t:sl thdeu;:;?_
¢) Others (Specify)
i. Non Resident Individuals 10,106,730 3,375,565 13,482,295 4.01 12,517,292 1,769,870 14,287,162 425 0.24
ii. Trusts 4175 4175 0.00 5,818 5818 0.00 0.00
iii. Clearing Members 286,272 - 286,272 0.09 477,739 477,739 0.14 0.06
iv. NBFC 342,704 - 342,704 0.10 25,300 25,300 0.01 -0.09
v RainIndustries Limited 872,940 - 872,940 0.26 789,525 789,525 0.23 -0.02
Unclaimed Suspense
Account
vi Investor Education And 2,709,415 2,709,415 081 2,872,011 2,872,011 0.85 0.05
Protection Fund Authority
(IEPF)
Sub - Total (B) (2):- 136,211,829 7,162,835 143,374,664 42,63 140,724,562 6,440,230 147,164,792 43.75 1.13
Total Public Shareholding 190,913,808 7,201,335 198,115,143 58.90 191,636913 6,478,230 198,115,143 58.90
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C SHARESHELD BY -
CUSTODIAN FOR GDRS &
ADRS
Grand Total (A+B+C) 329,144,344 7,201,335 336,345,679 100.00 329,867,449 6,478,230 336,345,679 100.00
ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % changein
% to Shares % to Shares .
SI. , % to total % to total share holding
No Shareholder’s Name No.of Shares Shares of the Pledged/ No. of Shares of the Pledged/ during the
Company encumbered to Shares Company encumbered to year
total Shares total Shares
1 Mr. N.Radhakrishna Reddy 10,383,730 3.09 - 10,383,730 3.09 - -
2 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 10,028,770 2.98 - 10,028,770 2.98 - -
3 Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy 100 0.00 - 100 0.00 - -
Nellore
4 Ms. N.Indira Reddy 7,513,100 2.23 - 7,513,100 2.23 - -
5 Ms. N. Anupama Reddy 27,152,351 8.07 - 27,152,351 8.07 - -
6 Ms. N Akhila Reddy 1,869,315 0.56 - 1,869,315 0.56 - -
7 Ms.K. V. Arundhathi Reddy 14,285 0.00 - 14,285 0.00 - -
8 Nivee Holdings Private 8,143,250 2.42 - 8,143,250 242 - -
Limited
9 Arunachala Holdings 5,272,500 1.57 - 5,272,500 1.57 - -
Private Limited
10 PCLFinancial Services 3,780,750 1.12 - 3,780,750 1.12 - -
Private Limited
11 Arunachala Logistics Private 989,245 0.29 - 989,245 0.29 - -
Limited
12 Sujala Investments Private 37,766,675 11.23 - 37,766,675 11.23 - -
Limited
13 Rain Enterprises Private 25,316,465 7.53 - 25,316,465 7.53 - -
Limited
Total 138,230,536 41.10 - 138,230,536 41.10 - -
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
si beginning of the year during the year

" Particulars % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of

Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares

Company Company

At the beginning of the Year 138,230,536 41.10 - -

Date wise increase | decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the end of the Year 138,230,536 41.10

Note : There is no change in Promoters’ Shareholding

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
si beginning of the year during the year
" Meghamala Enterprises Pvt Ltd % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
1  Atthebeginning of the Year 17,400,610 5.17 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 17,400,610 5.17
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
s beginning of the year during the year
I The Pabrai Investment Fund 3, Ltd % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
2 Atthebeginning of the Year 14,736,427 4.38 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 14,736,427 4.38
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
si beginning of the year during the year
" The Pabrai Investment Fund II, LP % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
3 Atthebeginning of the Year 12,758,000 3.79 - -
Date wise increase [ decrease in Shareholding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 12,758,000 3.79
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
si beginning of the year during the year
N(') Dolly Khanna % to total % to total
. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
4  Atthebeginning of the Year 8,951,872 2.66 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
04/01/2019 (59,000) (0.02) 8,892,872 2.64
11/01/2019 (79,000) (0.02) 8,813,872 2.62
18/01/2019 (78,000) (0.02) 8,735,872 2.60
25/01/2019 (128,330) (0.04) 8,607,542 2.56
01/02/2019 (58,000) (0.02) 8,549,542 2.54
08/02/2019 (86,000) (0.03) 8,463,542 2.52

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

ﬁt_ Dolly Khanna No. of % to total No. of % to total
) Shares of the ) Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
15/02/2019 (151,000) (0.04) 8,312,542 2.47
22/0 /2019 (74,000) (0.02) 8,238,542 2.45
01/03/2019 (185,001) (0.06) 8,053,541 2.39
08/03/2019 (55,999) (0.02) 7,997,542 2.38
15/03/2019 (75,000) (0.02) 7,922,542 2.36
22/03/2019 (177,000) (0.05) 7,745,542 2.30
29/03/2019 (226,500) (0.07) 7,519,042 2.24
30/03/2019 (41,000) (0.01) 7,478,042 2.22
05/04/2019 (110,000) (0.03) 7,368,042 2.19
12/04/2019 (48,000) (0.01) 7,320,042 2.18
19/04/2019 (35,000) (0.01) 7,285,042 2.17
26/04/2019 (14,000) (0.00) 7,271,042 2.16
03/05/2019 (57,000) (0.02) 7,214,042 2.14
10/05/2019 (118,000) (0.04) 7,096,042 2.11
17/05/2019 (169,000) (0.05) 6,927,042 2.06
24/ 5/2019 (47,000) (0.01) 6,880,042 2.05
31/05/2019 (102,000) (0.03) 6,778,042 2.02
07/06/2019 (89,000) (0.03) 6,689,042 1.99
4/06/2019 (131,000) (0.04) 6,558,042 1.95
21/06/2019 (82,000) (0.02) 6,476,042 1.93
28/06/2019 (53,500) (0.02) 6,422,542 191
05/07/2019 (12,000) (0.00) 6,410,542 191
2/07/2019 216,000 0.06 6,626,542 1.97
9/07/2019 (19,000) (0.01) 6,607,542 1.96
26/07/2019 (83,000) (0.02) 6,524,542 1.94
02/08/2019 (125,000) (0.04) 6,399,542 1.90
09/08/2019 (109,000) (0.03) 6,290,542 1.87
16/08/2019 (41,000) (0.01) 6,249,542 1.86
23/08/2019 40,000 0.01 6,289,542 1.87
30/08/2019 (36,000) (0.01) 6,253,542 1.86
06/09/2019 (24,000) (0.01) 6,229,542 1.85
13/09/2019 (14,000) (0.00) 6,215,542 1.85
20/09/2019 (37,000) (0.01) 6,178,542 1.84
27/09/2019 (59,000) (0.02) 6,119,542 1.82
30/09/2019 (21,000) (0.01) 6,098,542 1.81
04/10/2019 (60,000) (0.02) 6,038,542 1.80
1/10/2019 (61,000) (0.02) 5,977,542 1.78
18/10/2019 (68,000) (0.02) 5,909,542 1.76
25/10/2019 (54,000) (0.02) 5,855,542 1.74
01/11/2019 (18,500) (0.01) 5,837,042 1.74
08/1 /2019 (62,000) (0.02) 5,775,042 1.72
15/11/2019 (20,000) (0.01) 5,755,042 1.71
22[11/2019 530,000 0.16 6,285,042 1.87
06/12/2019 (36,500) (0.01) 6,248,542 1.86
13/12/2019 (74,500) (0.02) 6,174,042 1.84
20/12/2019 (38,000) (0.01) 6,136,042 1.82
27/12/2019 (9,000) (0.00) 6,127,042 1.82
31/12/2019 (55,000) (0.02) 6,072,042 1.81
At the end of the Year 6,072,042 1.81
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Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl. ICICI Prudential (Multiple funds) % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
5 Atthebeginning of the Year 15,559 0.00 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
18/01/2019 527,536 0.16 543,095 0.16
25/01/2019 455,761 0.14 998,856 0.30
01/02/2019 606,227 0.18 1,605,083 0.48
08/02/2019 556,146 0.17 2,161,229 0.64
08/02/2019 (15,447) (0.00) 2,145,782 0.64
15/02/2019 146,905 0.04 2,292,687 0.68
22/02/2019 60,430 0.02 2,353,117 0.70
08/03/2019 60,100 0.02 2,413,217 0.72
19/04/2019 (604,837) (0.18) 1,808,380 0.54
26/04/2019 (148,025) (0.04) 1,660,355 0.49
17/05/2019 186 0.00 1,660,541 0.49
24/05/2019 93 0.00 1,660,634 0.49
31/05/2019 106,284 0.03 1,766,918 0.53
07/06/2019 187,049 0.06 1,953,967 0.58
14/06/2019 201,050 0.06 2,155,017 0.64
21/06/2019 100,000 0.03 2,255,017 0.67
05/07/2019 93 0.00 2,255,110 0.67
26/07/2019 498,787 0.15 2,753,897 0.82
02/08/2019 122,395 0.04 2,876,292 0.86
16/08/2019 8,744 0.00 2,885,036 0.86
23/08/2019 101 0.00 2,885,137 0.86
30/08/2019 82,085 0.02 2,967,222 0.88
06/09/2019 110,948 0.03 3,078,170 0.92
27/09/2019 154 0.00 3,078,324 0.92
30/09/2019 92 0.00 3,078,416 0.92
04/10/2019 92 0.00 3,078,508 0.92
11/10/2019 92 0.00 3,078,600 0.92
18/10/2019 14 0.00 3,078,614 0.92
25/10/2019 25,397 0.01 3,104,011 0.92
01/11/2019 2 0.00 3,104,013 0.92
22/11/2019 92 0.00 3,104,105 0.92
20/12/2019 (107,124) (0.03) 2,996,981 0.89
27/12/2019 112 0.00 2,997,093 0.89
31/12/2019 (105,040) (0.03) 2,892,053 0.86
At the end of the Year 2,892,053 0.86

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

SI. Investor Education and Protection fund Authority (IEPF) % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
6  Atthebeginning of the Year 2,709,415 0.81 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
04/01/2019 (1,000) (0.00) 2,708,415 0.81
18/01/2019 (500) (0.00) 2,707,915 0.81
30/03/2019 (15,250) (0.00) 2,692,665 0.80
10/05/2019 (285) (0.00) 2,692,380 0.80
24/05/2019 (1,570) (0.00) 2,690,810 0.80
31/05/2019 (3,360) (0.00) 2,687,450 0.80

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

SI. Investor Education and Protection fund Authority (IEPF) % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
07/06/2019 15,341 0.00 2,702,791 0.80
14/06/2019 195,355 0.06 2,898,146 0.86
21/06/2019 (2,065) (0.00) 2,896,081 0.86
28/06/2019 (1,710) (0.00) 2,894,371 0.86
05/07/2019 (2,000) (0.00) 2,892,371 0.86
19/07/2019 (1,925) (0.00) 2,890,446 0.86
02/08/2019 (4,500) (0.00) 2,885,946 0.86
23/08/2019 (1,015) (0.00) 2,884,931 0.86
30/08/2019 (500) (0.00) 2,884,431 0.86
13/09/2019 (3,355) (0.00) 2,881,076 0.86
30/09/2019 (1,640) (0.00) 2,879,436 0.86
18/10/2019 (2,000) (0.00) 2,877,436 0.86
25/10/2019 (500) (0.00) 2,876,936 0.86
01/11/2019 (2,500) (0.00) 2,874,436 0.85
22/11/2019 (1,000) (0.00) 2,873,436 0.85
06/12/2019 (500) (0.00) 2,872,936 0.85
13/12/2019 (140) (0.00) 2,872,796 0.85
27/12/2019 (785) (0.00) 2,872,011 0.85
At the end of the Year 2,872,011 0.85

In compliance with the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has transferred the shares to Investor Education and
Protection fund Authority (IEPF) of those shareholders who have not claimed the dividends for a continuous period of 7 years.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

SI. Dhandho India Zero Fee Fund, L.P % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
7  Atthebeginning of the Year 408,145 0.12 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
08/11/2019 2,038,145 0.61 2,446,290 0.73
At the end of the Year 2,446,290 0.73

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl. .
No. HiteshJhawar % to total % to total
. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
8  Atthebeginning of the Year 1,692,503 0.50 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
04/01/2019 1,000 0.00 1,693,503 0.50
11/01/2019 9,598 0.00 1,703,101 0.51
18/01/2019 14,102 0.00 1,717,203 0.51
01/02/2019 5,058 0.00 1,722,261 0.51
08/02/2019 3,623 0.00 1,725,884 0.51
15/02/2019 16,319 0.00 1,742,203 0.52
01/03/2019 7,650 0.00 1,749,853 0.52
08/03/2019 46,700 0.01 1,796,553 0.53
15/03/2019 7,559 0.00 1,804,112 0.54
22/03/2019 2,441 0.00 1,806,553 0.54
17/05/2019 12,441 0.00 1,818,994 0.54
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Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

:IO Hitesh Jhawar No. of % to total No. of % to total
) Shares of the ) Shares of the
Shares Shares

Company Company

24/05/2019 6,959 0.00 1,825,953 0.54

26/07/2019 24,547 0.01 1,850,500 0.55

02/08/2019 52,847 0.02 1,903,347 0.57

09/08/2019 21,380 0.01 1,924,727 0.57

16/08/2019 5,991 0.00 1,930,718 0.57

30/08/2019 26,819 0.01 1,957,537 0.58

06/09/2019 19,048 0.01 1,976,585 0.59

13/09/2019 28,475 0.01 2,005,060 0.60

20/09/2019 6,795 0.00 2,011,855 0.60

27/09/2019 3,205 0.00 2,015,060 0.60

29/11/2019 12,079 0.00 2,027,139 0.60

06/12/2019 20,000 0.01 2,047,139 0.61

13/12/2019 (176) (0.00) 2,046,963 0.61

At the end of the Year 2,046,963 0.61

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
:II' Dhandho India Zero Fee Fund Offshore Ltd % to total % to total
0. No. of No. of

Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the

Company Company

9  Atthebeginning of the Year 300,737 0.09 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year

08/11/2019 1,543,515 0.46 1,844,252 0.55

At the end of the Year 1,844,252 0.55

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

SI. Pradip Navnitlal Muchhala % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
10 Atthe beginning of the Year 1,530,373 0.46 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
15/02/2019 50,000 0.01 1,580,373 0.47
22/02/2019 35,806 0.01 1,616,179 0.48
At the end of the Year 1,616,179 0.48

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

SI. Ashok Kirtilal Bhansali % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
11 Atthebeginning of the Year 1,590,000 0.47 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Shareholding during the year
At the end of the Year 1,590,000 047

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
;I' For each of the Directors and KMP % to total % to total
0. No. of No. of
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
Directors
1  Mr.N.Radhakrishna Reddy
At the beginning of the Year 10,383,730 3.09 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 10,383,730 3.09
2 Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
At the beginning of the Year 100 0.00 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 100 0.00
3 Mr.N.Syjith Kumar Reddy
At the beginning of the Year 10,028,770 2.98 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 10,028,770 2.98
4  Mr.H.L. Zutshi
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL
5  Mr.Varun Batra
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL
6  Mr.Brian Jude McNamara A
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL
7  Ms.Nirmala Reddy
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL
8  Ms. Radhika Vijaya Haribhakti
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL
9  Mr.SLRao*
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL

A Mr. Brian McNamara was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019
* Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15, 2019
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Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
SI. For each of the Directors and KMP % to total % to total
No. No. of No. of
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy
Managing Director
At the beginning of the Year 10,383,730 3.09 - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 10,383,730 3.09
2 Mr.T.Srinivasa Rao,
Chief Financial Officer
At the beginning of the Year 90,000 0.03 - -
Date wise increase [ decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year 90,000 0.03
3 Mr.S.Venkat Ramana Reddy,
Company Secretary
At the beginning of the Year NIL NIL - -
Date wise increase | decrease in Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the end of the Year NIL NIL
V INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(X Million)
Particulars exclﬁjl‘i::;:l‘:;zzi':: Unsecured Loans Deposits Indebte d.:;‘:::sl
Indebtedness at the Beginning of the Financial Year
i)  Principal Amount 3,489.50 - - 3,489.50
ii) Interest due butnot paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 5.82 - - 5.82
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,495.32 - - 3,495.32
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
Addition - - - -
Reduction 172.37 - - 172.37
Forex impact 75.32 - - 75.32
Interest (0.47) - - (0.47)
Net Change (97.52) (97.52)
Indebtedness at the end of the Financial year
i)  Principal Amount 3,392.45 - - 3,392.45
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interestaccrued butnot due 5.35 - - 5.35
Total (i+ii+iii) 3,397.80 - - 3,397.80

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A Remuneration paid to Managing Director, Whole time Directors / Manager:

® Million)
Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
SI. Particulars of Remuneration *I\!Ir. N. Total Amount
No Radhakrishna **Mr.Jagan Mohan
Reddy, Managing Reddy Nellore
Director
1  Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 3.56 3.56
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.25 0.25
c) Profitsinlieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 0.00
2 Stockoption 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00
4  Commission 0.00 0.00
- as % of profit 0.00 0.00 0.00
- others, specify... 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 Others, Please specify (Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund) 0.00 0.36 0.36
Total (A) 0.00 216 4.16
Ceiling as per the Act 19.96

* Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from March 31,2019 (i.e.,
from March 31, 2019 to March 30, 2022) without remuneration.
** Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore resigned from the position of Managing Director but continues to be Director of the Company with effect from
March 31,2019

B Remuneration to other Directors:

( Million)
SI. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Independent Director
No. Total
Mr.H.L. Mr.Varun  Mr.Brian Jude Ms. Radhika Ms. Nirmala Ms. S L Rao™* Amount
Zutshi Batra McNamara® Vijay Haribhakti Reddy
1 Independent Directors
Fee for attending board/ 0.76 0.76 0.54 0.64 0.82 0.22 3.74
committee meetings
Commission 0.75 0.75 0.73 0.75 0.75 0.25 3.98
Others, please specify - - - - - - -
Total (1) 1.51 1.51 1.27 1.39 1.57 0.47 7.72
2 Other Non-Executive Directors Mr. N. RadhakrishnaReddy"  Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore®  Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy *
Fee for attending board|/ 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.10
committee meetings
Commission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (2) 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.10
Total (B)=(1+2) 7.82
Total Managerial Remuneration 3.98
to Non-executive Directors
(Commission)
Overall Ceiling as per the Act for Directors who are neither Managing Director/Whole Time Director (1% of Net Profits 3.99
Calculated in accordance with the Provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013)

$ Mr. Brian Jude McNamara has been appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28,2019

% Mr. S.L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15,2019

AMr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. March 31,2019

@ Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore resigned from the position of Managing Director but continues to be Director of the Company with effect from March 31,2019
# Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy has not received any remuneration during the financial year ended December 31, 2019
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C. Remuneration paid to Key Managerial personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

(% Million)
Key Managerial Personnel
SI. Particulars of Remuneration Managing Director Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Total
No. " Amount
N. Radhakrishna Jagan Mohan Mr.T. Srinivasa Rao Mr. S. Venkat
Reddy * Reddy Nellore © Ramana Reddy

1  Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 3.56 14.68 4.60 22.84
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the - 0.24 0.09 - 0.33
Income Tax Act, 1961

c) Profitsinlieu of salary under section - - - - -
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stockoption - - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - - -

4 Commission - -
- as % of profit - - - - -
- others, specify... - - - - -

5 Others -
Company’s contribution to provident fund 0.36 0.80 0.23 1.39
National pension Scheme - - 0.67 - 0.67
Total 0.00 4.16 16.24 4.83 25.23

# Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from March 31, 2019
without remuneration.

@ Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore resigned from the position of Managing Director but continues to be Director of the Company with effect from
March 31, 2019, Salary and Benefits mentioned above are for the period from January 01, 2019 to March 30, 2019

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Details of Penalty
Type Sectior! of the Brief Description / Punis!1ment/ Authority (RD/ ) Ap_peal mafiev
Companies Act Compounding fees NCLT/COURT) if any (Give Details)
imposed
A. Company
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. Directors
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. Other Officers in Default
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 00021052

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633
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ANNEXURE -6

The Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to the provisions of
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
1)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: -N.A.-
2)  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: -N.A.-

3) The Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: -N.A.-

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption
NIL
ii.  The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution
NIL
iii. Incase of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
NIL

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development -N.A.-

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO

1) The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year
in terms of actual outflows

 Million)
Particulars December 31,2019 December 31,2018
Used 354.15 4,156.82
Earned 792.42 178.40
On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited
N.Radhakrishna Reddy Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: February 28, 2020 DIN: 00021052 DIN: 00017633
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Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1.  Abrief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a

reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

i.  Providing health care, maintaining hospitals, ambulances and conducting medical camps;

ii. Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially among
children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects; and

iii. Rural development projects.

Web link for CSR Policy: https:/[rain-industries.com/investors[#policies

Web link for CSR Projects: www.pragnyapriya.org
2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S.
Name
No.

Designation

1 Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
2 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy
3 Ms. Nirmala Reddy

Chairman
Member
Member (Independent Director)

3. Average Net profit of the Company for the last three Financial Years:

For the Financial Year ended December 31

(in % Million)
Net Profit 2018 2017 2016
(72.92) (8.40) (71.39)
Average Net Profit for the preceding three Financial Years (54.43)

4.  Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above): Nil. However, the Company has spent ¥ 2 Million.

Details of CSR spent for the financial year:

a. Total amount to be spent during the financial year: Nil

b. Amount unspent, if any: Nil

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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c.  Amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

(1) (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
S. CSRproject | Sectorinwhich |Projectsorprograms | Amountoutlay Amount spent on the Cumulative Amount spent:
No. oractivity the projectis (1) Local areaor (budget) project or projects or programs | expenditure up Direct or through
identified covered other programs wise Sub heads: to the reporting implementing
2) Specify the state (1) Direct expenditure | period agency
and district on projects or
where projects programs
or programs was (2) Overheads
undertaken
1 Health and |Promotionof |Maintenance The Company has ¥ 2 Million % 2 Million The amount was
Education |Health and of Schools and donated % 2 Million spent through
Education Hospitals in to Pragnya Priya Pragnya Priya
Suryapet District, |Foundation, Foundation,
Telangana State, a Company a Section 25
India; Kurnool established under Company under
District, Andhra Section 25 of Companies Act,
Pradesh State, Companies Act, 1956 (Section 8
India; and Nellore | 1956 (Section 8 as of Companies
District, Andhra per Companies Act, Act, 2013).
Pradesh State, 2013)
India
Total % 2 Million % 2 Million % 2 Million -

6. Though the amount of Profits of the Company as per CSR Rules is negative, the Company has spent ¥ 2 Million towards
CSR activities.

7. We hereby confirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy
of the Company.

For and on behalf of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Chairman of the Committee and
Director of the Company
DIN: 00017633

N. Syujith Kumar Reddy
Member and Director
DIN: 00022383

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020
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Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014

To

The Members,

Rain Industries Limited
Hyderabad.

We have conducted Secretarial Audit pursuant to Section 204
of the Companies Act 2013, on the compliance of applicable
Statutory Provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Rain Industries Limited (hereinafter called

as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes
books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information and according to the
examinations carried out by us and explanations furnished
and representations made to us by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has during the Audit Period covering the Financial
Year ended on 31*t December 2019 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

1.  We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended 31* December, 2019
(“Audit Period”) according to the provisions of:

1.1. The Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable)
and the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules
made thereunder;

1.2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;

1.3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed there under;

14. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made there under to the

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

1.5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

1.5.1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

1.5.2. The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

1.5.3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

1.5.4. The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

1.6. The Secretarial Standards on the Meetings of
the Board of Directors, Committees and General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

We report that during the period under review the
Company has complied with the aforesaid provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines thereunder and
also complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standards
issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Company is carrying on the business of sale of
products and duty scripts and providing shared support
services to its subsidiary companies and holding
investments in its Subsidiary Companies. In view of

the management, there are no Industry Specific Laws
applicable to the Company

We further report that:
4.1 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly

constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent
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4.2

4.3

44

Directors and Woman Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all the Directors
electronically to schedule the Board Meetings at least
7 days in advance and agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent in advance.

There exists a system for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors
and Committees of the Board of the Company were
taken unanimously. It is to be noted that for the Audit
Period the following acts are not applicable:

i.  SEBI(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020

4.5

ii.  SEBI(Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009.

iii. SEBI(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.

iv.  SEBI(Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014.

v.  SEBI(Issue of capital and disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2009

There exist adequate systems and processes in the
Company that commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were
no specific events [ actions having a major bearing on the
company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

DVM Gopal

Partner

M No: F 6280

CP No: 6798

UDIN: FO06280A000580623

Note: This letter is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed, and form an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE

To

The Members,

Rain Industries Limited
Hyderabad.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

DVM Gopal

Partner

M No: F 6280

Place: Hyderabad CP No: 6798
Date: February 28, 2020 UDIN: F006280A000580623

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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ANNEXURE -8A

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

FORM NO.MR-3

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Rain Cements Limited

“Rain Center”, 34, Srinagar Colony,
Hyderabad-500073,

Telangana State, India.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance

of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Rain Cements Limited., (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% December,
2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31 December, 2019 according to
the provisions of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder.

II. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder

III. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder;

128

IV. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

1.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009/2018 (Not applicable to the Company during
the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009/2018
(Not applicable to the Company during the

audit period); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 1998/2018 (Not applicable
to the Company during the audit period);

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;
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V. Other Laws as specifically applicable to the Company

1.
2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Mines Act, 1952 read with Mines Rules, 1955

Mines and Mineral (Regulation and Development)
Act, 1957 read with Mineral Conservation and
Development Rules, 1988

Cement (Quality Control) Order, 2003.

The Atomic Energy Act, 1962 read with Atomic Energy
(Radiation Protection) Rules, 2004;

The Petroleum Act, 1934 read with
Petroleum Rules, 2002;

The Explosive Act 1884 read with
Explosive Rules, 2008;

The Static & Mobile Pressure Vessels
(Unfired) Rules, 1981;

Cylinder Rules, 2004;
Ammonium Nitrate Rules, 2012;

Limestone And Dolomite Mines Metallic ferrous Mine
Regulations, 2012;

The Explosives Act, 2008 read with rules
made thereunder

Environmental (Protection) Act, 1986 Read with
Environmental Protection Rules, 1986;

The Hazardous Wastes (Managements Handling and
Trans Boundary Movement) Rules, 2008;

The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,
1974 read with Water (Prevention & Control of
Pollution) Rules, 1975;

Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution)
Cess Act, 1977;

The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,
1981 read with Air (Prevention & Control of
Pollution) Rules, 1982;

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 24, 2020

STATUTORY
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17.  The Noise Pollution (Regulation And
Control) Rules, 2000;

18. Indian Boilers Act, 1923

19. Factories Act, 1948

20. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
21. Electricity Act, 2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

e The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director.
There were no changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the period under review.

o Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

o All the decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings have been carried out unanimously as recorded
in the Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes
in the company commensurate with the size and operations of
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For P S Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

M B Suneel

Partner

C.P.No: 14449

UDIN: A031197A000573123

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure-A’ and forms an integral part of this report

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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ANNEXURE A

To

The Members

Rain Cements Limited

“Rain Center”, 34, Srinagar Colony,
Hyderabad-500073,

Telangana State, India.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For P S Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

M B Suneel
Partner
C.P.No: 14449
Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 24, 2020
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Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014

To

The Members,

Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited
Hyderabad.

We have conducted Secretarial Audit pursuant to Section 204
of the Companies Act 2013, on the compliance of applicable
Statutory Provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited (hereinafter
called as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
amanner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes
books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information and according to the
examinations carried out by us and explanations furnished
and representations made to us by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has during the Audit Period covering the Financial
Year ended on 31t December 2019 complied with the Statutory
Provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

1.  We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended 31* December, 2019
(“Audit Period”) according to the provisions of:

1.1. The Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable)
and the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules
made there under;

1.2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with client;

1.3. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made there under to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment;

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

1.4. The Secretarial Standards on the Meetings of
the Board of Directors, Committees and General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

We report that during the period under review the
Company has complied with the aforesaid provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines thereunder and
also complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standards
issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture
and sale of Calcined Petroleum Coke and generation
and supply of electricity. In view of the Management, the
following Industry Specific Acts are applicable to the
Company and the same are complied:

1)  Andhra Pradesh Factories Act, 1950 (Prescribed under
Rule 55, 55-A and 56);

2)  Andhra Pradesh Pollution Control Board Water Act,
1974 and Air Act, 1981;

3)  The Petroleum Act, 1934;

4) Indian Boiler Act No V of 1923, Section 7/8 and Indian
Boiler Regulation, 1950;

5) Atomic Energy Act, 1962;

6) Weights and Measures Act, 2011;
7)  Indian Electricity Act, 1910;

8) Environment Protection Act; and

9)  Motor Vehicle Act, 1988 & Central Motor
Vehicles Rule, 1989.

We further report that:

4.1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent
Directors and a Woman Director. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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4.2.

4.3.

44.

4.5.

Adequate Notice is given to all the Directors
electronically to schedule the Board Meetings at least
7days in advance and agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent in advance.

There exists a system for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors
and Committees of the Board of the Company were
taken unanimously.

The Company being an un-listed Company, the
Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.02.2020

4.6.

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 are
not applicable to the Company

There exist adequate systems and processes in the
Company that commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were
no specific events | actions having a major bearing on the
company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., except as
reported in the Auditors Report.

For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

DVM Gopal

Partner

M No: F6280

CP No: 6798

UDIN: FO06280A000568701

Note: This letter is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed, and form an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE

To

The Members,

Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited
Hyderabad.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.  Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

DVM Gopal

Partner

M No: F 6280

Place: Hyderabad CP No: 6798
Date: 24.02.2020 UDIN: F006280A000568701

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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ANNEXURE-8C

Secretarial Compliance Report of Rain Industries Limited
for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019

We, DVM & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries, having our
office situated at No. 6/3/154-159, Flat No. 303, 3rd Floor, Royal
Majestic Apartment, Prem Nagar Colony, Near Care Hospital,
Road No. 1, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad - 500004, Telangana State,
India, have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and
explanation provided by Rain Industries Limited (“the
Listed Entity”);

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the
stock exchanges;

(c) website of the listed entity;

(d) anyother document/ filing, as may be relevant, which
has been relied upon to make this certification for the
Financial Year ended December 31, 2019 (“Review Period”)
in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include:

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

Place: Hyderabad
Date:10'" February, 2020
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(2)

(h)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Listed Entity during the Review Period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to
the Listed Entity during the Review Period);

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to
the Listed Entity during the Review Period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares)
Regulations, 2013; (Not applicable to the Listed Entity
during the Review Period)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

and based on the above examination, we hereby report that,
during the Review Period:

(@)

(b)

The listed entity has complied with the provisions
of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines
issued thereunder.

The listed entity has maintained proper records under
the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from
our examination of those records.

There were no actions taken against the listed entity/ its
promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI
or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard
Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various
circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and
circulars| guidelines issued thereunder.

The actions taken by listed entity to comply with the
observations made in previous reports does not arise
during the review period.

For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

DVM Gopal

Partner

M No: F6280

CP No: 6798

UDIN: FO06280B000134001
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ANNEXURE-9

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS AS PER RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

The remuneration and perquisites provided to the employees and Management are at par with the industry levels. The
remunerations paid to the Managing Director and senior executives are reviewed and recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company
for the financial year

s Ratio of the remuneration to
N.o. Name of the Director the median remuneration of
the employees

1 Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy (Managing Director) 0.19:1

2 Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore (Vice Chairman) 7.79:1

3 Mr. N. Syjith Kumar Reddy (Non-Executive Director) NIL

4 Mr.S.L.Rao (Independent Director)! 0.88:1

5  Mr. H.L. Zutshi (Independent Director) 2.83:1

6  Mr. Varun Batra (Independent Director) 2.83:1

7  Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti (Independent Director) 2.60:1

8  Ms. Nirmala Reddy (Independent Director) 2.94:1

9  Mr. Brian Jude McNamara (Independent Director)? 2.38:1

' Mr. S.L. Rao resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15,2019
2 Mr. Brian Jude McNamara was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.

*Median remuneration of Employees: ¥ 534,095/-

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager in the financial year

S. Name of the Director P ercentage ir}crease
No. inremuneration
1 Mr.N.Radhakrishna Reddy (Managing Director) NIL
2 Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore (Vice Chairman) NIL
3 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy (Non-Executive Director) NIL
4  Mr.S.L.Rao (Independent Director)! NIL
5  Mr. H.L. Zutshi (Independent Director) NIL
6  Mr. Varun Batra (Independent Director) NIL
7  Ms. Nirmala Reddy (Independent Director) NIL
8  Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti (Independent Director) NIL
9  Mr. Brian Jude McNamara (Independent Director)? NIL
10 Mr. T. Srinivasa Rao (Chief Financial Officer) NIL
11 Mr.S. Venkat Ramana Reddy (Company Secretary) NIL
Note:

I Mr. S.L. Rao resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15, 2019
2Mr. Brian Jude McNamara was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
NIL

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
There are 136 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration
The Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employeesis ~ NIL

There is only one Managing Director. There has been no increase in the managerial remuneration for the financial year.
(vi) The Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: February 28,2020 DIN: 00021052 DIN: 00017633
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ANNEXURE-10

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT- FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

As per Regulation 34(2)(f) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SECTIONA:

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.

Industrial Group*

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company :
L26942TG1974PLC0O01693

Name of the Company:
Rain Industries Limited

Registered address:

Rain Center, 34, Srinagar Colony, Hyderabad- 500073,
Telangana State, India.

Product Description

Website:

www.rain-industries.com

E-mail id:
secretarial@rain-industries.com

Financial Year reported:
January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial
activity code-wise)

Rain Industries Limited (Rain Group) along with its
subsidiaries in India and outside India is engaged in the
business of Manufacture and Sale of Cement, Carbon
Products (Calcined Petroleum Coke and Coal Tar Pitch),
Electricity and Specialty Chemicals.

191
239
351
201

Carbon Products (Calcined Petroleum Coke, Green Petroleum Coke and Coal Tar Pitch)

Manufacture of Cement

Electric Power Generation, Transmission and Distribution

Advanced Materials

* As per National Industrial Classification, 2008 - Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation.

8.

140

List three key products/services that the Company
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

Rain Industries Limited along with its subsidiaries
manufactures/sells the following products:

i)  Ordinary Portland and Portland Pozzolana Cement;

ii) Carbon Products (Calcined Petroleum Coke and
Coal Tar Pitch);

iii) Generation and Distribution of Electricity; and

iv) Advanced Materials.

Total number of locations where business activity is
undertaken by the Company

Rain Industries Limited along with its subsidiaries
undertakes business at the following locations:

a) Number of International Locations (Provide details
of major Five):
Rain Industries Limited undertakes business
activities in Five International locations through
its Subsidiaries on consolidated basis. Five major

business activities undertaken at international
locations are as follows:

(i) Belgium
(ii) Canada
(iii) Germany
(iv) Russia and
(v) USA.

b) Number of National Locations:
Cement and Electricity: Cement Plants are situated in
the State of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh. One Cement
Packing Plant is situated in the State of Karnataka.
Dealer networks and zonal marketing offices are located
in the States of Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Tamil Nadu,
Karnataka, Maharashtra, Odisha and Kerala. The Cement
Plant in Andhra Pradesh and Telangana has a Waste
Heat Recovery based power production mechanism to
generate up to 10.5 MW of electricity.

Calcined Petroleum Coke and Electricity: The
Calcined Petroleum Coke plant is in the State of

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Andhra Pradesh, India. The Plant has a Waste Heat
Recovery based power production mechanism to
generate up to 49 MW of electricity.

10. Markets served by the Company - Local/State/

National/International

Local State National International
v v v v
SECTION B:

FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1.
2.

Paid up Capital : ¥ 672,691,358|-

Total Revenue : % 637.91 Million (Standalone) and
% 123,607.97 Million (Consolidated).

Total profit after taxes : ¥ 354.39 Million (Standalone) and
% 3,913.84 Million (Consolidated).

Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
percentage of profit:

Though Rain Industries Limited (the Company) is not
required to spend 2% of its net profits calculated in
accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act,
2013 towards CSR expenditure as per Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, however, the Company has spent
¥ 2 Million towards CSR activities.

The Company along with its subsidiaries in India has
spent an amount of ¥ 231 Million on its CSR activities
during last 3 years.

List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above (CSR)
has been incurred:

The Company through Pragnya Priya Foundation (Section
25 Company, under Companies Act, 1956/Section 8
Company, Companies Act, 2013) is maintaining Schools
and Hospitals in Suryapet District, Telangana State, India,
Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India and Nellore
District, Andhra Pradesh, India.

SECTION C:
OTHER DETAILS

1.

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/
Companies?
Yes, Rain Industries Limited has 25 Subsidiary Companies.

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate
in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If

yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary
company(s)

Rain Industries Limited positively influences and
encourages its subsidiaries to adopt Business
Responsibility (BR) initiatives. All the Company’s

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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subsidiaries are guided to conduct their business in

an ethical, transparent and accountable manner. It
encompasses suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
It also address key BR issues like quality, customer

value, health & safety, environment, human rights and
employee well-being.

‘ 3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers,
distributors etc.) that the Company does business
with, participate in the BRinitiatives of the
Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of
such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More
than 60%]
The Company does not mandate its suppliers/distributors
to participate in the Company’s BR initiatives. However,
they are encouraged to adopt such practices and follow the
concept of being a responsible business entity.
SECTION D:
BRINFORMATION
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
a) Details of the Director/Directors responsible for
implementation of the BR policy/policies
1.  DIN Number: 00017633
2. Name : Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
3. Designation: Director
b) Details of the BR head
No. Particulars Details
1 DIN Number 00017633
2 Name Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
3 Designation Director
4 Telephone number | 040-40401245
5 e-mailid secretarial@rain-industries.com
2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / Policies

(Reply in Y/N):

The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social,
Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business
(NVGs) released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility. These
briefly are as under:

P1 - Businesses should conduct and govern themselves
with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability (this forms
part of the Code of Conduct).

P2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are
safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life

cycle (the policy is part of Company’s Environment, Health
and Safety (EHS) Policy).
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P3 - Businesses should promote the well-being of all
employees (certain policies form part of the Code of
Conduct for employees. There are various policies for the
benefit of the employees which are issued by the Human
Resources function from time to time. The policies
include Maternity Leave Policy, Employee Safety Policy,
Mediclaim Policy, etc.).

P4 - Businesses should respect the interests of and be
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized (the
Company does not have a specific policy, however certain
aspect of this principle forms part of the CSR Policy).

P5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights
(this forms part of the Code of Conduct of the Company
which is applicable to all employees).

a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

P6 - Businesses should respect, protect and make
efforts to restore the environment (this forms part of
Company’s EHS policy).

P7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and
regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
(not applicable).

P8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth
and equitable development (this forms part of the
Company’s CSR Policy).

P9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value
to their customers and consumers in a responsible
manner (this forms part of the Subsidiary Companies
Consumer Policy).

No. Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Do you have a policy/ policies for
1 Hasthe policy being formulated in consultation with the Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

relevant stakeholders?

2 Does the policy conform to any national [ international
standards? If yes, specify? (50 words)

3 Hasthe policy being approved by the Board? Is yes, has
it been signed by MD/ owner| CEO| appropriate Board
Director?

4 Does the company have a specified Committee of the
Board/ Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of
the policy?

5 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?

6  Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders?

7  Does the company have in-house structure to implement
the policy/ policies?

8 Doesthe Company have a grievance redressal mechanism
related to the policy/ policies to address stakeholders’
grievances related to the policy/ policies?

9  Hasthe company carried out independent audit/
evaluation of the working of this policy by an internal or
external agency?

All the policies are in comparable with the best practices in
the industry.

Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y

NA Y Y

www.rain-industries.com
Y Y Y Y Y Y NA Y Y
NA Y Y

NA Y Y

NA Y Y
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If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

No. Questions

PL P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 PT P8 P9

1  The company has not understood the Principles

2 The company is not at a stage where it finds itselfin a
position to formulate and implement the policies on
specified principles

3 The company does not have financial or manpower
resources available for the task

4 Itis planned to be done within next 6 months

Itis planned to be done within the next 1 year

6  Any other reason (please specify)

w1

3. Governance related to BR

(a) Indicate the frequency with which the Board
of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO
to assess the BR performance of the Company.
Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, more than
1lyear
The Managing Director and top management
periodically review the BR performance of the
Company through Business Review Meetings.

(b) Doesthe Company publish a BR or a Sustainability
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this
report? How frequently is it published?

BR will be published annually along with
the Annual Report.

Web link: www.rain-industries.com

SECTION E:
PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with

Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption
cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the
Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/
Others?

Yes. The policy of Code of Conduct, Ethics, Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption covers the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received
in the past financial year and what percentage was
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
The Company has received and resolved 442 complaints
from Shareholders during the Financial Year ended
December 31,2019 and all the complaints have been
resolved satisfactorily.

With respect to other Stakeholders, the Company has
formulated Whistle Blower Policy. However, the Company
has not received any complaint under Vigil mechanism
during the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

Principle 2

Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe

and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.

1. Listupto 3 ofyourproducts or services whose design has
incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/
or opportunities.

a) OrdinaryPortland and Portland Pozzolana Cement;

b)  Carbon products (Calcined Petroleum Coke and Coal
Tar Pitch); and

¢) Advanced Materials.

2. Foreach such product, provide the following details in
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material, etc.)
per unit of product(optional):

a)  Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution
achieved since the previous year throughout the value
chain:

The Company through its Subsidiary Companies
mainly Rain Cements Limited which is engaged in
the business of manufacture and sale of Cement and
Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited which is engaged
in the business of Carbon products and generation
and distribution of electricity, always strives for
conserving natural resources and energy and
improved efficiencies in plant operations.

Cement Plants consume alternate materials like
fly-ash and pet-coke in manufacturing to substitute
natural resources like coal & fuels. In the process

of manufacture of Cement and Calcined Petroleum
Coke, plants generate electricity through waste
heat recovery based power plant which converts the
heat generated into electricity. In the manufacture
of Cement, there is no solid or liquid waste arising
from this process.

b)  Reduction during usage by consumers (energy and
water) has been achieved since the previous year?
Cement, Coal tar Pitch and Electricity are used
for variety of purposes by diverse consumers and
Calcined Petroleum Coke is used by Aluminum
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and Steel manufacturers. As the products are used
for variety of purposes by diversified consumers,
itis not practical to measure the reduction in
usage by consumers.

3. Doesthe Company have proceduresin place for
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

a) Ifyes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50
words or so.

The Company and its Subsidiary Companies practices
are targeted at seeking cost optimization, ensuring
environment sustainability, societal interest and
resource efficiency. The criteria used for selection

of suppliers/ vendors go beyond cost relevance and
include resource efficiency, product quality, life cycle,
environment impact, etc. Company gives preference
in selection of vendors which comply with the various
principles of sustainability.

The criteria for procurement of equipment is based
upon resource efficiency, mainly comprising of
but not limited to energy efficiency, fuel efficiency,
emission control, etc.

4. Hasthe Company taken any steps to procure goods

and services from local & small producers, including

communities surrounding their place of work?

a) Ifyes, what steps have been taken to improve their
capacity and capability of local and small vendors?
Rain Cements Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
Company is engaged in the business of manufacture
and sale of Cement. It procures lime stone from
locally available resources.

The Company and subsidiary Companies accord
priority to local suppliers in procurement of stores

and spares and other consumables. Company’s
contractors who supply labour services for

plant operations employ workmen from nearby
communities. This workforce is educated and are
provided training in occupational health and safety.

5. Doesthe Company have a mechanism to recycle products
and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of
products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%).
Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Subsidiary Companies in India are engaged in the
business of manufacture and sale of Cement and Calcined
Petroleum Coke. In the process of manufacture of Cement
and Calcined Petroleum Coke, plants generate electricity
through waste heat recovery based power plants which
converts the waste heat generated into electricity. In the
manufacture of Cement, there is no solid or liquid waste
arising from this process.

Principle 3

Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees

1. Pleaseindicate the Total number of employees of Rain
Industries Limited: 136

2. Pleaseindicate the Total number of employees hired on
temporary/ contractual/casual basis: Nil

3. Pleaseindicate the Number of permanent women
employees: 18

4. Pleaseindicate the Number of permanent employees with
disabilities: Nil

5. Doyouhave an employee association that is recognized by
management: No

6. What percentage of your permanent employees are
members of this recognized employee association: Nil

7. Pleaseindicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the
last financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year.

Sl.

No. Category

No of complaints filed during
the financial year

No of complaints pending as on
end of the financial year

1  Childlabour/forced labour/involuntary labour
2 Sexual harassment
3 Discriminatory employment

Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

8. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?

Particulars Safety (%) Skill-upgradation (%)
Permanent Employees 100 % 100 %
Permanent Women Employees 100 % 100 %
Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees N.A. N.A.
Employees with Disabilities N.A. N.A.
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Principle 4
Businesses should respect the interests of and be
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.
1. Hasthe Company mapped its internal and external
stakeholders? Yes/No
Yes. The Company Rain Industries Limited has mapped its
internal as well as external stakeholders.

2. Outofthe above, has the company identified the
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders
There are no disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders identified by Rain Industries Limited.

However, subsidiaries of the Company in India namely
Rain Cements Limited and Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited
have identified the Communities around Company’s
manufacturing units and its contractors/ workers as
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders.

3. Arethere any special initiatives taken by the company
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so.
The Company and its subsidiaries endeavor to bring
meaningful difference in the lives of its associated
stakeholders in thrust areas like healthcare, infrastructure
support and education. Several initiatives towards
healthcare, education, sanitation, safe drinking water,
integrated rural development, creation of sustainable
livelihoods, etc. have been taken under Corporate
Social Responsibility activities of the Company and
its Subsidiaries.

Principle 5

Businesses should respect and promote Human Rights

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover
only the company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?
All aspects of human rights are inbuilt and covered under
the Company’s Code of Business Conduct as well in various
human resource practices | policies.

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in
the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

No complaints with respect to Human Rights was reported
during the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

Principle 6

Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to

restore the environment.

1. Doesthe policy related to Principle 6 cover only the
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others.

The Company and its subsidiary Companies adheres to all
the Statutory Environmental Regulatory requirements. The

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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subsidiary Companies in India have adopted Environment,
Health and Safety policy.

Does the Company have strategies/ initiatives to address
global environmental issues such as climate change,
global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for
webpage etc.

-No-

Does the company identify and assess potential
environmental risks? Y/N
-Yes-

The Company and its subsidiary Companies have Risk
Management mechanisms in place to identify and assess
existing and potential risks across its operations.

Does the company have any project related to Clean
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof,
inabout 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any
environmental compliance report is filed?

i.  Rain Cements Limited, a wholly owned Subsidiary has
a Waste Heat Recovery based Power Generation plant
at its Cement Plant at Kurnool, Andhra Pradesh, India
to generate up to 10.5 MW Electricity;

ii.  Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited, a wholly
owned Subsidiary of the Company has a Waste
Heat Recovery based Power Generation facility
to generate up to 49 MW Electricity situated at
Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh, India with Clean
Development Mechanism; and

iii. Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited has registered its
Waste Heat Recovery based Power Generation plant
with United Nations Framework Convention on
Climate Change (UNFCCC) under Clean Development
Mechanism (CDM). Rain CII Carbon (Vizag) Limited
was eligible for Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)
up to July, 2017.

Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on-
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy,
etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.
The Company and its subsidiaries through its dedicated
team of engineers, have been monitoring performance
of various plants and equipment’s to reduce energy
consumption. The significant energy conservation
measures initiated during the year are given in the
statement under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
which is made part of Annual Report as an annexure

to Boards’ Report of the Company and Subsidiary
Companies. The web link for the same is http://www.
rain-industries.com
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6. Arethe Emissions/Waste generated by the company
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the
financial year being reported?

The emissions/waste generated by the subsidiary
Companies are within the permissible limits specified by
Central or State Pollution Control Board (CPCB/SPCB) for
the financial year being reported.

7.  Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/
SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction)
as on end of Financial Year.

There are no show cause/legal notices from CPCB/SPCB
which are pending as at the end of the financial year.

Principle 7

Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and

regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

1. Isthe Company a member of any trade and chamber or
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:

Yes. The Company is a member of Federation of
Telangana Chamber of Commerce and Industry (FTCCI),
Telangana State, India.

2. Haveyouadvocated/lobbied through above associations
for the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/
No; if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance
and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive
Development Policies, Energy security, Water, Food
Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)
-No-

Principle 8

Businesses should supportinclusive growth and equitable

development.

1. Doesthe Company have specified programmes/initiatives/
projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If
yes details thereof.

The Company has adopted CSR Policy, the key areas of
focus of CSR Policy are:

i.  Providing health care, maintaining hospitals,
ambulances and conducting medical camps;

ii. Promoting education, including special education
and employment enhancing vocation skills especially
among children, women, elderly and the differently
abled and livelihood enhancement projects; and

ili. Rural development projects.

2.  Arethe programmes/projects undertaken through in-
house team/own foundation/external NGO/government
structures/any other organization?

The above mentioned initiatives are implemented through
its in-house team and through own Foundation named
Pragnya Priya Foundation. It is a not-for-profit Company
registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956).
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Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
Yes, the Company has conducted impact assessments of its
CSR initiatives.

What is the Company’s direct contribution to community
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the
projects undertaken.

The Company along with its subsidiaries in India have
spent an amount of ¥ 91.67 Million on its CSR activities
during Financial year ended December 31, 2019.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community
development initiative is successfully adopted by the
community? Please explainin 50 words, or so.

Corporate Social Responsibility - An Overview

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) is the way Rain
Industries Limited and its subsidiaries (RAIN) operates
its businesses. Rain’s CSR model is well-integrated with its
business strategy and has helped to bring about positive
change in communities. Rain established Pragnya Priya
Foundation in 2012 to drive its CSR initiatives. RAIN’s CSR
efforts are directed at improving the lives of marginalised
sections of society living near its production facilities.

Rain’s CSR initiatives focus on four key areas: Health,
Education, Rural Development and Environment.

o Health
RAIN has established Free Primary Hospital in
Ramapuram Village, Mellacheruvu Mandal, Suryapet
District, Telangana State, India, Boincheruvupalli
Village, Kurnool District, Andhra Pradesh, India and
Kalayakagollu village, Nellore District, Andhra Pradesh,
India. The hospital also provides fully equipped
emergency ambulance facilities for patients. In addition
to medical care, the hospitals conducts routine health-
related initiatives for communities such as de-addiction
counselling and creating awareness about health
education in marginalised communities.

o Education
Recognising the role of education plays in social
transformation, RAIN operates High Schools in English
Medium with digital classrooms at Ramapuram Village,
Mellacheruvu Mandal, Suryapet District, Telangana
State, India, Boincheruvupalli Village, Kurnool District,
Andhra Pradesh, India and Kalayakagollu village,
Nellore District, Andhra Pradesh, India.

o Rural developmental initiatives
Rain undertakes development projects that contribute
to the overall development of communities around
its production facilities. In co-operation with local
communities in India, Rain promotes and supports
initiatives taken by Local Bodies and Government
Agencies to identify, adopt and support for development
and growth. Some of the developmental activities
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undertaken in India by the Company around its
Suryapet and Kurnool Cement facilities include:

- Contributed to 108 Ambulances

- Granted Donation to Visakha Utsav a rural
cultural fest

« Environment
Rain undertakes Plantation of Trees at Visakhapatnam
towards promotion of Plantation and Forestry.

Principle 9

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their

customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer
cases are pending as on the end of financial year.
No complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end
of financial year.

2. Doesthe Company display product information on the
product label, over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional information)
The Company and its subsidiary Companies displays
product information on the product label as per the
requirement of law.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

STATUTORY
REPORTS

147

3. Isthere any case filed by any stakeholder against the
company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the
last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so,
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

No case was filed by any stakeholder against the

company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the
last five years.

4. Didthe Company carry out any consumer survey/
consumer satisfaction trends?
The Company has not carried out any formal consumer
survey/consumer satisfaction trends. However, the
Company keeps track of responses/comments from
various stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00021052 DIN: 00017633
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ANNEXURE-11

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
INTRODUCTION:

In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human
resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable remuneration
to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees
of the Company, to harmonize the aspirations of human
resources consistent with the goals of the Company and in
terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
listing agreement as amended from time to time this policy on
nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated.

THE OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

1.  Tolay down criteria and terms and conditions with
regard to identifying persons who are qualified to
become Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and
persons who may be appointed in Senior Management
and Key Managerial positions and to determine
their remuneration.

2.  To determine remuneration based on the Company’s
size and financial position and trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies.

To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors.

4. To provide them reward linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the
Company’s operations.

5. Toretain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long
term sustainability of talented managerial persons and
create competitive advantage.

DEFINITIONS
o Board means Board of Directors of the Company.
« Directors means Directors of the Company.

o Committee means Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company as constituted or
reconstituted by the Board.

o Company means Rain Industries Limited.

« Independent Director means a Director referred to in
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means-

i.  Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager
and in their absence, a Whole-time Director;
ii. Company Secretary; and

iii. Chief Financial Officer.
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Senior Management Personnel means-

i.  President;and

ii.  Vice- President.

APPLICABILITY
The Policy is applicable to

o Directors (Executive and Non Executive)
o Key Managerial Personnel

o Senior Management Personnel

A. Matterstobe Dealt with, Perused and
Recommended to the Board by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
1. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes and independence of a director.

2. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director
and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial
and Senior Management positions in accordance with
the criteria laid down in this policy.

3. Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal
of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.

B. Eligibility Criteria for Appointment of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
1.  The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or
at Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his [ her appointment.

2. Apersonshould possess adequate qualification,
expertise and experience for the position he | she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has
discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient |
satisfactory for the concerned position.

3. The Company shall not appoint or continue the
employment of any person as Whole time Director
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided
that the term of the person holding this position may
be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.

C. Term and Remuneration
1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director

i.  The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any
person as its Managing Director or Whole-time
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Director for a term not exceeding five years at a
time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier
than one year before the expiry of term.

ii.  The remuneration [ compensation |
commission etc. to the Whole-time Director
will be determined by the Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval. The
remuneration [ compensation /[ commission etc.
for Whole time Directors shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company.

iii. Where any insurance is taken by the Company
on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the
Company Secretary and any other employees
for indemnifying them against any liability,
the premium paid on such insurance shall not
be treated as part of the remuneration payable
to any such personnel. Provided that if such
person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid
on such insurance shall be treated as part of
the remuneration.

iv.  The Whole-time Director shall be eligible for
amonthly remuneration as may be approved
by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and
quantum of perquisites including, employer’s
contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical
expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and
approved by the Board on the recommendation
of the Committee and approved by
the shareholders.

v.  If in any financial year, the Company has
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-
time Director in accordance with the provisions
of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. ChiefFinancial Officer (C.F.0), Company Secretary
(C.S) and Senior Management Personnel

i.  Theremuneration | compensation etc.
to the Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and Senior Management Personnel
will be determined by the Committee and
recommended to the Board for approval.

ii.  The Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Senior Management Personnel shall be
eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be
approved by the Board on the recommendation
of the Committee. The breakup of the pay
scale and quantum of perquisites including,
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension
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scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall
be decided and approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee.

Independent Director

i.  AnlIndependent Director shall hold office for a
term up to five consecutive years on the Board
of the Company and will be eligible for re-
appointment on passing of a special resolution
by the Company and disclosure of such
appointment in the Board’s report.

ii. NolIndependent Director shall hold office for
more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director.
Provided that an Independent Director shall
not, during the said period of three years,
be appointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either directly
or indirectly. However, if a person who has
already served as an Independent Director for
5 years or more in the Company, he [ she shall
be eligible for appointment for one more term
of 5 years only.

iii. Atthe time of appointment of Independent
Director it should be ensured that number of
Boards on which such Independent Director
serves is restricted to seven listed companies
as an Independent Director and three listed
companies as an Independent Director in case
such person is serving as a Whole-time Director
of alisted company.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent
Director

Sitting Fees

The Non- Executive [ Independent Director may
receive remuneration by way of fees for attending
meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided
that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Z.

One lakh per meeting of the Board or Committee or
such amount as may be prescribed by the Central
Government from time to time.

Commission

Commission may be paid within the monetary
limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit
not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company
computed as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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Evaluation
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance
of every Director Annually.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the
Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any
other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee
may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management

Place: Hyderabad

Date:
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February 28,2020

Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the
said Act, rules and regulations.

G. Retirement
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall
retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Director,
KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position
| remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00021052 DIN: 00017633
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

RAIN Group is one of the world’s largest producers of

calcined petroleum coke (“CPC”) and coal tar pitch (“CTP”).

We operate in three key business verticals: Carbon,
Advanced Materials and Cement. It has 18 production
facilities in eight countries across three continents and
continues to grow through capacity expansions and
mergers and acquisitions throughout the world.

Our Carbon business segment converts the by-products
of oil refining (i.e., green petroleum coke (GPC) and steel
production (i.e., coal tar) into high-value carbon-based
products [i.e., calcined petroleum coke (“CPC”), coal tar
pitch (“CTP”) and other carbon products (“OCP”)]. These
by-products are critical raw materials for the aluminium,
graphite, carbon black, wood preservation, titanium
dioxide, refractory and several other global industries.

Our Advanced Materials business segment carries out the
innovative downstream transformation of a portion of our
carbon output, petrochemicals and other raw materials
into high-value, eco-friendly raw materials under four
sub-segments of engineered products, petrochemical
intermediates, naphthalene derivates and resins; that are
critical to the specialty chemicals, coatings, construction,
automotive, petroleum and several other global industries.

Our Cement business segment produces and markets high-
quality ordinary portland cement (“OPC”) and portland
pozzolana cement (“PPC”) consumed largely by the civil
construction and infrastructure industries within India.

Our scale and process sophistication provide us the
flexibility to capitalise on market opportunities by
selecting raw materials from a wide range of sources
across various geographies, adjusting the composition
of our product mix and offering products that meet
stringent customer specifications, including several
specialty products.

Our global manufacturing footprint and our integrated
worldwide logistics network have also strategically
positioned us to capitalise on market opportunities by
addressing raw material supply and product demand on
a global basis in both established (mainly North America
and Europe) and emerging markets (mainly Asia and

the Middle East).

The following operating and financial review is
intended to convey the management’s perspective on
the operating and financial performance of RAIN Group
for the year ended December 31, 2019. This should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s Standalone
and Consolidated Financial Statements, the schedules
and notes thereto, and the other information included
elsewhere in the Annual Report. RAIN Group’s Financial
Statements have been prepared in compliance with the
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requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the guidelines
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI), in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) and the other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Consolidated Financial Performance
Zin Million

Particulars CY 2019 CY 2018
Income from Operations 123,608 140,490
Operating Profit 17,427 21,411
Operating Profit (%) 14.1% 15.2%
Profit Before Tax 5,907 9,957
Net Profit After Tax @ 5,211 7,305

@ After Non-controlling interest

Operating profit and net profit after tax are adjusted with
exceptional items. Please find hereunder the reconciliation
of reported operating profit and reported net profit

after tax with adjusted operating profit and adjusted net
profit after tax.

Operating Profit | Profit After Tax
Reconciliation Reconciliation

Reported amount 15,968 3,914
Adjustments:

Inventory adjustments 206 160
Reorganisation costs 1,076 807
towards plant closure in

the Netherlands

Insurance claims related (326) (258)
to prior periods

Income from sale of land (156) (101)
in Hanau, Germany

Expenses towards 789 572

strategic projects and
other non-recurring items

Reversal of provisions (128) (101)
relating to environmental

issues

Accelerated depreciation 806
due to plant closure in the

Netherlands

Tax adjustments (588)
Adjusted amount 17,427 5,211

During CY2019, our business generated revenue from
operations of ¥ 123.6 billion and operating profit of

% 174 billion. The revenue in CY2019 was lower by 12.0%
compared to CY2018 mainly due to lower price realisations
and reduction in volumes. The operating margins in
CY2019 were also lower due to higher operating cost
resulting from an increase in raw material prices in the
first half of the year. As a result, the net profit after tax

in CY2019 was ¥ 5.2 billion (i.e., % 2.1 billion lower than

the % 7.3 billion generated in CY2018). Consequently,
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the earnings per share is ¥ 15.5 in CY2019 as against
¥21.7in CY2018.

With a moderate performance in CY2019 coupled with a
strong cash balance of ¥ 11.7 billion and undrawn working
capital loans of % 13.5 billion, RAIN Group is well placed

to meet its debt-servicing obligations in the future and

Details of Key Financial Ratios (Consolidated)

to fund the expansion projects initiated. The major debt
repayments are scheduled to start in January 2025.

The paid-up share capital of RAIN Industries Limited
as on December 31,2019 is ¥ 672,691,358, comprising
336,345,679 fully paid-up equity shares of ¥ 2 each.

S.No Key Financial Ratios Financial year 2019 Financial year 2018 Variance
(i) Debtors Turnover 9.15 8.58 7%
(ii) Inventory Turnover 3.27 3.54 -7%
(iii) Interest Coverage Ratio 4.11 5.07 -19%
(iv) Current Ratio 2.00 1.98 1%
(v)  NetDebt Equity Ratio 1.29 1.45 -11%
(vi) Adjusted Operating Profit Margin (%) 14% 15% -1%
(vii) Adjusted Net Profit Margin (%) 4% 5% -1%
(viii) Return on Net Worth 11% 16% -5%

1. The Return on Net Worth for the financial year 2019 is 11% and Return on Net Worth for financial year 2018 was 16, The decrease of 5% in

return on net worth is mainly due to decrease in operating profit.

2.There is no significant change (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in the other key

financial ratios.

PERFORMANCE OF CARBON BUSINESS SEGMENT
% in Million

Particulars CY 2019 CY 2018

Sales Volumes (‘000 Tonnes) 2,616 2,715

Net Revenue 81,225 95,681

Operating Profit 12,758 16,675

Operating Profit (%) 15.7% 17.4%

The Carbon business segment includes the manufacturing
and trading of carbon products comprising CPC, CTP,

GPC, and other derivates of coal distillation, including
creosote oil, naphthalene, carbon black oil and other

basic aromatic oils. Energy produced through waste-heat
recovery in the manufacturing of CPCis also included in
the Carbon business segment. About 66.1% of RAIN Group’s
consolidated revenue for CY2019 was generated from the
Carbon business segment.

During CY2019, the Carbon business segment generated

¥ 81.2 billion in net revenue, a decrease of approximately
15.1% as compared to ¥ 95.7 billion generated during
CY2018. The decrease in revenue was due to a decrease in
average realisations by approximately 11.5%, including
exchange fluctuation from depreciation of Indian Rupee
against US Dollar and appreciation against Euro, and by
decrease in volumes by approximately 3.6%. The operating
margin decreased to 15.7% in CY2019 as compared to 17.49%
in CY2018. Margins declined in the Carbon business due to
higher operating costs from increase in raw material costs
coupled with the consumption of high-cost raw materials;
consequent to restrictions on import of pet coke in India.

With encouraging prospects for steady-to-increased
demand by end-customer industries, and the completion
of our vertical-shaft kiln CPC plant in India, we expect the
Carbon business segment to perform better in the future.

PERFORMANCE OF ADVANCED MATERIALS
BUSINESS SEGMENT

Zin Million
Particulars CY 2019 CY 2018
Sales Volumes (‘000 Tonnes) 442 472
Net Revenue 31,348 34,844
Operating Profit 3,107 4,022
Operating Profit (%) 9.9% 11.5%

Our Advanced Materials business segment mainly
comprises engineered products, petrochemical
intermediates, resins and naphthalene derivates, which are
derived from our primary distillate - naphthalene - and
additional raw materials purchased from third parties.
About 25.5% of the consolidated revenue for CY2019 is
from the Advanced Materials business segment.

During CY2019, our Advanced Materials business segment
generated % 31.3 billion in net revenue, a decrease of 10.0%
as compared to ¥ 34.8 billion during CY2018. The decrease
was primarily related to a 3.6% decrease in blended

price realisations during CY2019 and by 6.4% decrease

in sales volumes. The operating margin decreased from
11.5% in CY2018 to 9.9% in CY2019 due to an increase in
operating expenses and raw material prices, coupled with
unplanned shutdowns.
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With the completion of our hydrogenated hydrocarbon
resins plant in Germany and shifting of customers’ orders
from Uithoorn, the Netherlands to Duisburg, Germany,
we expect the Advanced Materials business segment to
perform better in the future.

5. PERFORMANCE OF CEMENT BUSINESS
SEGMENT

% in Million
Particulars CY 2019 CY 2018
Sales Volumes (‘000 Tonnes) 2,468 2,229
Net Revenue 10,300 9,083
Operating Profit 1,562 714
Operating Profit (%) 15.2% 7.9%

Our Cement business segment is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of cement. The products include
high-quality OPC and PPC. About 8.4% of the consolidated
revenue of RAIN Group for CY2019 was from this business
segment. During CY2019, this segment generated

% 10.3 billion in net revenue. Due to increase in price
realisations of approximately 2.7% in CY2019 coupled with
an increase in volumes of approximately 10.7%, there is an
increase in revenue by approximately 13.4% compared to

% 9.1 billion during CY2018. The Cement business segment
operated at an improved average capacity utilization

of approximately 62% during CY2019 compared to
approximately 56% in CY2018.

The operating margin of Cement business increased from
7.9% in CY2018 to 15.2% in CY2019 mainly due to better
average realisations and decrease in operating costs.

With expected growth in demand from rural markets
and implementation of cost optimisation initiatives,
we expect the Cement business segment to perform
better in the future.

6. OVERALL BUSINESS AND GROWTH STRATEGIES

RAIN Group’s strategy aims at process improvement and
the development of new, higher-margin products and
technologies through research and development (R&D)
initiatives. We emphasise performance, sustainability
and utilisation of alternative raw materials. The Group
intends to maximise efficiencies and minimise costs by
combining the purchasing, trading, plant operations,
logistics management, finance and R&D functions
within each business segment and by executing cost-
reduction initiatives.

RAIN Group believes that the scale of its vertically
integrated organisation will provide an effective platform
to continue to develop higher-margin downstream
products. The size and efficient logistic networks of its
plants allow RAIN Group to realise economies of scale.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

STATUTORY
REPORTS

153

The Group has integrated its coal tar and petroleum tar
distillation operations with its downstream operations
that efficiently use the products derived from its primary
distillation process and allow generation of incremental
margins greater than the margins that it generated
through the sale of conventional primary distillation
products. Over the next few years, the demand for carbon
products such as coal tar pitch and calcined petroleum
coke (“CPC”) is expected to grow significantly in India
and the Middle East. To reinforce our market leadership
as a provider of premium carbon products and innovative
advanced materials, the Company has undertaken several
capacity expansion projects like vertical-shaft kiln CPC
plant in India and hydrogenated hydrocarbon resins
(HHCR) facility in Germany.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

The Company established an in-house internal audit
department in India during CY 2018 to carry out robust
reviews of various RAIN Group companies in India, Europe
and North America. Further, Ernst & Young LLP, India
(“EY”) carry out the internal audit of the Company and
special reviews of other subsidiary companies, as needed.
The observations of both in-house internal auditors and
EY and their recommendations are presented to the Audit
Committee of the Company. Also, the implementation

of recommendations of internal auditors are reviewed
during monthly review meetings and reported to the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis.

RAIN Group has optimal internal control systems and
procedures in place to handle all its business processes
such as purchasing raw materials and stores, including
components, plant and machinery equipment, and the sale
of goods and other assets.

The Group has clearly defined roles and responsibilities
for all managerial positions. Its operating parameters are
monitored and controlled effectively through its SAP ERP
software system.

RAIN Group has established a global shared-service center
in India to support SAP users across its global facilities.
This enables effective utilisation of SAP for implementing
efficient internal controls and timely reporting of financial
and operational information.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

RAIN Group employs more than 2,700 employees directly

and indirectly through its subsidiaries across the globe. It
believes that the quality of these employees is the

key to its success and is committed to providing necessary
human-resource development and training opportunities
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to equip employees with additional skills to enable them
to adapt to contemporary technological advancement

and evolving workplace requirements. Our employee-
development efforts also included the implementation of
STOP™ (Safety Training Observation Programme), which
focuses on ways to address unsafe acts and recognise
people who act and work safely. Our learning management
system plays an active role in standardising and
digitisation of various processes that are crucial to various
work functions, such as administration, documentation,
tracking and reporting of the various learning-and-
development and training programmes for employees.

Industrial relations during the year continued to be
cordial, and RAIN Group is committed to maintaining
these relations through effective communication,
meetings and negotiation.

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

We continuously seek to improve safety and reliability

at all our production facilities. Our production facilities
have been awarded ISO certifications for maintaining
quality and environmental management standards. These
certificates demonstrate RAIN Group’s efforts in ensuring
high product-quality standards and compliance with
environmental laws and regulations.

2019 was a momentous year in our safety journey, as our
commitment to workplace safety resulted in the safest-ever
year for our Rain Carbon subsidiary. During the reporting
year, we achieved the lowest historical total recordable
incident rate and an even lower total lost-time injury rate.

Our production facilities also have been awarded ISO
certifications for energy management systems. We follow a
systematic approach in achieving continual improvement
in performance, including energy efficiency, energy
security, energy use and consumption. In addition, our
production facilities have been certified for compliance in

international occupational health and safety management.

Prevention of safety-related incidents is one of our highest
priorities. We have an extensive safety programme, which

10.

11.

includes formal training for all employees, preventive
measures such as pre-job safety analyses and a system
aimed at identifying risks, taking corrective actions and
preventing incidents. We regularly conduct internal
audits of this safety system. Our management team
hasimplemented a structured process for handling,
monitoring, documenting and learning from near-miss
accidents. We have taken stringent measures to reduce
the number of recordable incidents Company-wide and
the monetary incentives of most employees are linked to
fulfilling the Company’s safety targets.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

The Managing Director makes a declaration at each
Board meeting regarding compliance with provisions

of various statutes after obtaining confirmation from

all the operating plants across all subsidiary companies
within India and abroad. The Company Secretary ensures
compliance with SEBI Regulations and provisions of the
Listing Agreement and with the guidelines on insider
trading for prevention of the same.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Boards’ Report and the Management
Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or
predictions may be ‘forward looking statements’

within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could
make a difference to the Company’s operations include
global and Indian demand supply conditions, finished
goods prices, feed stock availability and prices, cyclical
demand and pricing in the Company’s principal markets,
changes in government regulations, tax regimes, economic
developments within India and the countries within
which the Company conducts business and other factors
such as litigation and labour negotiations. The Company
is not obliged to publicly amend, modify or revise any
forward looking statement, on the basis of any subsequent
development, information or events or otherwise.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

for Rain Industries Limited

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020
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N.Radhakrishna Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 00021052

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633
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Regulations, 2015, compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance.

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
GOVERNANCE

Rain Industries Limited (“RIL”/ “the Company”) is committed to
implement sound corporate governance practices with a view
to bring about transparency in its operations and maximize
shareholder value. The Company’s core philosophy on the code
of Corporate Governance is to ensure:

o Fair and transparent business practices;
o Accountability for performance;
o Compliance of applicable statute;

o Transparent and timely disclosure of financial and
management information;

« Effective management control and monitoring of executive
performance by the Board; and

o Adequate representation of Promoter, Executive and
Independent Directors on the Board.

The Corporate Governance framework of the Company is based
on an effective and independent Board, separation of the
Board’s supervisory role from the Senior Management team
and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under
applicable laws.

The Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance
requirements as enshrined in the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Rules made thereunder (“Act”), Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and
other applicable laws.

The Company presents this report, prepared in terms of the
Listing Regulations (including the amendments to the extent

applicable), enumerating the current Corporate Governance
systems and processes at the Company.

1.

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides
leadership and guidance to the Company’s management
and supervises the Company’s performance. As at
December 31, 2019, the Board of Directors (“Board”)
comprised of Eight Directors, of which Seven are Non-
Executive Directors. The Company has a Non-Executive
Chairman and Five Independent Directors (including
Chairman). Independent Directors comprise more than
half of the total strength of the Board.

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
the Listing Regulations. All the Independent Directors
have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned in
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and Section
149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors provide

an annual confirmation that they meet the criteria of
independence. Based on the confirmations/ disclosures
received from the Independent Directors, the Board is

of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and are
Independent of the Management.

The Directors on the Board are professionals, having
expertise in their respective functional areas and bring an
extensive range of skills and experience to the Board.

The Board has an unfettered and complete access to any
information within the Company. Members of the Board
have complete freedom to express their views on agenda
items and can discuss any matter at the Meeting with the
permission of the Chairperson.

a. Thecomposition and category of the Board of Directors is as follows:
The Board of the Company comprises of Eight Directors as on 31*t December, 2019.

None of the Director is a Director in more than 10 public limited companies (as specified in section 165 of the Act)

and Director in more than 8 listed entities (as specified in Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations) or acts as an
Independent Director (including any alternate directorships) in more than 7 listed companies or 3 equity listed
companies in case he/she serves as a Whole-time Director/Managing Director in any listed company (as specified in
Regulation 17A of the Listing Regulations). Further, none of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10
Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 Committees (as specified in Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations), across
all the Indian public limited companies in which he/she is a Director.

:I")_ Name of the Director Designation Category

1 Mr. H.L. Zutshi Chairman Independent Director

2 Mr. N.Radhakrishna Reddy Managing Director Executive Director (Promoter)

3 Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore Director Non - Executive Director (Promoter)
4 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Director Non - Executive Director (Promoter)
5 Mr. Varun Batra Director Independent Director

6 Mr. Brian Jude McNamara! Director Independent Director

7 Ms.Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Director Independent Director

8 Ms. Nirmala Reddy Director Independent Director

! Mr. Brian Jude McNamara has been appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Attendance of Directors at the meetings
During the year, four Board meetings were held. The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings held
during the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) are given below:

Name of the Director Number of Board Meetings Attendance atlast AGM
Held Attended
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy 4 4 Yes
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore 4 4 Yes
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 4 4 Yes
Mr. H. L. Zutshi 4 4 Yes
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti 4 4 Yes
Ms. Nirmala Reddy 4 4 Yes
Mr. Varun Batra 4 4 Yes
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara ! 3 3 Yes
Mr. S. L. Rao 2 1 1 N.A

"' Mr. Brian Jude McNamara was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.
2Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15, 2019.

Other Directorships
The number of Directorships and memberships in the Committees of other Companies held by the Directors as on
December 31,2019 are as under:

. . - In other Public Companies**
Name of the Director No. of other Directorships Membership Chairmanship
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy 9 - -
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore 7 2 -
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 9 - -
Mr. H. L. Zutshi - - -
Mr. Varun Batra 1 - -
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara - - -
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti 5 7 1
Ms. Nirmala Reddy 4 2 1

*Includes Directorships in the Companies incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956/2013.
** Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee (Excluding Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies
and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013/Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956).

Names of the Listed Companies wherein the Directors of the Company are Directors

Sl . No. of Directorshipsin Name of the other Listed Companies in which Directors of the
Name of the Director . . .
No. other Listed Companies Company are Directors
1 Mr. N.Radhakrishna Reddy Nil NA
2 Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore Nil NA
3 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Nil NA
4 Mr. HL. Zutshi Nil NA
5 Mr. Varun Batra Nil NA
6 Mr. Brian Jude McNamara Nil NA
7 Ms. Nirmala Reddy Nil NA
8 Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti 5 1. Navin Fluorine International Limited -
Independent Director
2. EIHAssociated Hotels Limited-
Independent Director
3. ICRALtd-
Independent Director
4. AdaniPorts and Special Economic Zone Limited-
Independent Director
5. Mahanagar Gas Ltd-
Independent Director
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d. BoardProcess
A detailed Agenda, setting out the business to be
transacted at the Meeting(s), supported by detailed
Notes and Presentations is sent to each Director
at least seven days before the date of the Board
Meeting(s) and of the Committee Meeting(s). Draft
agenda of Board and Committee Meeting(s) is also
circulated to the Directors seeking their comments
before finalization of agenda. Video conferencing
facilities are provided to enable Directors who
are unable to attend the meetings in person, to
participate in the meeting via video conferencing.
To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities
effectively and take informed decisions, the
Management apprises the Board through a
presentation at every Meeting on the overall
performance of the Company.

The Board also, inter alia, periodically reviews
strategy and business plans, annual operating and
capital expenditure budget(s), investment and
exposure limit(s), compliance report(s) of all laws
applicable to the Company, as well as steps taken by
the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances,
performance of operating divisions, review of

major legal issues, minutes of the Committees of

the Board and of Board Meetings of the Company’s
subsidiary companies, significant transactions and
arrangements entered into by the unlisted subsidiary
companies, approval of quarterly [ half-yearly |
annual results, significant labour problems and their
proposed solutions, safety and risk management,
transactions pertaining to purchase/disposal of
property(ies), sale of investments, major accounting
provisions and write-offs, fatal or serious accidents,
any material effluent or pollution problems,
transactions that involve substantial payment
towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual
property, any issue that involves possible public

or product liability claims of substantial nature,
including judgement or order which may have
passed strictures on the conduct of the Company,
quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and
the steps taken by Management to limit the risks of
adverse exchange rate movement. The Board sets
annual performance objectives, oversees the actions
and results of the management, evaluates its own
performance, performance of its Committees and
individual Directors on an annual basis and monitors
the effectiveness of the Company’s governance
practices for enhancing the stakeholders’ value.

The Company has well-established framework for
the Meetings of the Board and its Committees which
seeks to systematise the decision making process at
the Meetings in an informed and efficient manner.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Apart from Board Members and the Company
Secretary, the Board and Committee Meetings
are also attended by the Chief Financial Officer
and wherever required by the Heads of various
Corporate Functions.

Number of Board Meetings

Four Board Meetings were held during the Financial
Year ended December 31, 2019. The maximum time
gap between any two consecutive meetings did not
exceed One Hundred and Twenty days.

The dates on which the Board meetings were held are
February 27, 2019, May 8, 2019, August 13,2019 and
November 13, 2019.

Disclosure of relationship between Directors
inter-se

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy, Managing Director is the
father of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Director
and Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Director. Other than
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy, Managing Director,

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Director and

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Director, none of the
Directors are related to any other Director.

Shares held by Non-Executive Directors

The number of equity shares of the Company held by
Non-Executive Directors, as on December 31, 2019
are as follows:

No. of Equity Shares
(face value? 2 each)
held in the Company

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore | 100

Name of the Director

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy 10,028,770
Mr. H. L. Zutshi NIL
Mr. Varun Batra NIL
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara NIL
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti NIL
Ms. Nirmala Reddy NIL

Familiarization programmes imparted to
Independent Directors

Senior management personnel of the Company
make presentations to the Board Members on a
periodical basis, briefing them on the operations
of the Company, plans, strategy, risks involved,

new initiatives, etc., and seek their opinions and
suggestions on the same. In addition, the Directors
are briefed on their specific responsibilities and
duties that may arise from time to time. Any new
Director who joins the Board is presented with a brief
background of the Company, its operations and is
informed of the important policies of the Company
including the Code of Conduct for Directors and
Senior Management Personnel, Code of Conduct
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for Prevention of Insider Trading, Policy on Related
Party Transactions, Policy on Remuneration, Policy
on material events, Policy on material subsidiaries,
Whistle blower policy, Risk Management Policy,
Policy on Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery, Policy
on Prevention of Sexual Harassment and Corporate
Social Responsibility policy.

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and senior
management of the Company make presentations
to the Board of Directors with regard to regulatory

changes from time to time while approving the
Financial Results.

The Independent Directors have attended the
Master class for Directors organized by Institute of
Directors, New Delhi.

The details of familiarization programme attended
by Independent Directors is available on the website:
http://[www.rain-industries.com

Given below is the chart setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors:

zlc-) Name of the Director Category Specialization

1 Mr. H.L. Zutshi Chairman - Independent Director | He has more than 51 years of experience in
Manufacturing Industry.

2 Mr.N.Radhakrishna Reddy Managing Director (Promoter) He has more than 51 years of experience in

3 Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore | Director (Promoter)

4 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Director (Promoter)
5  Mr. Varun Batra Independent Director
6  Mr. Brian Jude McNamara Independent Director

7  Ms.Radhika Vijay Haribhakti | Independent Director

8  Ms. Nirmala Reddy Independent Director

Construction and Cement Industry.

He has more than 26 years of experience in finance,
commercial and manufacturing areas.

He has more than 25 years of experience in
manufacturing and Construction Industry.

He is a Senior finance professional with more

than 29 years of experience in the fields of Private
Equity, Special Situations, Corporate Finance &
Capital Markets, Credit & Relationship management
across various Corporate & Financial Institutional
customers.

He is a former banker with a 30 year career in
project finance, corporate finance and investment
management.

She has over 31 years of experience in Commercial
and Investment Banking.

She has more than 46 years of experience in Banking,
Finance and Project appraisal.

Confirmation from the Board

All the Independent Directors of the Company have
given their respective declaration/disclosures under
Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the
Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they
fulfill the independence criteria as specified under
section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 of the
Listing Regulations and have also confirmed that
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation,
which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge
their duties with an objective independent judgment
and without any external influence. Further, the
Board after taking these declaration/disclosures on
record and acknowledging the veracity of the same,
concluded that the Independent Directors are persons
of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and
experience to qualify as Independent Directors of the
Company and are Independent of the Management.

k. During the year, Mr. S.L. Rao an Independent Director
has resigned from the Directorship of the Company
with effect from March 15,2019 due to advancing
age and falling health and he further confirmed
that there no other reason other than the reason
mentioned above for his resignation.

Profile of Board of Directors

Brief resume of the Directors, nature of their expertise

in specific functional areas and name of Companies in
which they hold Directorship and the membership of the
Committees of the Board are furnished hereunder:

o Mr. H. L. Zutshi, Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. H. L. Zutshi (77 Years) was the Chairman

& Managing Director of Hindustan Petroleum
Corporation Ltd (HPCL). HPCL is engaged in petroleum
refining, marketing and exploration activities. He
retired from HPCL in May 2002 after serving as CMD
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for seven years. HPCL was the successor company of
ExxonMobil in India, after the latter’s activities were
taken over by the Government of India in 1974.

Mr. Zutshi was also the Chairman of Mangalore
Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd (MRPL), a joint venture
Company between Aditya Birla Group of companies and
HPCL, South Asia LPG Ltd, a joint venture between HPCL
and TOTAL of France, HINCOL a joint venture between
COLAS SA of France and HPCL and an Exploration &
Production Company called Prize Petroleum, a joint
venture between HPCL and HDFC, ICICI and TDCI.

He was a member of the Government of India appointed
expert Sub-Committee for developing a policy paper on
deregulation etc, which provided inputs for the Hydro
Carbon Vision 2025. He was formerly Chairman of the
Petroleum, Coal, Fertilizer and related products Division
Council of Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS), New Delhi,
Convener of the Financial Services Sector task force

of the Department of Public Enterprises, which fixed
annual performance targets of the Financial Services
PSUs. He was also Advisor Energy & Hydrocarbon to
Mittal S.a.r.], Luxembourg and ABN AMRO Investments.
He was formerly Independent Director on the Boards

of MMTC, MECON Ltd and IDBI Bank Ltd., Indirapuram
Habitat Centre Pvt. Ltd., Terasol Labs Pvt. Ltd, Jaguar
Overseas Limited and Deepwater Drilling & Industries
Itd., He was also Special Director of BIFR on the boards
of two companies namely Saurashtra Chemicals &

PML Industries.

Mr. Zutshi had a brilliant academic record. He
specialized in Mechanical Engineering and was
trained in Management at the Administrative Staff
College (Hyderabad), Indian Institute of Management
(Ahmedabad) and Templeton College, Oxford
University. He is Fellow of Energy Institute, UK.

Mr. Zutshi is presently the Managing Trustee of the
Energy Research and Social Advancement Foundation,
New Delhi and Ishwar Charitable Trust Eye Hospital
-ICARE. He is a member of India International

Centre, New Delhi.

Mr. Zutshi does not hold any equity shares of the
Company and he is not related to any other Director
of the Company.

o Mr.N.Radhakrishna Reddy, Managing Director

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy (77 years) is the Managing
Director of Rain Industries Limited. He has more than
51 years of experience in Construction and Cement
Industry. He has been a Director of the Company since
1984. Currently, he is also on the Board of Rain Cements
Limited, Renuka Cement Limited, PCL Financial
Services Private Limited, Arunachala Holdings Private

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Limited, PR Cement Holdings Limited, Apeetha
Enterprises Private Limited, Lakshmi Sea Foods Limited,
Rain Entertainments Private Limited and Pragnya

Priya Foundation.

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy holds 10,383,730 equity
shares in the Company.

Mr. N Radhakrishna Reddy, Managing Director is the
father of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Director and
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Director. Other than the said
Directors, he is not related to any other Director.

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Director

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore (53 years) brings with
him 27 years of experience to the Company in the
finance, commercial and operations areas. Mr. Nellore is
presently the Director of Rain Industries Limited.

Mr. Nellore is the founder of Rain CII Carbon (Vizag)
Limited, which had been originally incorporated as
Rain Calcining Limited and commenced production
of Calcined Petroleum Coke (“CPC”) and Electricity in
1998 in India. He spearheaded the vision, strategy and
execution of the globalization of the Indian entity’s
business model through the acquisition of Rain CII
Carbon LLC of the U.S. (formerly CII Carbon, LLC)

and by combining the U.S. and Indian CPC business
strategies in 2007 and subsequently in 2013 through
the acquisition of RUTGERS N.V., a Coal Tar Pitch (“CTP”)
and Chemicals producer. Mr. Nellore has successfully
integrated the acquired entities to create the world’s
leading industrial carbon producer. Mr. Nellore holds
aBachelor of Science degree in Industrial Engineering
from Purdue University, USA.

Mr. Nellore is Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Rain
Carbon Inc. and Member of the Boards of Rain CII
Carbon (Vizag) Limited, Rain Cements Limited, Renuka
Cement Limited, Sujala Investments Private Limited,
Rain Enterprises Private Limited, Rain Entertainments
Private Limited, Pragnya Priya Foundation, Rain
Commodities (USA) Inc., Rain CII Carbon LLC, USA,
Rain Carbon Inc., Handy Chemicals (U.S.A.) Ltd and
CII Carbon Corp. Mr. Nellore is the member of Audit
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of Rain Cements Limited and Rain CII
Carbon (Vizag) Limited.

He holds 100 equity Shares in the Company.

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Director is the son
of Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy, Managing Director
and brother of Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Director .
Other than the said Directors, he is not related to any
other Director.
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o Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Non-Executive Director

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy (48 Years) holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Commerce. He has more than 25 years

of experience in manufacturing and Construction
Industry. He is the Managing Director of Rain Cements
Limited, which manufactures and sells Cement under
the brand name “Priya Cement”. He is also Director of
Renuka Cement Limited, PCL Financial Services Private
Limited, Arunachala Holdings Private Limited, Apeetha
Enterprises Private Limited, Nivee Holdings Private
Limited, Nivee Property Developers Private Limited,
Rain Entertainments Private Limited and Pragnya
Priya Foundation.

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy holds 10,028,770 equity
shares in the Company.

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy, Director is the son of

Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy, Managing Director and
brother of Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore, Director.
Other than the said Directors, he is not related to any
other Director.

Mr. Varun Batra, Independent Director

Mr. Varun Batra (53 years) is a Senior finance
professional with more than 29 years of experience in
the fields of Private Equity, Special Situations, Corporate
Finance & Capital Markets, Credit & Relationship
management across various Corporate & Financial
Institutional customers. He has relevant experience in
Relationship, Risk & Product Management and Debt &
Equity investing across the Capital Structure.

Mr. Batra has built and led teams in both large & small
organizations with direct Frontline and Profit Centre
responsibility. He is currently a Senior Partner and
heads the Mumbai office for Baring Private Equity
Partners (India) Pvt. Ltd.

He was a Managing Director at Citibank N.A where

he worked during the period 1997 - 2010. During his
tenure at Citibank, he built and led Citigroup’s Special
Situations proprietary investments in India. Prior to
that he headed the Corporate Finance & Capital Markets
business and was earlier responsible for relationships
with customers Non-Bank Financial Institutions.

He worked in ANZ Grindlays Bank, Mumbai during the
period from 1991 to 1996.

He is a Member of the Board of Starkarma Realty
Holdings India Private Limited.

Mr. Batra is a Graduate in Mathematics from St.
Xavier’s College, Mumbai and Post Graduate in

Management from the Indian Institute of Management
(IIM), Ahmedabad.

He does not hold any equity shares of the Company and
he is not related to any Director of the Company.

e Mr.Brian Jude McNamara, Independent Director

Mr. Brian Jude McNamara (57 years) is a former banker
with 31 years of experience in project finance, corporate
finance and investment management. Mr. McNamara
worked in investment operations at International
Finance Corporation (IFC) in Washington D.C. from
1991 to 2015 with responsibility for investment strategy,
business development and project financing for a

range of sectors across emerging markets including
chemicals, textiles, general manufacturing and mining.
He has extensive investment experience in project
evaluation, financial structuring and investment
management across the chemicals, fertilizers, carbon
black, plastics, fibers, specialty chemicals and primary
metals industries.

Mr. McNamara is an independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the company’s
wholly owned subsidiary Rain Carbon Inc. Prior to
joining IFC Mr. McNamara worked in the corporate
finance division of Solvay Chemicals (Belgium) and
in banking and investment management in Brussels,
Belgium and Dublin, Ireland.

Mr. McNamara holds a bachelor’s degree in economics
and philosophy from Bristol University in England,
and a master’s degree in finance and banking from
University College Dublin in Ireland.

He does not hold any equity shares of the Company and
he is not related to any Director of the Company.

o Ms. Nirmala Reddy, Independent Director

Ms. Nirmala Reddy worked as a Financial Sector
consultant for the World Bank, Washington DC
during 1995-2006. Her assignments were on credit
intermediation, sustainability, privatisation, appraisal
of development banks and financial institutions in
projects located in Mongolia, Guyana, Egypt, and
Jordan. She also worked on projects for the Asian
Development Bank in Thailand and the African
Development Bank in Cote d’Ivoire.

Earlier, she was a career banker having joined the State
Bank as a probationary officer in 1969. She has twenty
two years of experience in banking operations, foreign
exchange, as head of merchant banking, in her career
with Vijaya Bank and served as Director, correspondent
banking with American Express Bank Ltd. Bombay.
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She was trained in the Bank’s branches in New York,
London, and Frankfurt.

Ms. Reddy holds a Masters degree in Political Science
from Osmania University, Hyderabad. She has studied
French and Japanese.

She is presently a Director on the Board of RAIN
Industries Limited (Listed company) and is also
a Director on the Board of its two subsidiaries
namely RAIN Cements Ltd. and RAIN CII Carbon
(Vizag) Limited.

She is the Chairperson of Audit Committee, Member of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee of Rain Industries Limited,
Chairperson of Audit Committee and Nomination

and Remuneration Committee of Rain CII Carbon
(Vizag) Limited and Member of Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Rain
Cements Limited.

She does not hold any equity shares of the Company and
she is not related to any Director of the Company.

Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti, Independent Director

Ms. Radhika Haribhakti (62 years) has over 31 years of
experience in Commercial and Investment Banking
with Bank of America, JM Morgan Stanley and DSP
Merrill Lynch. She has advised several large corporates
and led their Equity and Debt offerings in domestic as
well as international capital markets. She now heads RH
Financial, a boutique Advisory Firm focused on M&A
and Private Equity.

She serves as an Independent Director on the Boards
of Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Ltd, EIH
Associated Hotels Ltd, ICRA Ltd, Navin Fluorine
International Ltd and Mahanagar Gas Limited.

She is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of EIH
Associated Hotels Ltd, member of Audit Committee,
Risk Management Committee and Chairperson

of Nomination & Remuneration Committee of

ICRA Limited, member of Audit Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Adani Ports and
Special Economic Zone Limited and member of Audit
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
of Navin Fluorine International Limited and Member

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

STATUTORY
REPORTS

161

of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Risk Management Committee, Performance
Review Board Committee and Chairperson of
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of
Mahanagar Gas Limited.

She has also been closely involved with issues of women
empowerment and financial inclusion and has served
on Boards of non-profits for over 18 years, including 12
years as Chairperson. She is the former Chair of Friends
of Women’s World Banking (FWWB), a pioneer in the
Microfinance Sector in India that supported several
startups grow into leading Micro Finance Institutions.
She has also Chaired the Board of Swadhaar Finaccess,
engaged in promoting financial literacy amongst
women in economically disadvantaged communities.
She has also served on the Governing Council and Jury
of Citigroup Micro Enterprise Award and CII's National
Committee on Women Empowerment.

She is a Graduate in Commerce from Gujarat University
and Post Graduate in Management from the Indian
Institute of Management (IIM), Ahmedabad.

She does not hold any equity shares of the Company and
she is not related to other Directors of the Company.

2. Audit Committee

a.

Brief description of terms of reference:
The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are as under:

i)  Oversight of the company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

ii) Recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the company;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors
for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;

iv) Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon before submission to the board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. Mattersrequired to be included in the
Director’s Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board’s report in terms of
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vi)

vii)

viii)

xii)

clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013;

b.  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

c.  Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the
financial statements arising out of
audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other
legal requirements relating to
financial statements;

f.  Disclosure of any related party
transactions; and

g. modified opinion in the draft audit report.

Reviewing with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

Reviewing with the management, the statement
of uses [ application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized

for purposes other than those stated in the
offer document [ prospectus [ notice and the
report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or rights issue and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps
in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence
and performance and effectiveness of
audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification
of transactions of the company with
related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans
and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Reviewing with the management, performance
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

xiii) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit

xiv)

XV)

xvi)

xvii)

xviii)

xix)

XX)
XX1)

xxii)

xxiii)

XX1V)

XXV)

function, if any, including the structure of

the internal audit department, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of
internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any
significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle
Blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the
Whole-Time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc.
of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned
in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through
public offers and related matters;

To review the management discussion
and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations;

To review the statement of significant related
party transactions (as defined by the audit
committee), submitted by management;

To review the management letters [ letters
of internal control weaknesses issued by the
statutory auditors;

To review the internal audit reports relating to
internal control weaknesses;
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xxvi) To review the appointment, removal and terms b. Composition, names of members and Chairperson
of remuneration of the chief internal auditor. o The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of
xxvii) Toreview the statement of deviations of following: > Independent Dlrectors .Wlth M.S' Nirmala Reddy,
Independent Director as its Chairperson.
a: Quartgrly statement of df:v1qt10n(s) . Composition of Audit Committee:
including report of monitoring agency, if . L
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) Name of the Director Designation
in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (Listing Ms. Nirmala Reddy Chairperson
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Mr. H. L. Zutshi Member
Regulations, 2015. Mr. Brian Jude McNamara Member
Mr. Varun Batra Member
b.  Annual statement of funds utilized for Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Member
purposes other than those stated in the
offer document/ prospectus/ noticein o The Head of Finance and Accounts, Statutory
terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing . -
U . . Auditors and Internal Auditors attend the
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) . . . o
Regulations, 2015 Audit Committee meetings on invitation and
’ ’ the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
xxviii) The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the Committee.
of the auditors about internal control systems, o Asrequired under the Secretarial Standards, the
the scope of audit, including the observations of Chairman of the Committee or, in his absence, any
the auditors and review of financial statement other Member of the Committee authorised by
before their submission to the Board and may him on his behalf shall attend the General Meeting
also discuss any related issues with the internal of the Company. Mr. H.L. Zutshi, Chairman of the
and statutory auditors and the management Audit Committee, was present at the 44th AGM
of the company; of the Company held on 8th May, 2019 to address
xxix) The Audit Committee shall have authority to the Shareholders’ queries pertaining to Annual
- - . . . Accounts of the Company.
investigate into any matter in relation to the
items specified above or referred to it by the o The minutes of the meetings of the Audit
Board and for this purpose shall have power to Committee are circulated to all the
obtain professional advice from external sources members of the Board.
and have full access to information contained in
the records of the company; and c. Audit Committee meetings held and attendance
xxx) The auditors of the company and the key (ziglilgg the Financial year ended December 31,
managerlal persopnel shall have a right to be o Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during
heard in the meetings of the Audit Committee . .
. . L the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019. The
when it considers the auditor’s report but shall . - .
. maximum time gap between any two meetings
not have the right to vote.
was not more than one hundred and twenty days.
o The dates on which the Audit Committee Meetings
were held are February 26,2019, May 7, 2019,
August 13,2019 and November 12, 2019.
* Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings:
. . . Number of Meetings
Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Chairperson 4 4
Mr. H. L. Zutshi Member 4 4
Mr.S.L.Rao'! Member 1 1
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Member 4 3
Mr. Varun Batra Member 4 4
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara ? Member 3 3

I Mr. S.L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15, 2019.
2 Mr. Brian Jude McNamara was appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Brief description of terms of reference

o Identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria
laid down and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal;

- Carry on the evaluation of every
director’s performance;

- Formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director;

- Recommend to the Board a policy, relating
to the remuneration of the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

- Formulation of criteria for evaluation of
Independent Directors and the Board;

- Evaluation of Independent Directors and Board.

- Devising a policy on Board diversity; and

- Undertaking other matter as the Board may
refer from time to time.

Composition, name of members and Chairperson
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprised of 5 Independent Directors with

Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti, Independent Director
as its Chairperson.

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee:

Name of the Director Designation
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Chairperson
Mr. H. L. Zutshi Member

Mr. Varun Batra Member

Mr. Brian Jude McNamara Member

Ms. Nirmala Reddy Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
of the Committee.

The minutes of the meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are circulated to all the
members of the Board.

As per section 178(7) of the Act and Secretarial
Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in
his absence, any other Member of the Committee
authorised by him in this behalf shall attend the
General Meetings of the Company. The Chairperson
of the Committee, Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti
was present at the 44" AGM of the Company held
on 8" May, 2019.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

meetings

+ Two Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Meetings were held during the Financial Year
ended December 31, 2019.

o The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Meetings were held on February 26,2019 and
November 12, 2019.

Attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings:

. . . Number of Meetings
Name of the Director Designation Held Attended
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Chairperson 2 1
Mr. H. L. Zutshi Member 2 2
Mr.S.L.Rao! Member 1 1
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Member 2 2
Mr. Varun Batra Member 2 2
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara? Member 1 1

I'Mr. S. L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15, 2019.
2 Mr. Brian Jude McNamara was appointed as member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from

February 28, 2019.

Nomination and Remuneration policy

o The compensation of the Executive Directors
comprises of a fixed component and commission.
The compensation is determined based on the
remuneration prevailing in the industry and the
performance of the Company. The remuneration

package of the Executive Directors is periodically
reviewed and suitable revision is recommended to
the Board by the Committee.

o The Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting Fees
and Commission for attending meetings of the
Board/Committees.
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e. The Criteria for Evaluation of Independent
Directors is given below:
(a) Qualifications: Professional qualifications;

(b) Experience: Experience relevant to the entity;

() Knowledge and Competency:

(i) How the person fares for effective
functioning of the entity
and the Board; and

(ii) Whether the person has sufficient
understanding and knowledge of the entity
and the sector in which it operates;

(d) Fulfillment of functions: Whether the person
understands and fulfills the functions assigned
to him/her as by the Board and the law;

(e) Ability to function as a team: Whether
the person is able to function as an
effective team- member;

(f) Initiative: Whether the person actively takes
initiative with respect to various areas;

(g) Availability and attendance: Whether the
person is available for meetings of the Board
and attends the meeting regularly and
timely, without delay;

(h) Commitment: Whether the person is adequately
committed to the Board and the entity;

(i) Contribution: Whether the person
contributed effectively to the entity and in the
Board meetings;

(j) Integrity: Whether the person demonstrates
highest level of integrity (including conflict
of interest disclosures, maintenance of
confidentiality, etc.);

(k) Independence: Whether person is independent
from the entity and the other directors and there
is no conflict of interest; and

(1) Independent views and judgment: Whether the
person exercises his/ her own judgment and
voices opinion freely.

f.  Performance evaluation of Directors
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board, in consultation
with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee
has formulated a framework containing, inter-
alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of
the Independent Directors, Board of Directors,
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Committees of Board, Individual Directors including
Managing Director and Non- Executive Directors and
Chairperson of the Board.

Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors,
Board of Directors, Committees of Board, Individual
Directors, Managing Director, Non- Executive
Directors and Chairperson of the Board

Evaluation of all Board members is performed on

an annual basis. The evaluation is performed by the
Board, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Independent Directors with specific focus on the
performance and effective functioning of the Board
and Individual Directors.

In line with Securities and Exchange Board of India
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD|CIR/P[2017/004,
dated January 5, 2017, the Company has adopted the
recommended criteria by SEBL

The Directors were given 6 Forms for evaluation
of the following:

(i) Evaluation of Board,;

(ii) Evaluation of Committees of the Board;
(iii) Evaluation of Independent Directors;

(iv) Evaluation of Chairperson;

(v) Evaluation of Non-Executive and Non-
Independent Directors; and

(vi) Evaluation of Managing Director.

The Directors were requested to give following
ratings for each criteria:

1. Could do more to meet expectations;

2. Meets expectations; and

3. Exceeds expectations.

The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. DVM

Gopal, Practicing Company Secretary as scrutinizer
for Board evaluation process.

The Directors have sent the duly filled forms to
Mr. DVM Gopal after Evaluation.

Mr. DVM Gopal based on the Evaluation done by the
Directors, has prepared a report and submitted the
evaluation report.

The Chairperson based on the report of the
scrutinizer has informed the rankings to each
Director and also informed that based on the
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Evaluation done by the Directors and also report
issued by Mr. DVM Gopal, the performance of
Directors is satisfactory and they are recommended
for continuation as Directors of the Company.

Meeting of Independent Directors

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors was

held on November 12,2019 under the Chairmanship 6.
of Mr. Varun Batra, Independent Director, inter-alia, to

discuss evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent
Directors, Managing Director, the Board as a whole,

evaluation of the performance of the Chairman, taking

into account the views of the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors and the evaluation of the quality, content

and timeliness of flow of information between the

management and the Board that is necessary for the Board

to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 1.

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction with
the overall performance of the Directors and the Board
as a whole. Inputs and suggestions received from the
Directors were considered at the Board meeting and have
been implemented.

Lead Independent Director
The Board has appointed Mr. Varun Batra, Chairperson
of the Independent Directors Meeting, as the Lead

Independent Director. The role of the lead Independent
Director is to provide leadership to the Independent
Directors, liaise on behalf of the Independent Directors
and ensure the Board’s effectiveness to maintain high-
quality governance of the organization and the effective
functioning of the Board.

Succession planning

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works
with the Board on succession plan to ensure orderly
succession in appointments to the Board and in the

senior management. The Company strives to maintain

an appropriate balance of skills and experience within
Board of Directors and the organization to introduce new
perspectives while maintaining experience and continuity.

Remuneration of Directors
a.  There were no pecuniary transactions with any Non-
Executive Director of the Company.

b.  The criteria for making payment to Non-Executive
Directors is available on the website of the Company
i.e.,, www.rain-industries.com

c.  Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting Fees
and Commission:

Following are the details of Sitting Fees and Commission paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the Financial Year

ended December 31, 2019:

(In%. Million)

Name of the Director Sitting Fees Commission Total Amount
Mr. H. L. Zutshi 0.76 0.75 1.51
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy! 0.10 - 0.10
Mr. Varun Batra 0.76 0.75 1.51
Mr. Brian Jude McNamara? 0.54 0.725 1.27
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti 0.64 0.75 1.39
Ms. Nirmala Reddy 0.82 0.75 1.57
Mr. S. L. Rao® 0.22 0.25 0.47
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy - - -
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore* - - -

'Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from

March 31, 2019 (i.e., from March 31, 2019 to March 30, 2022).

2 Mr. Brian Jude McNamara has been appointed as Director of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2019.
*Mr. S.L. Rao resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. March 15, 2019.
4 Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore resigned from the position of Managing Director but continues to be Director of the

Company with effect from March 31, 2019.
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d. The Remuneration paid to the Whole-time Director during the year is as follows:
(In%. Million)
Name of the Performance Performance Service Notice
Director and Salary | Benefits | Bonuses | Pension | Commission linked o . Total
Designation incentives criteria contracts period
Mr. N. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil | Appointed 3 Nil
Radhakrishna fora | Months
Reddy period of 3
Managing years
Director!
Mr. Jagan 391* 0.25* Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil | Appointed 3| 416
Mohan Reddy fora |Months
Nellore, period of 5
Director 2 years

' Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy has been appointed as Managing Directo
2019 (i.e., from March 31, 2019 to March 30, 2022).

r of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from March 31,

2Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore resigned from the position of Managing Director but continues to be Director of the Company with

effect from March 31, 2019.

*Salary and Benefits paid for the period January 01, 2019 to March 30, 2019.

There were no severance fees and stock option plan. The
appointment of the Managing Director is for a period of
Three years on the basis of terms and conditions laid down
in the respective resolutions passed by the Members in the
General Meetings.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

a. Composition
The Committee consists of the following Directors
Name of the Director Designation
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy | Chairman 0.
(Non- Executive Director)
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy | Member
Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore | Member
Ms. Nirmala Reddy Member
(Independent Director)
b. Terms of Reference

(i) Resolving the grievances of the security holders
including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of declared dividends, non-

receipt of new/duplicate certificates, etc.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by shareholders.

Review of adherence to the service standards
adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent.

Review of the various measures and initiatives
taken by the Company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring
timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

reports/statutory notices by the shareholders
of the Company.

As per section 178(7) of the Act and the Secretarial
Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in his
absence, any other Member of the Committee authorised
by him in this behalf shall attend the General Meetings
of the Company. The Chairman of the Committee,

Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy was present at the 44" AGM of
the Company held on 8™ May, 2019.

Share Transfer Committee
a. Composition
The Committee consists of the following Directors

Name of the Director
Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy

Designation

Chairman

(Non- Executive Director)
Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy Member

Mr. Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore | Member

Terms of Reference

i)  The Share Transfer Committee shall approve
securities transfers/transmissions, split of Share
Certificates, division and consolidation of share
certificates, issue of duplicate Share Certificates,
deletion of names, etc.; and

ii) The Committee oversees the performance of the

Registrar and Transfer agents and recommends

measures for overall improvement in the quality

of investor services.

Name and designation of Compliance Officer
Mr. S. Venkat Ramana Reddy, Company Secretary
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d. Number of Shareholders complaints received and
resolved so far.
During the year ended December 31, 2019,
the Company has received 442 and resolved
442 complaints.

General Body Meetings:

e. Number of complaints not resolved to the
satisfaction of shareholders is Nil.

f.  Pending complaints as at the year end : NIL

g. Email-id for Investor Grievances:
secretarial@rain-industries.com

a) Thedetails of date, location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings held are as under

Financial year ended 31

Date Time Venue
December
2018 May 8, 2019 3.00 P.M. KLN Prasad Auditorium, The Federation of Telangana
2017 May 11,2018 3.00 PM. and Andhra Pradesh Cham.bers of Commerce &
Industry (FTAPCCI), Red Hills, Hyderabad-500004,
2016 May 5, 2017 3.00 PM. Telangana State, India.

b) Special Resolutions passed during the previous three Annual General Meetings:

Year Date Time

Special Resolutions Passed

2018 May 8, 2019 3.00 PM.

2017 May 11,2018 3.00 PM.

2016 May 5, 2017 3.00 PM.

1. Re-appointment of Ms. Nirmala Reddy as an
Independent Director.

2. Appointment of Mr. N. Radhakrishna Reddy as
Managing Director.

3. Authorisation to the Board of Directors to pay
Commission to the Non-Executive Directors.
To re-appoint Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti as an

Independent Director
To amend the Object Clause of Memorandum of
Association

c¢) No Extraordinary General Meeting was held
during the past 3 years. No Special Resolution(s)
requiring a Postal Ballot was passed last year or is
being proposed at the ensuing AGM.

Means of Communication

The Company recognizes the importance of two way
communication with shareholders and of giving a
balanced reporting of results and progress. Full and

timely disclosure of information regarding the Company’s
financial position and performance is an important part of
the Company’s corporate governance ethos.

The Company follows a robust process of communicating
with its stakeholders, security holders and investors
through multiple channels of communications such

as dissemination of information on the website of the
Company and Stock Exchanges, Press Releases, Annual
Reports and uploading relevant information on its website.

The unaudited quarterly results are announced within
forty- five days of the close of each quarter, other

than the last quarter. The audited annual results are
announced within sixty days from the end of the financial

year as required under the Listing Regulations. The
aforesaid financial results are announced to the Stock
Exchanges within the statutory time period from the
conclusion of the Board Meeting(s) at which these are
considered and approved.

The Company discloses to the Stock Exchanges, all
information required to be disclosed under Regulation
30read with Part ‘A’ and Part ‘B’ of Schedule III of the
Listing Regulations including material information
having a bearing on the performance/ operations of

the Company and other price sensitive information. All
information is filed electronically on the online portal of
BSE Limited - Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (BSE
Listing Centre) and on the online portal of National Stock
Exchange of India Limited - NSE’s Electronic Application
Processing System (NEAPS).

Regular Presentations are also made to investors and
analysts. These presentations and other disclosures which
are required to be disseminated on the Company’s website
under the Listing Regulations have been uploaded on the
website of the Company, viz.: https:/[rain-industries.com/in
vestors[#events-presentations
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The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly/half-
yearly and the audited financial statements and the official
news releases of the Company are also disseminated on the
Company’s website. The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly
results are also published in Business Standard (English
daily all editions) and Andhra Prabha (Telugu daily

all editions).

12. General Shareholder information
a) Annual General Meeting: 45" Annual General Meeting

Date ¢ August 13,2020

Time : 11.00 am.

Venue : KLN Prasad Auditorium,
The Federation of Telangana
Chambers of Commerce

& Industry (FTCCI), Red
Hills, Hyderabad-500 004,
Telangana State, India.

b) Financial Year: January 1,2020 to December 31,2020.
Tentative Schedule for considering Financial Results:

For the Quarter ending : April /| May, 2020

March 31, 2020

For the Quarter ending
June 30, 2020

: July [ August, 2020

f)  Market price data - high/low during each month in the past financial year

c)
d)
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For the Quarter ending
September 30, 2020

October [ November, 2020

For the Quarter/Yearending : January /February, 2021
December 31, 2020

Dividend Payment Date : NA

Listing on Stock Exchanges : Company’s equity
shares are listed at:

Name and Address of the Stock Exchange
BSE Limited,

Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalal street,
Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra, India.
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, RAIN
Exchange Plaza, Floor 5, Plot # C/1, Bandra-Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051,
Maharashtra, India.

Scrip Code
500339

The listing fees for the year 2019 - 20 has been paid to
the above stock exchanges.

e) Stock Code

Name of the Stock Exchange

Scrip Code

BSE Limited
National Stock Exchange of India Limited | RAIN

500339

BSE NSE
wan | v | getEm | oo [ o | ety
January, 2019 136.65 106.30 2,411,555 137.00 106.35 15,341,712
February, 2019 121.00 88.20 3,461,090 120.80 88.00 23,929,266
March, 2019 116.60 91.50 4,391,267 11645 91.70 28,710,325
April, 2019 148.00 98.40 6,927,579 147.80 98.50 55,767,213
May, 2019 125.90 95.65 4934,118 125.70 95.40 41,377,723
June, 2019 117.45 94.00 1,833,408 117.40 94.10 14,913,243
July, 2019 103.10 84.40 1,846,780 103.30 84.25 14,987,881
August, 2019 91.45 77.05 989,024 91.45 77.05 10,861,902
September, 2019 114.10 78.70 4,580,769 114.35 78.55 38,120,887
October, 2019 101.40 81.00 1,662,655 100.85 82.80 15,406,909
November, 2019 109.60 96.15 4,842,549 109.60 96.00 27,441,462
December, 2019 105.60 91.45 1,132,526 105.50 91.55 12,066,836

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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g) Performancein comparison to broad based indices of BSE Sensex:
Comparison between the Share price- High and Sensex index close price.

200 42,000
175 41,000
150 40,000
v 39,000
g 125
E 38,000
100 37,000
75 36,000
50 35,000
= = = & & = = = = = 3 =
= a & = 2 = = ) A, g 2 o
= & 5 & 2 =2 2 2 & S 2 4
+ Price (high) == Sensex (Close)
Performance in comparison to broad based indices of Nifty:
Comparison between the Share price- High and Nifty index close price.
200 13,000
175 12,500
— 150 12,000
&
_; 125 11,500
i)
A 100 11,000
75 10,500
50 10,000
(=3} (3] (<3} (<3} (<p] (=3} (3] (<3} (<3} (p] (=3} (ep)]
i in - in i in D i i - i i
—@— Price (high) —fl— Nifty (Close)
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h)

k)

There was no suspension of trading in the Securities
of the Company during the year under review.

Registrars to an Issue & Share Transfer Agents:
(for Shares held in both Physical and Demat mode) j)

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Unit: Rain Industries Limited)

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032,
Telangana State, India.

Fax:+91 040 23001153;

Distribution of Shareholding:
Shareholding pattern as on December 31,2019

Phone: +91 4067162222

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Website: www.kfintech.com

Share Transfer System
The physical share transfers and transmissions are
processed and the share certificates are returned

to the shareholders within a maximum period

of 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to the
documents being valid and complete in all respects.
All the valid transfers are approved by Share Transfer
Committee and are noted at Board Meetings.

Sl. Percentage of
No. Category No. of Shares held shareholding
1  Promoters/Directors| Associates 138,230,536 41.10
2 Mutual Funds 2,927,139 0.87
3 Financial Institutions and Banks 1,039,762 0.31
4  Foreign Portfolio Investors 46,983,450 13.97
5  Bodies Corporate 29,410,839 8.74
6  Trusts 5,818 0.00
7  NBFCRegistered with RBI 25,300 0.01
8 NRIs 14,287,162 4.25
9  Clearing Members 477,739 0.14
10 Investor Education Protection Fund (IEPF) A/c 2,872,011 0.85
11 Unclaimed Suspense Account 789,525 0.23
12 Indian Public 99,296,398 29.53

Total 336,345,679 100.00

Distribution of shareholding according to nominal value as on December 31,2019

Share Holding of Shareholder Shareholding
. Shares

nominal value of Number % to total No. InR)  %toTotal Amount
1-5000 129,071 96.35 35,696,394 71,392,788 10.61
5001- 10000 2,473 1.85 9,125,276 18,250,552 2.71
10001- 20000 1,140 0.85 8,338,934 16,677,868 248
20001- 30000 401 0.30 5,060,633 10,121,266 1.50
30001-40000 199 0.15 3,510,936 7,021,872 1.04
40001- 50000 147 0.11 3,343,343 6,686,686 0.99
50001- 100000 226 0.17 8,001,935 16,003,870 2.38
100001& Above 310 0.23 263,268,228 526,536,456 78.27
TOTAL 133,967 100.00 336,345,679 672,691,358 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity

The Company'’s shares are available for
dematerialisation with both the Depositories,
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

ISIN: INE855B01025

329,867,449 equity shares were dematerialised representing
98.07% of the total paid up equity share capital of the Company
as on December 31, 2019.
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m) There are no outstanding Global Depository Receipts|
American Depository Receipts or Warrants or any
convertible instruments as on December 31, 2019.

n) Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange risk
and hedging activities
The Company is not directly subject to commodity
price risks, Company’s payables and receivables
are in foreign currency and due to fluctuations
in foreign exchange prices, it is subject to foreign
exchange risks. The Company and its subsidiaries
have in place a robust risk management framework
for identification and monitoring and mitigation of
commodity price and foreign exchange risks. The
risks are tracked and monitored on a regular basis
and mitigation strategies are adopted in line with the
risk management framework. The detailed impact on
the above risks is explained in the MD&A Report

0) The Company does not have any plants.
p)  Address for correspondence:

Company Secretary

Rain Industries Limited

Regd. Off: “Rain Center”, 34, Srinagar Colony,
Hyderabad - 500 073, Telangana State, India.
Phone No.040-40401234, 040-40401259;
Fax No. 040-40401214.

CIN: L26942TG1974PLC001693

E-mail: secretarial@rain-industries.com
(for investor grievance);

Website: www.rain-industries.com

g) Credit Rating
Given below are the ratings given to the Company by
India Ratings & Research during the Financial Year
ended December 31, 2019:

(i) Longterm borrowing: IND A/Stable.

13. Other Disclosures
a) Related Party Transactions

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in the
Notes to Accounts in the Financial Statements. All
transactions with related parties are at arms’ length
and in compliance with transfer pricing regulations.
Consideration is paid/ received through cheque/
online payment.

All Related Party Transactions are entered into by the
Company only after obtaining the prior approval of
the Audit Committee and Board of Directors and are
entered into on an Arms’ length basis.

In terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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c)

d)
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and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company has adopted a policy to determine Related
Party Transactions.

The Company has not entered into any transaction
with any person or entity belonging to the Promoter/
Promoter Group which hold(s) 10% or more
shareholding in the Company.

Related Party Transaction policy is placed on the
Company’s website at: www.rain-industries.com

Material Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2019, there were
no materially significant related party transactions,
which had potential conflict with the interests

of the Company at large. The transactions with
related parties are disclosed in the Note 30 to the
Annual Accounts.

Details of non-compliance etc.,

A Statement on Compliance with all Laws and
Regulations certified by the Managing Director and
Company Secretary are placed at the meetings of the
Board of Directors for their review.

There were no instances of non-compliance, penalty
or strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on

any matter related to capital markets, during the
last three years.

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism
(Whistle Blower policy)

The Board of Directors of the Company

had adopted the Whistle Blower Policy and
appointed an ombudsman.

A mechanism has been established for all
stakeholders including Directors, employees, vendors
and suppliers to report concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation

of Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against the victimization

of employees who avail of the mechanism and

allows direct access to the Chairperson of the audit
committee in exceptional cases.

The Audit Committee reviews periodically the
functioning of whistle blower mechanism.

No personnel has been denied access to the Audit
Committee. A copy of the Whistle Blower Policy is also
available on the website of the Company: https://rain-
industries.com/investors/#policies
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The ombudsman had not received any complaint
during the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019.

The policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is
available on the website of the Company https:/[rain-
industries.com/investors[#policies

The policy on dealing with related party transactions
is available on the website of the Company: https://
rain-industries.com/investors/#policies

The Company has not raised any funds through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement during the Financial Year ended
December 31, 2019.

A certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice
stating that none of the Directors on the Board of

the Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
Company by SEBI or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authority is enclosed to this report.

There has been no such incidence where the Board has
not accepted the recommendation of the Committees
of the Company during the year under review.

Given below are the details of fees paid to BSR &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountant, Statutory
Auditors of the Company on a consolidated basis
during the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019:

Sl. Payments to the Statutory

No. Auditors (excluding taxes)

1  Statutory Audit fees paid
for Audit of the Company
and Subsidiary Companies
situated in India

2 Fees paid for Limited
review of the Company
and Subsidiary Companies
situated in India and
outside India

3 Statutory Audit fees paid
for Audit of Subsidiary
Companies situated outside
India

4 Fees paid for other services

5  Reimbursement of expenses
Total

Fees paidin ¥ Million

6.02

8.17

46.77

10.71
2.64
74.31

14.

15.

j) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

Sl

No. Particulars No.

1 Number of complaints on Nil
Sexual harassment received
during the year

2 Number of Complaints Not Applicable
disposed off during the year

3 Number of cases pending as | Not Applicable

on end of the Financial Year

The Company has complied with the requirements of
Schedule V Corporate Governance Report sub-paras (2)
to (10) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Details of compliance with mandatory
requirements and adoption of Discretionary
Requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of Corporate Governance as per Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

With regard to discretionary requirements, the Company
has adopted clauses relating to the following:

i)  The position of Chairman of the Board of Directors
and that of Managing Director are separate.

ii) The audit report of the Company’s Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 were
unmodified (Unqualified).

iii) Internal Auditor of the Company reports directly to
the Audit Committee.
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16. The Disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 are as follows:

Regulation Particulars of Regulations Com;()$::/c'::)tatus
17 Board of Directors Yes
17A Maximum number of Directors Yes
18 Audit Committee Yes
19 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Yes
20 Stakeholders Relationship Committee Yes
21 Risk Management Committee Yes
22 Vigil mechanism Yes
23 Related Party Transactions Yes
24 Corporate Governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of listed entity Yes
24A Secretarial Compliance & Audit Report Yes
25 Obligations with respect to Independent Directors Yes
26 Obligation with respect to Directors and senior management Yes
27 Other Corporate Governance requirements Yes
46(2)(b) to (i) | Website Yes

17. Risk Management
The Company has constituted a Risk Management
Committee and adopted Risk Management policy.
Currently, the Company’s risk management approach
comprises of the following:

« Governance of Risk
« Identification of Risk

o Assessment and control of Risk

The risks have been prioritized through a company-wide
exercise. Members of senior management have undertaken
the ownership and are working on mitigating the same
through co-ordination among the various departments,
insurance coverage, security policy and personal accident
coverage for lives of all employees.

The Company had appointed a Risk Officer and put in place
arisk management framework, which helps to identify
various risks cutting across its business lines. The risks are
identified and are discussed by the representatives from
various functions.

The details of risks identified and mitigation measures
undertaken are presented to the Board of Directors and the
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Board and the
Audit Committee provides oversight and reviews the risk
management policy periodically.

A detailed note on the risks is included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis annexed to the Boards’ Report.

18. Subsidiary Companies
Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations defines a
“material subsidiary” to mean a subsidiary, whose income
or net worth exceeds ten percent of the consolidated

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity
and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding
accounting year.

Under this definition, Rain Cements Limited, Rain CII
Carbon (Vizag) Limited and Rain Carbon Inc. (Foreign
Body Corporate) are material subsidiaries of the Company.

The subsidiaries of the Company function independently,
with an adequately empowered Board of Directors and
adequate resources. For more effective governance, the
minutes of Board Meetings and Financial Statements of
subsidiaries of the Company are placed before the Audit
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company for
their review at every quarterly Meeting.

In addition to the above, Regulation 24 of the Listing
Regulations requires that at least one Independent
Director on the Board of Directors of the listed entity shall
be a Director on the Board of Directors of an unlisted
material subsidiary, whether incorporated in India or

not. For the purpose of this provision, material subsidiary
means a subsidiary, whose income or net worth exceeds
ten percent of the consolidated income or net worth
respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in the
immediately preceding accounting year

An Independent Director of the Company is also Director
on the Board of these material subsidiaries

The other requirements of Regulation 24 of the Listing
Regulations with regard to Corporate Governance
requirements for Subsidiary Companies have

been complied with.
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19.

20.

22.

23.

Code of Conduct

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct covering the
ethical requirements to be complied with covering all the
Board members and all employees of the Company. An
affirmation of compliance with the code is received from
them on an annual basis.

CEO and CFO Certification

The Managing Director and the CFO have given a
Certificate to the Board as contemplated in Schedule - V
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and is separately annexed.

21. Disclosure with Respect to Demat suspense
Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account
Unclaimed Equity shares are held in Rain Industries
Limited suspense account maintained with Stock
Holding Corporation of India Limited, G6-G10, East Block,
Swarna, Jayanthi Commercial Comp Next, Ameerpet,
Hyderabad, Telangana 500002 vide DP ID: IN301330 and
Client ID: 40195702.

In accordance with the requirement of Clause F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company reports the following details in respect of equity shares lying in the suspense account:

S. Particulars Number of Number of

No. shareholders equity shares

1  Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 590 872,940
account lying at the beginning of the yeari.e., January 1, 2019.

2 No. of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from 16 16,785
Unclaimed Suspense account during the year.

3 No.of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the Unclaimed Suspense 16 16,785
account during the year.

4 Transferred to Investor Education and Protection fund Authority 73 66,630

5  Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in the 501 789,525
Unclaimed Suspense account at the end of the yeari.e., December 31, 2019 (1-3-4).

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the
suspense account as on December 31,2019 shall
remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares
claim the shares.

Transfer of Shares to Investor Education and
Protection Fund

As per the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013, shares of the shareholders, who has not
claimed dividends for a continuous period of 7 years,
shall be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority account. Accordingly, the Company has
transferred 66,630 equity shares to Investor Education
and Protection Fund during the Financial Year ended
December 31, 2019.

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues,
preferential issues, etc.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, there
were no proceeds from public issues, rights issues,
preferential issues, etc.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28,2020
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24. The Company has adopted the policy on dissemination
of information on the material events to stock exchanges
in accordance with the Regulation 30 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The said
policy is available on the website of the Company https://
rain-industries.com/investors[#policies

25. The Company has adopted the policy on preservation
of documents in accordance with Regulation 9 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. The Documents Preservation Policy is available on
the website of the Company: https://rain-industries.com/
investors/#policies

26. The Company has adopted policy on Dividend
Distribution. Policy on Dividend Distribution is available
on the website of the Company: https:/[rain-industries.
com/investors[#policies.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 00021052

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Director
DIN: 00017633
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As provided under Schedule-V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct and Ethics for the financial year ended December 31, 2019.

forRain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy

Place: Hyderabad Managing Director
Date: February 28,2020 DIN: 00021052

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATE

We hereby certify that:

a)

b)

d)

We have reviewed Audited Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2019
and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no:
i)  significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements; and

iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

for Rain Industries Limited

N.Radhakrishna Reddy T.Srinivasa Rao

Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 28, 2020 DIN: 00021052 M. No. F29080

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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To

The Members,

Rain Industries Limited,
Hyderabad.

SUB: Certificate under Schedule V(C)(10)(i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015

We, DVM & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined the registers, records, books and papers (online and
physical) of RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN: L26942TG1974PLC001693) having its Registered Office at “Rain Center”, 34, Srinagar
Colony, Hyderabad - 500073, Telangana State, India (the Company) as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013,
SEBI Regulations, other applicable rules and regulations made thereunder for the Financial Year ended on December 31, 2019.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the examinations carried out by us and explanations and
representation furnished to us by the Company, its officers and agents, we certify that none of the following Directors of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the SEBI/Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority as on December 31, 2019:

:I-o. Name of the Director Designation DIN No

1  Mr. H.L. Zutshi Chairman (Independent Director) 00041002
2 Mr.N.Radhakrishna Reddy Managing Director 00021052
3 Mr.Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore Director 00017633
4 Mr. N. Sujith Kumar Reddy Director 00022383
5  Mr. Brian Jude McNamara Independent Director 08339667
6  Mr. Varun Batra Independent Director 00020526
7  Ms.Radhika Vijay Haribhakti Independent Director 02409519
8  Ms. Nirmala Reddy Independent Director 01673128

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020
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For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

DVM Gopal

Partner

M. No: F6280

CP No: 6798

UDIN: FO06280A000595396
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON
THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

To,
The Members of Rain Industries Limited

1 This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter dated 6 June 2019

2 RainIndustries Limited (‘the Company’) requires
Independent auditor’s certificate on corporate governance
as per Regulations 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation
46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) for the period 01 January 2019
to 31 December 2019.

Management Responsibility

3 The preparation of the corporate governance report is the
responsibility of the management of the Company along
with the maintenance of all its relevant supporting records
and documents. The Management is also responsible for
compliance with conditions of corporate governance
as stipulated in regulation 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) of
Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule
V of the Listing Regulations for the period 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Corporate Governance report and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4  Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations,
our responsibility is to certify whether the Company
has complied with the above said compliances of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance for the period 01
January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

5  We have examined the compliance of the conditions
of Corporate Governance by the Company for the
period 01 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 as per
Regulations 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations. Our examination was limited to procedures
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the Standalone IND AS financial
statements of the Company.

6  We conducted our examination in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates issued
for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“Guidance Note”). The
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews
of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance
and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

8

In our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us and
representations made by the Management, we certify

that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as specified in Regulations 17 to
27, Clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) of Regulation 46
and paragraphs C, D and E of the Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Restrictions on Use

10

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of
complying with regulation 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) of
Regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule
V of the Listing Regulations for the period 01 January
2019 to 31 December 2019 and may not be suitable for any
other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume
any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

For BSR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W-100024

Sriram Mahalingam

Partner

Membership Number: 049642
ICAIUDIN: 20049642AAAAAV5812

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28,2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT

To the Members of Rain Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements

of Rain Industries Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the standalone balance sheet as at 31 December 2019 and

the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind

AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs

of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

The key audit matter

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Investments

As disclosed in note 5 of standalone Ind AS financial statements,
the Company has investments in subsidiaries and associates of
%9,169.65 Million.

The said investments are carried at cost less allowance for
impairment, if any.

The Management reviews regularly whether there are any
indicators of impairment of the said investments by reference to
the requirements under Ind AS 36.

The management carries out impairment assessment for each
investment by:

o Comparing the carrying value of each investment
with the net worth of each company based on
audited financials.

As impairment assessment involves significant assumption and
judgement, we regard this as Key audit matter

In view of the significance of the matter we applied the following audit
procedures in this area

Assessment of whether there were indications of impairment of
such investments. We have assessed on whether management
has estimated the recoverable amounts of these investments,
the assumptions used by the management in making such
estimates, and the allowance for impairment.

Comparison of the carrying values of the company’s investment
in subsidiaries and associates with their respective net assets
value and discussion with management of the performance and
their outlook.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and

our auditors’ report thereon. The Company’s annual report

is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements

that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with

governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
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adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act,
we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account
asrequired by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

c¢) Thestandalone balance sheet, the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone
statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

e)  Onthe basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 December 2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”
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(B)

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations as at 31 December 2019
on its financial position in its standalone Ind
AS financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund

by the Company.

The disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements regarding holdings as well
as dealings in specified bank notes during the
period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made in these financial
statements since they do not pertain to the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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(C) Withrespect to the matter to be included in the
Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the company to its directors during the current year
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197

of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is
not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197
of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which
are required to be commented upon by us.

forBSR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No. 116231W/W-100024

Sriram Mahalingam

Partner

Membership No: 049642
UDIN: 20049642AAAAAR5374

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020



ANNEXURE A

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

With reference to Annexure A referred to in our Report of
even date to the Members of Rain Industries Limited (“the
Company”) on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019, we report that:

I

ii.

iii.

184

(@) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has aregular program of physical
verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified annually. In our opinion, the
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature
of its assets. In accordance with the program, fixed
assets have been physically verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties as disclosed in Note 3 to these standalone
Ind AS financial statements, are held in the name
of the company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company does not hold any physical
inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to one
subsidiary covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). The
Company has not granted loans to firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

a) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and
conditions under which such loans were granted are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

b) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated, and the party is repaying the
principal amounts, as stipulated and are also regular
in payment of interest as applicable.

iv.

Vi.

vii.

c¢) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans, there are no amounts
which are overdue for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the loans given and investments.
However, the Company has not provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and
186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from

the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75

and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Central Government of India has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Act, for the products sold and services
rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service tax
and other material statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Goods and Service tax, Sales-tax, Value Added
Tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears
as at 31 December 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues of Goods and Service
tax, Sales-tax, Value Added Tax which have not been
deposited with appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute. However, the Company has the following
disputed dues with respect to Income tax.
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TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 (CONTINUED)

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Arfu?unt in | Period to which the Forum where the dispute is pending
millions() | amountrelates
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 91.24 | AY 2004-05 Honorable High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for
(91.24) the State of Telangana and the State of Andhra Pradesh
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 25.61 | AY2008-09 Honorable High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for
(12.8) the State of Telangana and the State of Andhra Pradesh
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 167.70 | AY 2009-10 Honorable High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for
(94.90) the State of Telangana and the State of Andhra Pradesh
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 200.44 |AY2010-11 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
(10.00)
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 51.90 |AY2011-12 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 32.60 |AY2012-13 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
Income-tax Act, 1961 |Income-tax and interest 18.40 |AY 2013-14 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

(Amount in parenthesis represents amount deposited under protest with respective authority)

viii.

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowings to Banks. The Company did not have any dues
to Financial Institution or Government, nor has it issued
any debentures as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of

initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments). In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the moneys
raised by way of term loan have been applied on an overall
basis for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material fraud on the Company by its officers and
employees or fraud by the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules,
2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the provisions of

Clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has entered into transactions
with related parties in compliance with the provisions

of Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act. The details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

X1v.

XV.

XVi.

Note 30 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements as
required under Indian Accounting Standard 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xvi) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

for BSR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 116231W[W-100024

Sriram Mahalingam

Partner

Membership No: 049642
UDIN: 20049642AAAAAR5374

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020




ANNEXURE B

TO THEINDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAIN INDUSTRIES

LIMITED FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference
to the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

OPINION

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of Rain Industries Limited (“the Company”)
as of 31 December 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 December 2019, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors

are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial controls

with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

186

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind

AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to

the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established
and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on

the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind AS

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ANNEXURE B

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 (CONTINUED)

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements

include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts

and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE IND
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements,

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

forBSR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm Registration No. 116231W/W-100024

Sriram Mahalingam

Partner

Membership No: 049642
UDIN: 20049642AAAAAR5374

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020



BALANCE SHEET

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2019

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note Asat As at
December 31,2019 December 31,2018
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 70.05 74.83
(b) OtherIntangible assets 4 1.22 1.30
(c) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 9,169.65 9,169.65
(ii) Loans 6 2,281.70 2,904.32
(d) Deferred tax asset (net) 26 1.45 1.45
(e) Non-current tax assets (net) 26 254.04 311.21
(f) Other non-current assets 7 - 0.72
2. Currentassets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Tradereceivables 8 49.92 327.16
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 202.67 18.17
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9 42.79 42.82
(iv) Loans 10 686.63 170.98
(v) Other financial assets 11 0.62 55.79
(b) Other current assets 12 2.71 2.34
TOTAL 12,763.45 13,080.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1.  Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 672.69 672.69
(b) Other equity 14 8,504.05 8,485.92
9,176.74 9,158.61
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financialliabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 2,699.16 3,308.70
(b) Provisions 16 6.57 4.97
Current liabilities
(a) Financialliabilities
(i) Trade payables 17
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - -
enterprises and
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 3.83 315.70
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 739.88 224.04
(b) Other current liabilities 19 14.88 25.18
(c) Provisions 20 1.30 141
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 26 121.09 42.13
TOTAL 12,763.45 13,080.74
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rain Industries Limited
CIN: L26942TG1974PLC0O01693

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W| W-100024

Sriram Mahalingam N Radha Krishna Reddy Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership number: 049642 DIN: 00021052 DIN: 00017633

T.Srinivasa Rao
Chief Financial Officer
M. No.: F29080

S.Venkat Ramana Reddy
Company Secretary
M. No.: A14143

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28,2020
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Note For the year ended For the year ended
December 31,2019 December 31,2018
1 TOTALINCOME
Revenue from operations 21 637.91 1,053.53
Other income 22 610.16 1,037.89
Total income 1,248.07 2,091.42
2 EXPENSES
Purchases of stock-in-trade 301.59 725.52
Employee benefits expense 23 187.16 187.10
Finance costs 24 186.70 196.08
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 5.86 5.20
Loss | (gain) on foreign currency transactions and translations (net) 8.22 34.28
Other expenses 25 171.37 169.90
Total expenses 860.90 1,318.08
3 PROFITBEFORE TAX(1-2) 387.17 773.34
4 TAXEXPENSE 26
1. Current tax 32.78 168.68
2. Deferred tax - -
5 PROFITFORTHE YEAR(3-4) 354.39 604.66
6 OTHERCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
A. (i) Items thatwill not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 0.09 0.07
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B. (i) Items thatwill be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.09 0.07
7 TOTALCOMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (5+6) 354.48 604.73
8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (FACE VALUE OF ¥ 2/- EACH) 32
Basic and Diluted (%) 1.05 1.80
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W[ W-100024

Sriram Mahalingam
Partner
Membership number: 049642

N Radha Krishna Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 00021052

T.Srinivasa Rao
Chief Financial Officer
M. No.: F29080

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28, 2020

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rain Industries Limited
CIN: L26942TG1974PLC001693

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Director

DIN: 00017633

S.Venkat Ramana Reddy
Company Secretary
M. No.: A14143
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

For the year ended
December 31,2019

For the year ended
December 31,2018

A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest and other borrowing costs
Interest income
Dividend income from non-current investments
Foreign exchange (gain) | loss, net
Operating loss before working capital changes
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables
Loans and other assets
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Cash used in operations
Income taxes (paid) [ refund received, net
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities
B. CASHFLOW FROMINVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including capital advances
Loans given to subsidiaries
Loans repaid by subsidiaries
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Interest received
Dividend received from Subsidiaries
Net cash from investing activities
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCINGACTIVITIES
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Interest and other borrowing costs paid
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance (Refer note 9)
Notes:
(i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the
Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on Statement on Cash Flows.
(ii) Components of Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

-in current accounts

-in deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 month or less)

(iii) Comparative figures of the previous year, where necessary, have been regrouped to conform to
those of the current year.

387.17 773.34
5.86 5.20
186.70 196.08
(231.72) (180.99)
(366.34) (846.26)
8.54 34.05
(9.79) (18.58)
277.22 (312.17)
20.65 (24.91)
(311.86) 322.31
(10.30) 0.63
(0.38) 5.15
1.58 1.17
(32.88) (26.40)
164.46 (165.30)
131.58 (191.70)
(1.00) (9.16)
- (1,472.90)
172.15 1,492.74
0.03 (3.34)
205.61 183.25
366.34 846.26
743.13 1,036.85
- 1,472.80
(172.37) (1,461.00)
(181.49) (194.62)
(336.35) (672.69)
(690.21) (855.51)
184.50 (10.36)
18.17 28.53
202.67 18.17
As at As at

December 31,2019

December 31,2018

32.60 18.17
170.07 -
202.67 18.17

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 116231W| W-100024

Rain Industries Limited
CIN: L26942TG1974PLC001693

Sriram Mahalingam
Partner
Membership number: 049642

N Radha Krishna Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 00021052

T.Srinivasa Rao
Chief Financial Officer
M. No.: F29080

Place: Hyderabad
Date: February 28,2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Jagan Mohan Reddy Nellore

Director

DIN: 00017633

S.Venkat Ramana Reddy
Company Secretary
M. No.: A14143
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NOTES
FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Rain Industries Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on
March 15, 1974 under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and is
domiciled in India with its registered office in Hyderabad. The
Company is engaged in sale of products and duty scripts and
providing shared support services to its group companies. The
Company’s equity shares are listed at BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited in India.

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

(i) Statementof Compliance
The standalone financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) notified under Section
133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Relevant Ind AS
effective as on the Company’s annual reporting date
December 31,2019 have been applied. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements.

The standalone financial statements were authorised
for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
February 28, 2020.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency
These Standalone financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have
been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless
otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assetsand | Fair value

liabilities (refer accounting

policy regarding financial

instruments)

Net defined benefit asset/ Fair value of plan assets

liability less present value of
defined benefit plan

Borrowings Amortised cost using
effective interest rate
method

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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(iv) Use of estimates

In preparing these Standalone financial statements,
management has made judgements, estimates

and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis and appropriate changes are
made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Revisions
to accounting estimates are reflected in the period in
which such changes are made and if material, their
effects are disclosed in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about critical judgments in applying
accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes:

o Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key
actuarial assumptions used in measurement
(refer note 29)

e Recognition and measurement of provisions
and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources (refer note 31)

o Recognition and recoverability of deferred
tax assets: availability of future taxable profit
against which tax losses carried forward can be
used & utilisation of Minimum Alternate Tax
(refer note 26);

o Useful life of property, plant and equipment
(refer note 2 (f))

« Impairment of financial assets and non-financial
assets (refer note 27 and 2 (g))

o Expected Credit loss - provision for doubtful debts
(refer note 27.3)

e Measurement of borrowings at amortised cost
(refer note 15)

o Assessment of functional currency
(refer note 2(a)(ii))

Current and Non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle.
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Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of
the following criteria:

i)  Itisexpected to berealised in, or is intended for
sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle

ii) Itis held primarily for the purpose
of being traded

iii) Itisexpected to be realised within 12 months
after the reporting date or

iv) Itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-
current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any
of the following criteria:

i)  Itisexpected to be settled in the Company’s
normal operating cycle

ii) Itis held primarily for the purpose
of being traded

iii) Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the
reporting date or

iv) The Company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms
of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-
current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents. The Company’s operating cycle is
within a period of 12 months.

(v)

Measurement of fair value

Accounting policies and disclosures require
measurement of fair value for both financial and non-
financial assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

o Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants
actin their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2—Valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

o Level 3—Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For changes that have occurred between levels of
hierarchy during the year, the Company re-assesses
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

RAIN INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 45™ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES
FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

All amounts are in Indian Rupees Millions, except share data and where otherwise stated

b) Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured
at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Company elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Transaction costs related to acquisition
are expensed as incurred. At the acquisition date, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For
this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of
the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable.

However, the following assets and liabilities acquired
in a business combination are measured at the basis
indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12- “Income Tax”
and Ind AS 19 -“Employee Benefits” respectively. - Assets
that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105- “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard. Reacquired rights are measured at a value
determined based on the remaining contractual term

of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider
potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree. If the business combination is achieved in
stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured
atits acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
thatis a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind
AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”, is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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and loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the
scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with

the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that

is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted
for within equity.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Company reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognized at that date.

These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one
year from the acquisition date.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interest
in entities that are under the control of the shareholder
that controls the Company are accounted for as if the
acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented or, if later, at the date
that common control was established; for this purpose
comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The
identity of the reserves is preserved and they appear in
the financial statements of the Company in the same
form in which they appeared in the financial statements
of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between
the value of net assets and the consequent reduction in
value of investment held by the Company is transferred
to the capital reserve or to the accumulated balance of
profit and loss.

Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
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are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) as described above are measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL). This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised

cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at an
individual asset level because this best reflects the way
the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and
the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities
or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and
reported to the Company’s management;

o therisks that affect the performance of the business
model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed,

o how managers of the business are compensated
-e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash
flows collected; and

« the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial
assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the

time value of money and for the credit risk associated with
the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as

a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Company considers:

o contingent events that would change the amount or
timing of cash flows;

o terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate,
including variable interest rate features;

o prepayment and extension features; and

o terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant
discount or premium to its contractual par-amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount
that substantially represents the contractual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may
also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at
initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and
losses

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised

in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.
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Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in statement of profit and

loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in statement of profit and loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s
balance sheet) when:

i)  Therights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or

ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated

as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle
them on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 by Ministry of
Corporate affairs and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction
Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with
limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requires that revenue be recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer.

The Company applied the modified retrospective method
upon adoption of Ind AS 115 on January 1, 2019. This
method requires the recognition of the cumulative effect
of initially applying Ind AS 115 to retained earnings and
not to restate prior years.

Overall, the application of this standard did not have a
material impact on the Company’s revenue streams from
the sale of goods, sale of duty scripts and service income.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or
services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of goods and sale of duty scripts are
recognised at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured
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e)

on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract
with a customer, including variable consideration, such as
discounts, volume rebates, or other contractual reductions.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when
the related services are performed in accordance with
contract terms.

Otherincome
Interest income or expense is recognised using the
effective interest method on time proportion method.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right
to receive dividend is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing

part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria

are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Items Years

. Buildings 60

f)  Property, plantand equipment Furniture and Fixtures 0-10
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/ Office equipment 3.5
professional valuation less accumulated depreciation. Vehicles 1-10
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Cost includes directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items including its purchase price, import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing

the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located. Subsequent
expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed asset is
capitalised only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing assets beyond its previously assessed standards

of performance.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components)

of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown under
Non-current loans as capital advances.

Depreciation on all the tangible fixed assets is provided
using the straight-line method based on the useful

life of the assets as prescribed by Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date
of installation till the date the assets are sold or disposed.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are
determined as the difference between net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount, and are presented in the
statement of profit and loss.

g)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets (Cash Generating
Unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher

of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset

and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the respective financial years, if the carrying
amount of the assets or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication
thatif a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum
of amortised historical cost as per requirement of Ind AS
36 - “Impairment of Assets”.
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h) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are restated at the prevailing year end rates. The
resultant gain/loss upon such restatement along with the
gain/loss on account of foreign currency transactions are
accounted in the statement of profit and loss. In respect of
items covered by forward exchange contracts, the premium
or discount arising at the inception of such a forward
exchange contract is amortised as expense or income
over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss arising
on cancellation or renewal of such a forward contract is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

i)  Equity investments in subsidiaries
Non-current investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost
less provision for diminution, other than temporary, if any,
in the value of such investments.

j)  Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Company makes specified monthly contribution
towards employee provident fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined
contribution scheme. The Company’s contribution is
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss during the period in which the employee renders the
related service. The Company has no further obligations
beyond its monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OClin the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit
and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in statement of profit and
loss on the earlier of:

o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

o The date that the Company recognises related
restructuring costs

ACTING RESPONSIBLY. ADVANCING SUSTAINABLY.
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate

to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

« Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
nonroutine settlements; and

o Netinterest expense or income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or curtailed,
the resulting change in the benefit that relates to the
past service (‘past service cost’) or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement
of profit and loss. The Company recognises the gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
settlement occurs.

Compensated Absence Policy

The employees of the Company are entitled to
compensated absences. The employees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilized accumulating compensated
absences and utilize it in future periods or encash the
leaves during the period of employment or retirement

or at termination of employment. The Company records
an obligation for compensated absences in the period in
which the employee renders the services that increases
this entitlement. The Company measures the expected
cost of compensated absences as the additional amount
that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the
reporting period. The Company recognises accumulated
compensated absences based on actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Non-accumulating
compensated absences are recognised in the period in
which the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefits

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary as at December 31st every year using
projected unit credit method on the additional amount
expected to be paid [ availed as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet
date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences
is recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months
of receiving employee services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and
wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount
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of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange
for employee services is recognised as an expense as the
related service is rendered by employees.

m)
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is
(or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset
or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in
an arrangement.

Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as lessee
where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
vest in the Company are classified as finance leases. Such
leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at

the lower of the fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments and a liability is created for

an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated
between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain

a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding
liability for each year.

n)

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor
are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under
operating leases are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

Profit or loss on sale and lease back arrangements resulting
in operating leases are recognised, in case the transaction
is established at fair value, else the excess over the fair
value is deferred and amortised over the period for which
the asset is expected to be used.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying
assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of
activities relating to construction [ development of the
qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such
asset is added to the cost of the assets.

Deferred finance costs consists of loan financing fees,
which are being amortised over the life of the loan.
Amortisation of deferred finance cost is included in other
borrowing costs of statement of profit and loss. Other

borrowings costs are recognised in the period in which
they are incurred.

Earnings Per Share

The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s
Earnings Per Share (EPS) comprise net profit after tax (and
includes the post-tax effect of any extra ordinary items).
The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be
converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have
been issued at a later date. The number of shares used for
computing the diluted EPS is the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year after considering
the dilutive potential equity shares.

Tax expense

Current tax is determined based on the amount of

tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year.
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences being the
difference between the taxable income and accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable

of reversal in one or more subsequent periods subject

to consideration of prudence. Deferred tax assets on
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are
not recognised unless there is a virtual certainty that there
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise
such assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

In case of tax payable as Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’)
under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is
recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there

is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the period for which the MAT credit
can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax
liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the
aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when
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the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed

at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be p)
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed

at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent

that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
isrealised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit

or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination,
but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at
that date, are recognised subsequently if new information
about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred
tax benefits recognised within the measurement period
reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they

result from new information obtained about facts and
circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the
carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining
deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capital
reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain
purchase gains. All other acquired tax benefits realised are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

o) Statement of Cash Flow and Cash & cash
equivalents
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and

cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
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they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the
expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle a present obligation as a result

of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of

such obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Where the Company expects a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the
Standalone financial statements. A contingent liability
recognised in a business combination is initially measured
at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the requirements for provisions above or the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the
requirements for revenue recognition.
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Dividend declared

The Company recognises a liability to make cash
distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

Interim dividend is recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Board of Directors.

Segment

Based on the “management approach” as defined in

Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis
of various performance indicators by business segments.
Accordingly, information has been presented along the
business segments of ‘Carbon’, ‘Advanced Materials’ and
‘Cements’ as its operating segments in the consolidated
financial Statements

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 LEASES

In March 2019, MCA issued Ind AS 116 - Leases which sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to

a contract and replaces the previous standard on leasing,
Ind AS 17 -Leases. Ind AS 116, which is not applicable to
service contracts, but only applicable to leases or lease
components of a contract, defines a lease as a contract that
conveys to the customer (lessee) the right to use an asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Ind AS
116 eliminates the classification of leases for the lessee as
either operating leases or finance leases as required by Ind
AS 17 and instead, introduces a single lessee accounting
model whereby a lessee is required to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term that is greater than

12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value,
and to recognise depreciation of leased assets separately
from interest on lease liabilities in the statement of

profit and loss.

As Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in Ind AS 17, a lessor will
continue to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The Company will be adopting Ind AS 116 with effect
from January 01, 2020, using the modified retrospective
approach. Therefore, it shall recognise a lease liability

at the date of initial application at the present value of

the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application and recognise a right-of-use asset at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the
date of initial application.

Figures for comparative periods will not be restated. The
nature of expenses related to those leases will change
from lease rent in previous periods to (a) amortization
for the right-to-use asset, and (b) interest accrued on
lease liability.

The Company will use the exemption option available

for existing leases and apply the available exemptions
regarding the recognition of short-term leases and low
value leasing assets. Basis assessment, the Company
arrangements under operating leases, which are currently
off Balance sheet, will be recorded as right to use assets
and the future obligations in respect of such leases

will be recorded as a liability in the Balance sheet as at
January 1, 2020.

The Company will use following practical expedients of
Ind AS 116 at the date of initial application:

1)  With leases previously classified as operating leases
according to Ind AS 17, the lease liability will be
measured at the present value of the outstanding
lease payments, discounted by the incremental
borrowing rate at January 1, 2020. The respective
right-of-use asset is generally recognised at an
amount equal to the lease liability;

2)  Animpairment review is not performed for right
of use assets. Instead, right-of-use asset is adjusted
by the amount of any provision for onerous leases
recognised in the Balance sheet;

3)  Regardless of their original lease term, leases for
which the lease term ends latest on December 31,
2020, are recognised as short-term leases;

4)  Atthe date of initial application, the measurement
of aright-to-use asset excludes the initial
direct costs; and

5) Hindsightis co